CONSECO INC Form DEFC14A April 23, 2009

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o

Check the appropriate box:

- o Preliminary Proxy Statement
- o Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

CONSECO, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter) Conseco, Inc.

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
 - 1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

5) Total fee paid:

o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

1) Amount Previously Paid:

2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

3) Filing Party:

4) Date Filed:

Conseco, Inc. 11825 North Pennsylvania Street Carmel, Indiana 46032

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To Be Held May 12, 2009

Notice Is Hereby Given That the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Conseco, Inc. (the Company), will be held at the Conseco Conference Center, 11825 North Pennsylvania Street, Carmel, Indiana, at 8:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time, on May 12, 2009, for the following purposes:

- 1. To elect nine directors, each for a one-year term ending in 2010;
- 2. To approve the adoption of a Section 382 Stockholders Rights Plan;
- 3. To approve the Company s Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan;
- 4. To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm for 2009; and
- 5. To consider such other matters, if any, as may properly come before the meeting.

Holders of record of outstanding shares of the common stock of the Company as of the close of business on March 16, 2009, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting. Holders of common stock have one vote for each share held of record.

Management and the Board of Directors respectfully request that you date, sign and return the enclosed WHITE proxy card in the postage-paid envelope so that we receive the WHITE proxy card prior to the Annual Meeting, or, if you prefer, follow the instructions on your WHITE proxy card for submitting a proxy electronically or by telephone. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record, please follow the procedures as described in the enclosed WHITE voting form they send to you. By completing signing, dating and returning the Company s accompanying WHITE proxy card, you will revoke any proxy that may have been previously returned to Otter Creek Partners I, LP, Otter Creek Management, Inc., Otter Creek International Ltd and Roger Keith Long (collectively, the Otter Creek Entities). The proxies of shareholders who attend the meeting in person may be withdrawn, and such

shareholders may vote personally at the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Karl W. Kindig, Secretary

April 22, 2009 Carmel, Indiana

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Solicitation of Proxies	1
Securities Ownership	3
Proposal 1 Election of Directors	5 5
Board Nominees	5
Otter Creek Entities Nomine	7
Board Committees	7
Director Compensation	9
Board Meetings and Attendance	10
Director Independence	10
Approval of Related Party Transactions	10
Code of Ethics	11
Corporate Governance Guidelines	11
Communications with Directors	11
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	11
Copies of Corporate Documents	11
Executive Compensation	12
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	12
Report of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee	22
Summary Compensation Table for 2008	23
Employment Agreements	24
Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008	25
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-End	26
Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2008	27
Non-qualified Deferred Compensation in 2008	28
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	28
Proposal 2 Approval of Section 382 Stockholders Rights Plan	29
Proposal 3 Approval of Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan	31
Proposal 4 Ratification of the Appointment of Our Independent Registered Public Accounting	
Firm	40
Fees Paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP	40
Pre-Approval Policy	40
Report of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee	41
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	42
Shareholder Proposals for 2010 Annual Meeting	42
Annual Report	42
Additional Participant Information	43
Other Matters	43
Purchases of Conseco, Inc. Securities During the Past Two Years	I-1
Section 382 Stockholders Rights Plan	Annex A
Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan	Annex B
-	

Conseco, Inc. 11825 North Pennsylvania Street Carmel, Indiana 46032

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of Conseco, Inc. (Conseco or the Company) for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the Annual Meeting) to be held at the Conseco Conference Center, 11825 North Pennsylvania Street, Carmel, Indiana on May 12, 2009, at 8:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time. It is expected that this Proxy Statement and proxy will be mailed to the shareholders on or about April 23, 2009.

Solicitation of Proxies

The enclosed proxy is solicited by our Board of Directors. Proxies may be solicited by mail, telephone, internet or in person. Proxies may by solicited by the Conseco Directors (including James Prieur, Conseco s Chief Executive Officer) and by Edward Bonach, Conseco s Chief Financial Officer. No additional compensation will be paid to such individuals for the solicitation of proxies. In addition, the Company has retained Georgeson Inc. to assist in soliciting proxies (and providing advisory and related services) for a fee of up to \$50,000, plus distribution costs and other out-of-pocket expenses. In its engagement agreement with Georgeson Inc., the Company has agreed not to engage any other proxy solicitation firm in connection with the Annual Meeting and has agreed to engage Georgeson Inc. as its sole proxy solicitor should the Company during the next year become the subject of a threatened or actual hostile contest for control.

All expenses relating to the preparation and mailing to the shareholders of the Notice, this Proxy Statement and the form of proxy are to be paid by Conseco, including the proxy solicitation costs described above. To date Conseco has paid approximately \$25,000 relating to the solicitation of proxies for the Annual Meeting, and the Company estimates that its total expenditures in connection with the solicitation of proxies, including the costs of printing and distributing proxy materials to its shareholders, will be approximately \$245,000.

If the enclosed form of proxy is properly executed and returned in time for the meeting, the named proxy holders will vote the shares represented by the proxy in accordance with the instructions marked on the proxy. Proxies returned unmarked will be voted for each of the board s nominees for director (Proposal 1), for the approval of the Section 382 Stockholders Rights Plan (Proposal 2), for the approval of the Amended and Restated Long-term Incentive Plan (Proposal 3) and for the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s independent registered public accounting firm for 2009 (Proposal 4). A shareholder may revoke a proxy at any time before it is exercised by mailing or delivering to Conseco a written notice of revocation or a later-dated proxy, or by attending the meeting and voting in person.

Only holders of record of shares of Conseco s common stock as of the close of business on March 16, 2009, will be entitled to vote at the meeting. On such record date, Conseco had 184,823,258 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. Each share of common stock will be entitled to one vote with respect to each matter submitted to a vote at the meeting. The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum.

If you hold your shares in street name (that is, if you hold your shares through a broker, bank or other holder of record), you may be able to vote by telephone or via the Internet. Please refer to the information on the voting instruction form forwarded to you by your bank, broker or other holder of record to see which voting options are available to you.

You may receive proxy solicitation materials from Otter Creek Partners I, LP, Otter Creek Management, Inc., Otter Creek International Ltd. and Roger Keith Long (collectively, the Otter Creek Entities) in connection with the nomination of R. Keith Long to be a director of Conseco. The Board of Directors recommends that you **not** sign or return the gold proxy card that may be sent to you by the Otter Creek Entities.

If you want to vote in person at the Annual Meeting and you hold your shares in street name, you must obtain a legal proxy from your bank, broker or other holder of record authorizing you to vote. You must then bring the legal proxy to the Annual Meeting.

The election of directors (Proposal 1), because it is a contested election, will be determined by the plurality of the votes cast by the holders of shares represented (in person or by proxy) and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting provided a quorum is present. Consequently, the nine nominees who receive the greatest number of votes cast will be elected as directors of the Company. The vote required to approve the Section 382 Stockholders Rights Plan and the Amended and Restated Long-term Incentive Plan (Proposals 2 and 3) is the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. The vote required to approve the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm (Proposal 4) is the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Shares present which are properly withheld as to voting, and shares present with respect to which a broker indicates that it does not have authority to vote (broker non-votes), will not be counted for any purpose other than determining the presence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions from voting will have the same legal effect as voting against Proposal 2, Proposal 3 and Proposal 4.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE SHAREHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 12, 2009

Under new Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules, you are receiving this notice that the proxy materials for the Annual Meeting are available on the Internet. The proxy statement and the annual report to shareholders are available at *www.proxyvote.com*.

SECURITIES OWNERSHIP

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 16, 2009 (except as otherwise noted) by each person known to us who beneficially owns more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, each of our directors, each of our current executive officers that are named in the Summary Compensation Table on page 23 and all of our current directors and executive officers as a group.

		Shares Benefic	cially Owned
Title of Class	Name of Beneficial Owner	Number	Percentage
Common stock	Columbia Wanger Asset Management, L.P.(1)	26,489,000	14.3
Common stock	Steel Partners II, L.P.(2)	14,801,460	8.0
Common stock	Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC(3)	12,024,641	6.5
Common stock	R. Glenn Hilliard(4)	1,565,294	*
Common stock	Donna A. James	10,807	*
Common stock	Debra J. Perry(5)	40,381	*
Common stock	C. James Prieur(6)	795,000	*
Common stock	Philip R. Roberts(5)	43,907	*
Common stock	Neal C. Schneider(5)	41,407	*
Common stock	Michael S. Shannon(5)	126,866	*
Common stock	Michael T. Tokarz(5)	38,907	*
Common stock	John G. Turner(5)	46,907	*
Common stock	Doreen A. Wright	12,307	*
Common stock	Edward J. Bonach(7)	97,000	*
Common stock	Eric R. Johnson(8)	242,237	*
Common stock	Scott R. Perry(9)	142,898	*
Common stock	Steven M. Stecher(10)	92,975	*
	All directors and executive officers as a group		
Common stock	(19 persons)(11)	3,717,571	2.0

* Less than 1%.

- (1) Based solely on the Amendment No. 3 to Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 27, 2009 by Columbia Wanger Asset Management, L.P. The Amendment No. 3 to Schedule 13G reports sole power to vote or direct the vote of 26,104,000 shares and sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 26,489,000 shares. The business address for Columbia Wanger Asset Management, L.P. is 227 West Monroe Street, Suite 3000, Chicago, IL 60606.
- (2) Based solely on the Amendment No. 7 to Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on January 5, 2009 by Steel Partners II, L.P. The business address for Steel Partners II, L.P. is 590 Madison Avenue, 32nd Floor, New York, NY 10022.
- (3) Based solely on the Amendment No. 3 to Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13, 2009 by Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC. The Amendment No. 3 to Schedule 13G reports sole power to vote or direct the vote of 8,168,541 shares and sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 12,024,641 shares.

The business address for Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC is 725 S. Figueroa Street, 39th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90017.

- (4) Includes 98,119 shares held by a family charitable foundation, of which Mr. Hilliard is a trustee. He disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares. Also includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 755,000 shares of common stock.
- (5) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 15,400 shares of common stock.

- (6) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 325,000 shares of common stock.
- (7) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock.
- (8) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 194,000 shares of common stock.
- (9) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 105,500 shares of common stock.
- (10) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase 77,500 shares of common stock.
- (11) Includes options, exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 16, 2009, to purchase an aggregate of 1,921,900 shares of common stock held by directors and executive officers.

PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nine individuals will be elected to the board of directors for one-year terms expiring at the 2010 annual meeting of shareholders. The nominees listed below are currently members of the board of directors. One current director, Michael Shannon, has informed the board that he will be stepping down as a director on May 11, 2009. The board has elected not to fill his seat on the board and has agreed to reduce the number of directors to nine after his resignation. All directors will serve until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Board Nominees

Unless authority is specifically withheld, the shares of common stock represented by the enclosed form of proxy will be voted in favor of all board nominees identified below. Should any of the nominees become unable to accept election, the persons named in the proxy will exercise their voting power in favor of such person or persons as the board of directors of Conseco may recommend. All of the nominees have consented to being named in this Proxy Statement and to serve if elected. The board of directors knows of no reason why any of its nominees would be unable to accept election.

Set forth below is information regarding each person nominated by the board of directors for election as a director.

Nominees for Election as Directors:

Donna A. James, 51, has been a director of Conseco since May 2007. Since 2006 Ms. James has been President and managing director of Lardon & Associates, a business and executive advisory services firm. Before retiring in 2006, Ms. James worked in various capacities with Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company and its public company subsidiary, Nationwide Financial Services, Inc., beginning in 1981, including President, Nationwide Strategic Investments (2003-2006), Executive Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer (2000-2003) and Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer (1998-2000). She is also a director of Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc., Limited Brands, Inc. and Time Warner Cable Inc.

Debra J. Perry, 58, has served as a director of Conseco since June 2004. Since 2008 Ms. Perry has been the managing member of Perry Consulting LLC. From 1992-2004, she was a senior executive at Moody s Investors Service and Moody s Corporation. During her career there, she served as Chief Administrative Officer and Chief Credit Officer, and had responsibility for several ratings groups, including Americas Corporate Finance, Leverage Finance, Public Finance, and Finance, Securities and Insurance. Until recently, Ms. Perry served on the board of MBIA Inc., the largest financial guaranty insurance company. At the request of the MBIA board, she became a consultant to its Credit Risk Committee to refine and implement the company s risk strategy as part of a five-year transformation plan. Ms. Perry is also a director of Korn/Ferry International.

C. James Prieur, 57, has been chief executive officer and a director since September 2006. Before joining Conseco, Mr. Prieur had been with Sun Life Financial since 1979. He began his career in private placements, then equity and fixed income portfolio management, rising to vice president of investments for Canada in 1988, and then vice president of investments for the U.S. in 1992. In 1997 he was named senior vice president and general manager for all U.S. operations, and became corporate president and chief operating officer in 1999.

Philip R. Roberts, 67, joined our board of directors in September 2003. Mr. Roberts is retired. From 2000 until 2007, Mr. Roberts was principal of Roberts Ventures L.L.C., consultant for merger and acquisition and product development for investment management firms. From 1996 until 2000, Mr. Roberts served as chief investment officer of trust business for Mellon Financial Corporation and headed its institutional asset management businesses from 1990 to 1996.

Michael T. Tokarz, 59, joined our board of directors in September 2003. Mr. Tokarz is the chairman of MVC Capital, Inc. (a registered investment company). In addition, he has been a managing member of the Tokarz Group, LLC (venture capital investments) since 2002. He was a general partner with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. from 1985 until he retired in 2002. Mr. Tokarz is chairman of Walter Industries, Inc. and is also a director of Idex Corp. and Dakota Growers Pasta Companies, Inc.

R. Glenn Hilliard, 66, has served as chairman of our board of directors since September 2003. During the period from August 2004 until September 2005, he served as executive chairman and at all other times since September 2003 he has served as non-executive Chairman. Mr. Hilliard has been chairman and chief executive officer of Hilliard Group, LLC, an investment and consulting firm, since 2003. From 1999 until his retirement in 2003, Mr. Hilliard served as chairman, chief executive officer and a member of the executive committee for ING Americas. From 1994 to 1999 he was chairman and CEO of ING North America. Mr. Hilliard is a Trustee of Columbia Funds Series Trust, Columbia Funds Series Trust, Columbia Funds Series Trust I (formerly Nations Separate Account Trust) and Banc of America Funds Trust.

Neal C. Schneider, 64, joined our board of directors in September 2003. Between 2002 and 2003, Mr. Schneider was a partner of Smart and Associates, LLP, a business advisory and accounting firm. Between 2000 and 2002, he was an independent consultant. Until his retirement in 2000, Mr. Schneider spent 34 years with Arthur Andersen & Co., including service as partner in charge of the Worldwide Insurance Industry Practice and the North American Financial Service Practice. Mr. Schneider has been chairman of the board of PMA Capital Corporation since 2003.

John G. Turner, 69, joined our board of directors in September 2003. Mr. Turner has been chairman of Hillcrest Capital Partners, a private equity investment firm since 2002. Mr. Turner served as chairman and CEO of ReliaStar Financial Corp. from 1991 until it was acquired by ING in 2000. After the acquisition he became vice chairman and a member of the executive committee for ING Americas until his retirement in 2002. Mr. Turner is a director of Hormel Foods Corporation.

Doreen A. Wright, 52, joined our board of directors in May 2007. Ms. Wright was Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer of Campbell Soup Company from 2001 until her retirement in 2008. Prior to joining Campbell Soup Company, she was Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer at Nabisco, Inc. from 1999-2001. From 1995 through 1998, Ms. Wright was Senior Vice President, Operations and Systems for Prudential Insurance Company s Prudential Investment Group. From 1984 until 1994, she held various leadership positions at Bankers Trust Company as a Managing Director and Senior Vice President of numerous large-scale institutional customer service and technology groups. Ms. Wright serves on the boards of directors of The Oriental Trading Company and The Riverside Symphonia, and she previously served on the board of directors of The Yankee Candle Company.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF EACH OF THE COMPANY S DIRECTOR NOMINEES LISTED ABOVE

Otter Creek Entities Nominee

On March 20, 2009, Conseco received notice from Otter Creek Partners I, L.P., by its General Partner, Otter Creek Management, Inc. of its nomination of R. Keith Long to stand for election to the Conseco Board of Directors. If you receive proxy solicitation materials from Otter Creek, the Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you NOT return the gold proxy card or otherwise vote for Mr. Long. If you have returned a gold proxy card to Otter Creek, you can revoke it by properly executing and returning the Company s WHITE proxy card, or, if you hold your shares in street name, then by following the voting instruction form that was forwarded to you.

Board Committees

Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee. The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee s functions, among others, are to recommend the appointment of independent accountants; review the arrangements for and scope of the audit by the independent accountants; review the independent accountants; consider the adequacy of the system of internal accounting controls and review any proposed corrective actions; review

and monitor the Company s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and discuss with management and the independent accountants our draft annual and quarterly financial statements and key accounting and/or reporting matters. The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee currently consists of Mr. Schneider, Mr. Roberts, Mr. Turner and Ms. Wright, with Mr. Schneider serving as chairman of the committee and as audit committee financial expert, as defined under Securities and Exchange Commission rules promulgated under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. All current members of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee are independent within the meaning of the regulations adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the listing requirements adopted by the New York Stock Exchange regarding audit committee membership. The current members also satisfy the financial literacy qualifications of the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. The committee met on 18 occasions in 2008. A copy of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee at *www.conseco.com*.

Governance and Strategy Committee. The Governance and Strategy Committee is responsible for, among other things, establishing criteria for board membership; considering, recommending and recruiting candidates to fill new positions on the board; reviewing candidates recommended by shareholders; considering questions of possible conflicts of interest involving board members, executive officers and key employees; and considering corporate strategy including significant acquisitions or divestitures. It is also responsible for developing principles of corporate governance and recommending them to the board for its approval and adoption, and reviewing periodically these principles of corporate governance to insure that they remain relevant and are being complied with. The Governance and Strategy Committee currently consists of Mr. Tokarz, Mr. Shannon, Ms. Perry and Mr. Hilliard, with Mr. Tokarz serving as chairman of the committee. All current members of the Governance and Strategy Committee are

independent within the meaning of the listing requirements adopted by the New York Stock Exchange regarding nominating committee membership. The committee held four meetings during 2008. A copy of the Governance and Strategy Committee s charter is available on our website at *www.conseco.com*. The Governance and Strategy Committee does not have a written policy regarding shareholder nominations for director candidates. The Governance and Strategy Committee will, however, consider candidates for director nominees put forward by shareholders. See

Shareholder Proposals for 2010 Annual Meeting for a description of the advance notice procedures for shareholder nominations for directors.

Human Resources and Compensation Committee. The Human Resources and Compensation Committee is responsible for, among other things, approving overall compensation policy; recommending to the board the compensation of the chief executive officer and other senior officers; and reviewing and administering our incentive compensation and equity award plans. The Human Resources and Compensation Committee currently consists of Ms. Perry, Ms. James, Mr. Tokarz, Mr. Shannon, and Mr. Hilliard with Ms. Perry serving as committee chair. All current members of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee are independent within the meaning of the listing requirements adopted by the New York Stock Exchange regarding compensation committee membership. The committee met on seven occasions in 2008. A copy of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee s charter is available on our website at *www.conseco.com*.

Investment Committee. The Investment Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing investment policies, strategies and programs; reviewing the procedures which Conseco utilizes in determining that funds are invested in accordance with policies and limits approved by it; and reviewing the quality and performance of our investment portfolios and the alignment of asset duration to liabilities. The Investment Committee currently consists of Mr. Prieur, Mr. Schneider, Mr. Roberts and Mr. Turner, with Mr. Roberts serving as chairman of the committee. The committee met on three occasions in 2008. A copy of the Investment Committee s charter is available on our website at *www.conseco.com*.

Executive Committee. Subject to the requirements of applicable law, including our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, the Executive Committee is responsible for exercising, as necessary, the authority of the board of directors in the management of our business affairs during intervals between board meetings. The Executive Committee currently

consists of Mr. Hilliard, Mr. Prieur and Mr. Turner, with Mr. Turner serving as chairman of the committee. A copy of the Executive Committee s charter is available on our website at *www.conseco.com*.

Director Compensation

For serving as Non-Executive Chairman, Mr. Hilliard receives a fee equal to 175% of the base cash fees and equity awards paid to the other non-employee directors. Our non-employee directors currently receive an annual cash retainer of \$70,000. The chairs of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee and the Human Resources and Compensation Committee each currently receive an additional annual cash fee of \$30,000, and directors who chair one of our other board committees receive an additional annual cash fee of \$20,000. Each member of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee (including the chairman) receives an additional annual cash retainer of \$15,000. Cash fees are paid quarterly in advance. Our non-employee directors have also been entitled to receive \$70,000 in annual equity awards. The amount of fees paid to our non-employee directors has not changed since it was first set in September 2003, except for a \$10,000 increase implemented in 2007 in the additional fee paid to the chair of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee. The Board s policy is to review and set the compensation of the non-employee directors are reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses, including first-class airfare, incurred in connection with the performance of their responsibilities as directors. The compensation paid in 2008 to our non-employee directors is summarized in the table below:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION IN 2008

Name	Fees earned or paid in cash(1)	Stock awards(2)	Total
R. Glenn Hilliard	\$ 122,500	\$ 122,385	\$ 244,885
Donna A. James	70,000	69,938	139,938
Debra J. Perry	100,000	69,938	169,938
Philip R. Roberts	105,000	69,938	174,938
Neal C. Schneider	115,000	69,938	184,938
Michael S. Shannon	70,000	69,938	139,938
Michael T. Tokarz	90,000	69,938	159,938
John G. Turner	105,000	69,938	174,938
Doreen A. Wright	85,000	69,938	154,938

- (1) This column represents the amount of cash compensation paid in 2008 for Board service, for service on the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee and for chairing a committee.
- (2) This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fair value of stock awards, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R). Set forth below is the grant date fair value of each stock award to the non-employee directors in 2008, computed in accordance with SFAS 123R.

Stock	
Awards:	Grant Date

Name	Grant Date	Number of Shares of Stock	Fair Value of Stock Awards
R. Glenn Hilliard	5/21/08	10,937	\$ 122,385
Donna A. James	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
Debra J. Perry	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
Philip R. Roberts	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
Neal C. Schneider	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
Michael S. Shannon	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
Michael T. Tokarz	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
John G. Turner	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
Doreen A. Wright	5/21/08	6,250	69,938
	0		

The directors have the following number of options outstanding at December 31, 2008 Mr. Hilliard (755,000); Ms. Perry (15,400), Mr. Roberts (15,400), Mr. Schneider (15,400), Mr. Shannon (15,400), Mr. Tokarz (15,400) and Mr. Turner (15,400). The average exercise price for the options held by the directors is \$19.12.

Board Meetings and Attendance

During 2008, the board of directors met on 14 occasions. Of the nine directors nominated for re-election, eight had perfect attendance at the meetings of the board and the meetings of the committees on which they served. The other director attended 21 of 25 meetings during the year. The independent directors regularly meet in executive session without the CEO or any other member of management. Mr. Hilliard presides at such executive sessions.

Director Independence

The Board annually determines the independence of directors based on a review by the directors. Although the board of directors has not adopted categorical standards of materiality for independence purposes, no director is considered independent unless the board has determined that he or she has no material relationship with Conseco, either directly or as an officer, shareholder or partner of an organization that has a material relationship with Conseco. Material relationships can include commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting, charitable and familial relationships, among others. The board considers the New York Stock Exchange guidelines in making its determination regarding independence and the materiality of any relationships with Conseco. Under the NYSE corporate governance standards, a director is not independent if he or she has been an employee or executive officer of the Company within the last three years. Because Mr. Hilliard was employed by Conseco and served as Executive Chairman from August 2004 until September 2005, the board had previously determined that Mr. Hilliard was not independent, consistent with rules of the New York Stock Exchange. In October 2008 the board reconsidered Mr. Hilliard s status and relationship with the Company and determined that due to the passage of more than three years since his brief employment by the Company and the absence of any material relationship with the Company that he should be considered an independent director. The board has determined that all current directors other than Mr. Prieur are independent.

Approval of Related Party Transactions

Transactions and agreements with related persons (directors and executive officers or members of their immediate families or shareholders owning five percent or more of the Company s outstanding stock) that meet the minimum threshold for disclosure in the proxy statement under applicable SEC rules (generally transactions involving amounts exceeding \$120,000 in which a related person has a direct or indirect material interest) must be approved by the board of directors or a committee comprised solely of independent directors. In considering the transaction or agreement, the board or committee will consider all relevant factors including the business reason for the transaction, available alternatives on comparable terms, actual or apparent conflicts of interest and the overall fairness of the transaction to the Company. Any proposed transactions that might be considered a related person transaction are to be raised with the Chairman of the Board or the Chairman of the Governance and Strategy Committee. They will jointly determine whether the proposed transaction should be considered by the full board (recusing any directors with conflicts) or by a board committee of independent directors. Related person transactions are to be approved in advance whenever practicable, but if not approved in advance are to be ratified (if the board or committee considers it appropriate to do so) as soon as practicable after the transaction.

Various Company policies and procedures, including the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and annual questionnaires completed by all company directors, officers and employees, require disclosure of transactions or relationships that may constitute conflicts of interest or otherwise require disclosure under applicable SEC rules. Any related person transactions that are identified under these additional policies and procedures are to be considered under

the policy and procedures described above.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers, directors and employees regarding their obligations in the conduct of the Company s affairs. A copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on our website at *www.conseco.com*. Within the time period specified by the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange, we will post on our website any amendment to our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and any waiver applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or principal accounting officer.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Conseco is committed to best practices in corporate governance. Upon the recommendation of the Governance and Strategy Committee, Conseco adopted a set of Conseco Board Governance Operating Guidelines. A copy of the Conseco Board Governance Operating Guidelines is available on our website at *www.conseco.com*.

Communications with Directors

Shareholders and other interested parties wishing to communicate directly with Conseco s board of directors or any one or more individual members (including the presiding director or the non-management directors as a group) are welcome to do so by writing to the Conseco Corporate Secretary, 11825 North Pennsylvania Street, Carmel, Indiana, 46032. The Corporate Secretary will forward any communications to the director or directors specified by the shareholder.

In addition, Conseco has a policy that all directors attend the annual meeting of shareholders. All of our directors attended the annual meeting of shareholders held in 2008.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Ms. James, Mr. Shannon, Mr. Tokarz and Ms. Perry served on the Human Resources and Compensation Committee throughout 2008. Mr. Hilliard was added to the committee on January 20, 2009. None of the members of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee is or has been one of our officers or employees, except for Mr. Hilliard as described above. None of our executive officers serves, or served during 2008, as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving on our board of directors or Human Resources and Compensation Committee.

Copies of Corporate Documents

In addition to being available on our website at *www.conseco.com*, we will provide to any person, without charge, a printed copy of our committee charters, Code of Ethics and Board of Governance Operating Guidelines upon request to Conseco Investor Relations, 11825 N. Pennsylvania Street, Carmel, Indiana 46032; telephone (317) 817-2893 or email ir@conseco.com.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Objectives

Conseco s executive compensation program is designed to reinforce our commitment to our mission and core values by embedding them in all that we do. Our values of Integrity and Customer Focus are essential to all of our customer interactions, and our values of Excellence and Teamwork are essential to how we work. These values, along with the results and behaviors that drive our individual performance, provide the foundation for all our people policies and practices, including our compensation philosophy and programs. Specifically, the following are goals of our program:

Align the interests of our executive officers with those of our shareholders through focusing on shareholder value creation.

Promote a pay-for-performance culture that rewards both overall Company performance and individual accountability.

Strategy

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee (the *Committee*) of the Board of Directors, which is comprised solely of independent, non-employee Directors of Conseco, has developed a comprehensive compensation and benefits strategy that rewards Company and individual performance which will drive our long-term success. The strategy is designed to:

Place a significant amount of total compensation at risk in the form of variable pay. This means that for executive officers, a major portion of their total compensation is tied to either financial or stock price performance. As illustrated in our Summary Compensation Table on page 23, base salaries for our named executive officers (*NEOs*) represent between 25% and 45% of their target total compensation, with the remaining amount comprised of at-risk variable pay in the forms of the annual incentive plan and the long-term incentive programs.

Provide target compensation opportunities commensurate with the market, and actual compensation earned commensurate with Company and the individual s performance. This means that the executive s relative pay opportunities are assessed vis-à-vis relative performance. If performance goals are met or exceeded, pay should be at or above target. Similarly, if performance targets are not satisfied, total actual compensation earned could trail targeted levels.

Focus on attracting and retaining top talent. This means that while we believe compensation should have a strong performance link, we also believe the Company benefits from creating a team of tenured, seasoned professionals with significant industry experience. To encourage this long-term commitment, we historically have granted awards of stock options that vest over three to four years, and performance shares and restricted stock which are eligible for delivery after no less than two years.

Role of the Compensation Committee

The Committee determines the elements and amount of compensation for our executive officers and provides overall guidance for our employee compensation policies and programs. Five members of our Board of Directors sit on the Committee, each of whom is an independent director under the New York Stock Exchange listing requirements, the exchange upon which our stock trades. Other Board members may also participate in our consideration of how we pay our employees. The Committee s function is more fully described in its charter which has been approved by our full Board of Directors, and can be found on our website at *www.conseco.com*.

In making executive compensation decisions, the Committee receives advice from its independent compensation consultant; Pearl Meyer & Partners (PM&P) was hired by and reported directly to the Committee until October 2008. At that time, Hewitt Associates was hired by the Committee and replaced

PM&P. Both independent consultants perform all services for our Company at the Committee s direction and may be terminated without notice by the Committee at any time. Neither PM&P nor Hewitt Associates had a prior relationship with the CEO or any of our Company s executive officers at the time of their hiring.

Though retained directly by the Committee, the compensation consultant often interacts with our executive officers, specifically the CEO, EVP of Human Resources, General Counsel and CFO, and their staffs to provide the Committee with relevant compensation and performance data for our executives and the Company. In addition, the consultant may seek direct input and feedback from management in preparing their consulting work product prior to presentation to the Committee to confirm information, identify data questions, exchange ideas or other similar issues.

As requested by the Committee, in 2008, the independent consultants services to the Committee included:

Providing competitive analysis of executive officer, including NEO, total compensation elements;

Conducting equity grant market studies;

Reviewing NEO promotion packages; and

Attending Committee meetings, in person and telephonically.

The Committee received advice from PM&P regarding 2008 executive compensation issues, plans, and competitive compensation levels. Hewitt Associates LLC provided advice leading to decisions regarding 2009 compensation.

In making its decisions, the Committee collects and considers input from multiple sources. The Committee may ask senior executive officers or non-Committee Board members to attend Committee meetings where executive compensation and Company and individual performance are discussed and evaluated. During these meetings, executives provide insight, suggestions or recommendations regarding executive compensation. Deliberations generally occur with input from the compensation advisor, members of management and other Board members. However, only the independent Committee members vote on decisions made regarding executive compensation, which is typically done in executive session, with no members of management present.

Compensation Program Design / Pay for Performance Objectives

The Committee strives to provide a clear, understandable reward design that allows the Company to attract and retain the executive talent required to continue to improve the Company s performance and build long-term shareholder value. To achieve this, our programs are designed to:

Reward sustainable operational and productivity performance. This means that (i) we set performance goals under our Pay for Performance (P4P) plan at levels that represent targeted performance levels on key financial metrics and (ii) we set multi-year performance goals for our Performance Share (P-Share) awards;

Integrate with the company wide annual performance management program of goal setting and formal evaluation;

Consider internal equity among colleagues in determining compensation levels, in addition to the objective review of external factors. This means that while the Committee examines competitive pay data for specific positions, market data is not the sole factor considered in setting pay levels. The Committee also considers factors such as Conseco s organizational structure, and the relative roles and responsibilities of individuals. The

Committee believes that this approach fosters an environment of cooperation among executives that improves sales growth, profitability, and customer satisfaction;

Provide for discretion to make adjustments and modifications based on how well individual associates meet our performance standards for expected achievement of business results, as well as upholding our values and behaviors; and

Offer the opportunity to earn above-market pay when Company and individual performance exceed expectations.

In setting target executive compensation opportunities, our Committee looks at Total Annual Cash Compensation (**TAC**), which is comprised of base salary and target incentive; and Total Direct Compensation (**TDC**), which is the sum of TAC and long-term incentives. Our long-term incentives include annual stock option awards as well as P-Share awards. Our Committee intends to compensate our executive group at approximately the 50th percentile (meaning within a range of \pm 15% of the 50th percentile) for the achievement of target performance, with additional compensation opportunities up to the 75th percentile of the market for the achievement of superior results.

The following tables provide information about the level of 2008 Total Annual Cash (TAC) and Total Direct Compensation (TDC) opportunities for our NEOs.

Fiscal 2008 Base Salary and Target Total Annual Cash Compensation (TAC)

	Fiscal Year	Percent Increase in Fiscal 2008	Annual Incentive	Fiscal Year 2008 Total Target	Percent Increase in Fiscal 2008 Total
	2008 Base	Base Salary Over	Target Percent	Annual Cash	Annual Cash
Named Executive Officer	Salary	Fiscal 2007	for Fiscal 2008	Compensation	Over Fiscal 2007
James Prieur Chief Executive Officer Edward Bonach Executive Vice President,	\$ 900,000	0%	125%	\$ 2,025,000	0%
Chief Financial Officer Eric Johnson	472,500	5%	100%	945,000	5%
President, 40 / 86 Advisors Scott Perry	500,000	0%	100%	1,000,000	0%
President, Bankers Life & Casualty Steven Stecher	441,324	4%	100%	882,648	4%
President, Conseco Insurance Group	412,000	3%	100%	824,000	3%

Summary of Total Direct Compensation (TDC) Opportunities

	Fiscal 2008	Fiscal 2008	Fiscal 2008
	Threshold	Target	Maximum
Named Executive Officer	TDC	TDC	TDC

James Prieur	\$ 2,339,000	\$ 3,239,000	\$ 6,228,010
Edward Bonach	848,925	1,203,300	1,808,800
Eric Johnson	754,150	1,129,150	1,748,400
Scott Perry	758,295	1,089,288	1,679,200
Steven Stecher	712,980	1,021,980	1,438,980

Notwithstanding the Company s stated position, based on the Company s stock price performance and the number of available shares, the Committee made a purposeful decision to provide lower-than-competitive equity grants. Threshold TDC opportunity includes base salary, plus threshold annual incentive award plus the value of stock options. Target TDC opportunity includes base salary plus target annual incentive award plus stock options. Maximum TDC opportunity includes base salary plus 150% of target annual incentive award plus the value of stock options and Performance Shares.

Compensation Peer Companies

The Committee assesses competitive market compensation using a number of sources. The primary data source used in setting 2008 competitive market levels for our NEOs is the information publicly disclosed by the companies in the S&P Life and Health Insurance Index and the Russell 3000 Life Insurance Industry Index

(together, the **Peer Group**). As of December 31, 2008, the Peer Group consisted of the 17 companies listed below; however, if changes are made to the indices, the Committee anticipates that the Peer Group will reflect those changes. The Committee periodically reviews the Peer Group to ensure the companies are appropriate for both pay and performance comparisons. The Committee chose these publicly disclosed indices because they include organizations which best represent our Company s business mix, and which compete with our Company for shareholder investment. Furthermore, the makeup of these indices will self-adjust as consolidation occurs in the industry.

Peer company information is supplemented with general and industry specific survey data from Towers Perrin that provides position-based compensation levels across broad industry segments. For corporate staff positions, such as the EVP, Human Resources, we consider survey data based on companies of similar size, with less emphasis on industry specific data. However, for industry specific positions, such as a Chief Actuary, we consider insurance industry survey data for positions with similar size.

S&P Supercomposite Life & Health and the Russell 3000 Life Insurance Indices

AFLAC Incorporated American Equity Investment Life Holding Company Citizens Inc. Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Kansas City Life Insurance Company Lincoln National Corporation Life Partners Holdings MetLife, Inc. National Western Life Insurance Company The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Presidential Life Corporation Principal Financial Group, Inc. Protective Life Corporation Prudential Financial. Inc. StanCorp Financial Group, Inc. **Torchmark Corporation** Universal American Financial Corp. **Unum Group**

While aggregate pay levels are consistent with the compensation philosophy stated above, it is possible that pay levels for specific individuals may be above or below the targeted competitive benchmark based on a number of factors. While competitive market data is used as a reference point, we avoid automatic adjustments based on annual competitive benchmarking data, since we believe a given executive s compensation should also reflect Company-specific factors such as the importance of the role within the organization, the compensation for other positions at the same level, and individual factors such as experience, expertise, personal performance and tenure.

Realized total compensation in any year may be significantly above or below the target compensation levels depending on whether our incentive goals were attained and whether shareholder value was created. In some cases, the amount and structure of compensation results from negotiations with executives at the time they were hired, which may reflect competitive pressures to attract and hire quality managerial talent in the insurance industry. To help attract and retain such talent, the Committee also seeks to provide a level of benefits in line with those of comparable publicly traded companies, though avoids matching such benefits item by item.

Pay Levels

All employees target total compensation, including our NEOs, is determined based on a number of factors, including each individual s role and responsibilities within our Company, the individual s experience and expertise, the pay levels for peers within the Company, the pay levels for similar job functions in the marketplace, the individual s business unit, and our Company as a whole. The Committee is responsible for approving all compensation programs for our executive officers. In determining executive compensation, the Committee considers all forms of compensation and benefits, and uses appropriate tools such as tally sheets and market studies to review the value delivered to each executive through each element of pay.

Tally sheets provide a vehicle for the Committee to examine the external market practices and compare them to our internal evaluations and decisions.

Our tally sheets capture and report:

Competitive external market data on a base salary, total annual cash and total remuneration basis;

Individual total annual cash compensation including annual salary, target bonus opportunity, and actual bonus paid;

Long-term equity grants, the vesting status, and their current value at a hypothetical established price; and

Employment contract terms and conditions.

Pay Elements

Total Annual Cash Compensation

Base Salaries

In establishing base salaries, the Committee begins by targeting the 50th percentile, and adjusts upwards or downwards as appropriate to reflect each position s responsibilities, individual s experience level, unique skills or competencies. Base salaries generally range from as low as 25th percentile (for recently promoted employees or those who otherwise lack experience) to as high as the 75th percentile (for a high performer with best in class industry experience). While salaries outside this range may occur, they are few. Annual review of employees base pay levels are determined based upon numerous factors, including

Job responsibilities;

Impact on the development and achievement of our strategic initiatives;

Competitive labor market pressures;

Company performance for the prior 12 months;

Individual performance for the prior 12 months, as expressed on the employee s performance review; and

Salaries paid for comparable positions within our identified compensation peer group.

No specific weighting of these factors is used. However, given our desire for a performance-based culture the Committee s use of its discretion generally results in increases for our top performers, and little or no increases for average or lower performing employees.

Annual Incentive Program

Our annual incentive plan, the P4P Plan, was approved by our shareholders in 2005, and is designed to focus on and reward achievement of annual performance goals. It is the broadest of our management incentive programs, covering approximately 625 employees in 2008, including all of our executive officers, and payable in cash. Senior executives including NEOs are assigned to one of two incentive opportunities (expressed as a percentage of base salary). Consistent with our Company s pay level strategy, these annual incentive levels are set to generate target annual cash compensation (*i.e.*, the sum of base salary plus target annual incentive amount) at competitive market median levels.

Set forth below are the threshold, target and maximum payouts for each of our NEOs under the P4P Plan.

			Maximum
	Threshold	Target	
	Payout	Payout	Payout
		(as% of	(as% of
Named Executive Officer	(as% of Salary)	Salary)	Salary)
James Prieur	31.25%	125%	250%
Edward Bonach	25%	100%	200%
Eric Johnson	25%	100%	200%
Scott Perry	25%	100%	200%
Steven Stecher	25%	100%	200%

In 2008, our P4P payout was based on weighted scorecard tabulation across a variety of performance metrics that focused on profitable growth, managing expenses and utilization of capital. The financial metrics measured were earnings per share, EBIT, value of new business, combined operating expense and additional business unit financial measurements. Limiting the number of metrics to four enhances simplicity and effectiveness of the incentive plan. The program is designed to pay above market-median levels when the Company exceeds target performance.

Named Executive Officer	Metric - Weighting	Metric - Weighting	Metric - Weighting	Metric - Weighting
James Prieur	EPS - 40%	Combined Value of New Business - 20%	Combined Operating Expense - 20%	Combined EBIT - 20%
Edward Bonach	EPS - 40%	Combined Value of New Business - 20%	Combined Operating Expense - 20%	Combined EBIT - 20%
Eric Johnson	EPS - 40%	GAAP Yield - 30%	Investment Income - 30%	
Scott Perry	EPS - 40%	Business Unit Value of New Business - 20%	Business Unit EBIT - 20%	Business Unit Operating ROE - 20%
Steven Stecher	EPS - 40%	Business Unit Value of New Business - 20%	Business Unit EBIT - 20%	Business Unit Operating ROE - 20%

2008 Performance targets for our corporate plan metrics included EPS of \$1.25, Combined Value of New Business (VNB) of \$77.9 million, Combined Operating Expense of \$633.1 million, and Combined EBIT of \$104.0 million. In addition, performance targets for our 40/86 business unit included GAAP Yield of 5.79% and GAAP Investment Income of \$1.416 billion. VNB calculates the present value of expected profits from product sales. The selection of VNB is based on the Company s desire to have an increased focus on product profitability as opposed to top-line sales.

Aggregate awards for 2008 were below target, as performance during this period, including EPS and combined operating expense, did not meet target performance levels established by the Committee at the beginning of the year.

Though our Company has a large net operating loss carry forward (as a result of our emergence from bankruptcy in 2003), the Committee continues to administer the P4P and Long Term Incentive Plans so that payments qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. However, the Committee does reserve the right to make discretionary awards to the extent it deems it necessary or advisable to do so.

We believe that our annual incentive plan meets the requirements of section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fiscal 2008 P4P Actual Bonuses

Named Executive Officer	Amount
James Prieur(1)	\$ 0
Edward Bonach	263,040
Eric Johnson	141,223
Scott Perry	126,868
Steven Stecher	170,172

(1) Mr. Prieur requested to the Committee that he not receive his 2008 P4P calculated bonus.

Total Direct Compensation

Long-Term Incentive Program

As previously discussed, Total Direct Compensation is comprised of Total Annual Cash Compensation and long-term incentives. The Committee uses long-term incentives to balance the short-term focus of the P4P program by tying rewards to performance achieved over multi-year periods. Under the 2003 Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan (the *LTIP*), the Committee may grant a variety of long-term incentive vehicles, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or restricted stock units, and performance shares or units, settled in cash or stock. The Company is progressively migrating away from a long-term compensation scheme that relied on grants of stock options and restricted stock to a current program which will continue to use stock options (or other appreciation rights), and performance share use, and substantially decrease use of restricted stock grants, except in special circumstances. In 2008 the NEOs received only stock options and P-Shares except for an inducement grant made to Mr. Stecher in connection with his promotion.

Our Committee believes that combining these two types of awards (i.e., options and performance shares) provides significant incentive to perform while retaining our key executives. Also, using multi-year awards settled in stock helps balance the cash-based focus of our short-term pay programs (i.e., base salary and annual incentives).

This provides for a competitive award program and adopts a market-recognized best practice for the Company to attract and retain executive talent. Stock option grants vest in equal installments over three to four years, and performance shares are measured over a three-year performance period at which time they will vest only if the financial goals have been achieved. Unless otherwise noted, grants to our NEOs have vesting schedules identical to other executives. To receive the awards, employees must continue to work for the Company through the vesting dates.

Our current granting process involves developing option grant ranges (by position level) for groups of executives. Within these general grant guidelines, individual awards may be adjusted up or down to reflect the performance of the executive and his or her potential to contribute to the success of our initiatives to create shareholder value and other individual considerations. The Committee also assesses aggregate share usage and dilution levels in comparison to the peer group companies and general industry norms. Through this method, the Committee believes it is mindful of total cost, competitive within the market, promoting internal equity among colleagues, and reinforcing our philosophy of pay for performance.

As with base salaries and annual incentive targets, target long-term incentive award levels are set to fall in a range between market median and 75th percentile levels. Stock option awards in combination with TAC are intended to deliver a Total Direct Compensation opportunity that approximates median competitive

compensation. The following table shows the number of options granted to our NEOs in 2008 and compares the value of their total target annual cash plus options to median competitive compensation.

Fiscal 2008 Stock Option Awards: Comparison of Target Total Direct Compensation Opportunity (TAC plus Options) with 50th Percentile Market Position

		Percentage That Target Total Direct Compensation (TAC plus Options) is
Named Executive Officer	Number of Options Granted	Above or Below the 50th Percentile
James Prieur Edward Bonach(1) Eric Johnson Scott Perry Steven Stecher(2)	470,000 100,000 50,000 80,000 80,000	(9)% 13% (39)% (34)% (38)%

(1) The variation represented a broader scope of responsibilities than other CFOs in the peer group.

(2) Mr. Stecher also received a one-time inducement grant of 5,000 restricted shares not included in the analysis above.

As noted earlier, due to the Company s stock price performance and the number of available shares, the Committee made a conscious decision to provide lower-than-competitive equity grants in fiscal 2008.

P-Share vesting is based on the achievement of one-year Operating Return on Equity (ROE) in year three of the performance period and Total Shareholder Return (TSR) results over a three-year performance period. We believe that ROE and TSR are good measures of long term performance and performance relative to our peer companies and appropriately align management incentives with shareholder returns.

In order to receive the entire award, the Company must achieve a 12% ROE or greater, and a TSR ranking at the 75th percentile or above relative to the Peer Group. The ROE hurdle is not directly linked to an industry percentile. However, if achieved it does represent a material and meaningful improvement for our Company. If minimum company thresholds are not achieved over the three-year term, no shares will be vested. We believe that the ROE and TSR hurdles will only be achieved with superior performance on the part of our management team.

As previously discussed, our Committee s intent is to reward superior performance at approximately the 75th percentile of market compensation. We therefore structure P-Share grants so that our executives can earn this higher compensation level if the ROE and TSR hurdles are achieved and the grants vest. The table below shows the number of P-shares awarded to our NEOs in 2008 and the value of their TDC relative to the 75th Percentile compensation assuming that the P-shares are earned.

Fiscal 2008 Performance Share Awards: Comparison of Maximum Total Direct Compensation Opportunity (TAC plus Options and P-Shares) with 75th Percentile Market Position

Named Executive Officer	Number of P-Shares That May Be Earned	Percentage That Maximum Total Direct Compensation (TAC plus Options and P-Shares)(1) is Above or Below 75th Percentile
James Prieur	230,000	(15)%
Edward Bonach	35,000	(13)%
Eric Johnson	35,000	(48)%
Scott Perry	35,000	(44)%
Steven Stecher	20,000	(52)%

(1) In the event that all performance shares vest, it is expected that a corresponding outstanding level of performance would be reflected in the annual incentive program. Therefore the Total Annual Cash Compensation portion of Total Direct Compensation has been adjusted to reflect this level of performance.

As noted previously, due to the Company s stock price performance and the number of available shares, the Committee made a conscious decision to provide lower-than-competitive equity grants in fiscal 2008.

The Committee reviews and approves individual grants for the NEOs as well as all stock options, P-Shares and restricted stock grants made to other employees. The annual grants are reviewed and approved at the Committee s scheduled meeting at approximately the same time each year and may be granted only with an exercise price at or above the closing market price of the Company s common stock on the date of grant. Interim or off cycle grants are reviewed and approved by the Committee and granted at the closing market price of the Company s common stock on the date of grant. Interim or off cycle grants are reviewed and approved by the Committee and granted at the closing market price of the Company s common stock on the date of approval. Administration of all equity awards is managed by the human resources department.

In 2005, the Committee approved a policy to conform to Risk Metrics Group (RMG), formerly known as Institutional Shareholder Services or *ISS*, burn rate guidelines (as they existed at that time) which limit annual equity grant levels. Under the agreement with RMG, our average annual burn rate for the three-year period from January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2007 was not to exceed the greater of two percent of the Company s shares outstanding or the mean of its Global Industry Classification Standards Peer Group (4030 Insurance). This policy applied to shares we issued under the LTIP Plan. Using RMG s methodology, our burn rate is calculated as (i) the number of shares granted in each fiscal year by the Committee and reported in the Company s periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and includes (a) stock options, (b) stock-settled stock appreciation rights, (c) restricted stock (or units) and (d) performance shares (actually earned or deferred during this time frame), to employees and directors divided by (ii) the fiscal year-end basic shares outstanding. Stock appreciation rights, full value shares settled in cash and performance shares or units settled in cash will not be included in the burn rate calculation. For purposes of performing the calculation consistent with RMG methodology, one full value share (such as a share of restricted stock) may equal up to as many as four option shares. The actual conversion rate is determined by RMG based upon recent volatility of Conseco s common stock, which may change during the commitment period. Our burn rates for

2005, 2006 and 2007 were .81%, 1.59% and 1.10%, respectively, using RMG s calculation methodology. As a result, the Company met its commitment to RMG with respect to the burn rate. In addition, our burn rate for 2008 was 1.01%.

Other Benefits and Perquisites

As employees of the Company, our NEOs are eligible to participate in all of the broad-based Company-sponsored benefits programs on the same basis as other full-time employees. These include the Company shealth and welfare benefits (e.g., medical/dental plans, disability plans, life insurance, etc.). The Company does not have any supplemental executive health and welfare programs. Executives may also participate in the Company s 401(k) Plan. During 2006, the Committee approved the adoption of a non-qualified deferred compensation plan. This plan is primarily intended as a restoration plan, giving participants the ability to defer their own compensation above

the IRS limits imposed on the 401(k) plan. At present, the Company does not make any contribution to the non-qualified deferred compensation plan.

Compensation of Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Prieur s base salary, target incentive, and equity compensation awards for fiscal 2008 were determined in accordance with the compensation philosophy described above, including the policy of targeting our compensation within our peer group. In setting his salary, target incentive and equity compensation, the Committee relied on market competitive pay data and the strong belief that the CEO significantly and directly influences the Company s overall performance.

Based on the competitive placement of his base salary relative to his peers in the market, Mr. Prieur did not receive a base salary increase or change to his target annual incentive opportunity in 2008. Through the delivery of equity, the Committee strengthened the alignment with the shareholders.

Mr. Prieur further demonstrated alignment with shareholders by acquiring 240,000 additional shares of Conseco stock in the open market during 2008. The additional shares brought his total number of shares purchased to 470,000.

Based on the achievement of VNB and operating expense goals, Mr. Prieur s incentive payment for 2008 was calculated at \$633,800. However, Mr. Prieur proposed to the Committee that he not receive an incentive payment for 2008 in light of the very difficult operating environment and its impact on Conseco. The Committee accepted his proposal.

Claw Back Rights

Our LTIP contains a Claw Back provision relating to our long-term equity awards: stock options, performance shares and restricted stock awards. Under this claw back provision, if our financial statements are required to be restated as a result of errors, omissions, or fraud, the Committee may, at its discretion, based on the facts and circumstances surrounding the restatement, direct the recovery of all or a portion of an equity award from one or more executives with respect to any fiscal year in which our financial results are negatively affected by such restatement. To do this, we may pursue various ways to recover from one or more executives: (i) seek repayment from the executive; (ii) reduce the amount that would otherwise be payable to the executive under another Company benefit plan; (iii) withhold future equity grants, bonus awards, or salary increases; or (iv) take any combination of these actions.

Impact of Tax and Accounting on Compensation Decisions

As a general matter, the Committee considers the various tax and accounting implications of compensation vehicles employed by the Company.

When determining amounts of Long-Term Incentive grants to executives and employees, the Committee considers the accounting cost associated with the grants. Under SFAS 123R, grants of stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and other share-based payments result in an accounting charge for the Company. The accounting charge is based on the grant date fair value of the instruments being issued as determined under SFAS 123R. This expense is amortized over the requisite service or vesting period. However, if the award is subject to a performance condition as determined under SFAS 123R, the cost will vary based on our estimate of the number (and ultimately the actual number) of shares that will vest.

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally prohibits any publicly held corporation from taking a federal income tax deduction for compensation paid in excess of \$1 million in any taxable year to the chief executive officer

and the next four highest compensated officers. Exceptions are made for qualified performance-based compensation, among other things. It is the Committee s policy to maximize the effectiveness of our executive compensation plans in this regard. However, the Committee believes that compensation and benefits decisions should be primarily driven by the needs of the business, rather than by tax policy. Therefore, the Committee may make pay decisions (such as the determination of the CEO s base salary) that result in compensation expense that is not fully deductible under Section 162(m).

Termination and Change in Control Arrangements

Under the terms of our equity-based compensation plans and our employment agreements, the CEO and the other NEOs are entitled to payments and benefits upon the occurrence of specified events including termination of employment for various reasons. The specific terms of these arrangements, as well as an estimate of the compensation that would have been payable had they been triggered as of fiscal year-end, are described in the section entitled

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control Arrangements on page 28. In the case of each employment agreement, the terms of these arrangements were set through the course of negotiations with each of the NEOs, with an eye to internal consistency. In addition, as part of these negotiations, the Compensation Committee also analyzed the terms of the same or similar arrangements for comparable executives employed by companies in our peer group.

The termination of employment provisions of the employment agreements were entered into in order to address competitive concerns when the NEOs were recruited, by providing those individuals with a fixed amount of compensation that would offset the potential risk of leaving their prior employer or foregoing other opportunities in order to join the Company. At the time of entering into these arrangements, the Committee considered the aggregate potential obligations of the Company in the context of the desirability of hiring the individual and the expected compensation upon joining us.

Report of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee has reviewed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and has discussed it with management. Based on the Committee s review and discussions with management, the Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement. This report is provided by the following independent directors, who comprise the Committee:

Debra J. Perry, Chair Donna A. James Michael S. Shannon Michael T. Tokarz R. Glenn Hilliard

Summary Compensation Table for 2008

The following Summary Compensation Table sets forth compensation paid to (i) our chief executive officer during 2008, (ii) our chief financial officer during 2008 and (iii) the other three most highly compensated individuals who served as executive officers of Conseco in 2008 (collectively, the named executive officers) for services rendered during 2008.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2008

Name						Non-Equity Incentive		
and Principal Position	Year	Salary	Bonus(1)	Stock Awards(2)	Option Awards(3)C	Plan	All Other (compensation((5) Total
James Prieur(6) Chief Executive Officer	2008 2007	\$ 900,000 900,000		\$ 126,231 154,103	\$ 1,131,782 921,318	\$ 562,500	\$ 12,236 109,187	\$ 2,170,249 2,647,108
Edward Bonach(7) Chief Financial	2006 2008 2007	270,000 468,750 296,827	\$ 357,534 553,288	197,999 213,574	226,153 133,280 57,704	263,040	28,114 7,866 49,295	881,801 1,070,935 1,170,688
Officer Eric Johnson President, 40 / 86 Advisors,	2008 2007 2006	500,000 500,000 500,000	316,667	3,957 118,664 416,846	116,936 269,632 236,056	141,223 392,250 607,500	630 630 630	762,746 1,281,176 2,077,699
Inc. Scott Perry President, Bankers Life and Casualty	2008 2007 2006	438,495 421,958 408,333	100,000	218,215 391,232 290,206	256,268 239,425 132,153	126,868 270,808 366,010	25,330 28,415 22,322	1,065,176 1,351,838 1,319,024
Company Steven Stecher(8) President, Conseco Insurance Group	2008	410,000		62,659	228,319	170,172	12,517	883,667

- (1) The amounts shown in this column are for bonus payments specified by the terms of the individual employment agreements. Amounts paid under the Company s Pay for Performance Incentive Plan are included in the column Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.
- (2) This column represents the dollar amount recognized during the year for financial statement reporting purposes for the fair value of restricted stock and performance units, in accordance with SFAS 123R. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. For restricted stock, fair value is calculated using the closing price of Conseco common stock on the date of grant. For additional information, see note 11 to the Conseco financial statements in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, as filed with the SEC. See the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table for information on awards made in 2008. The amounts in this column reflect the Company s accounting expense for these awards, and do not necessarily correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officers.

(3)

This column represents the dollar amount recognized during the year for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to 2008 for the fair value of stock options granted to each of the named executive officers, in accordance with SFAS 123R. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. For additional information on the valuation assumptions with respect to the 2008 grants, refer to note 11 of the Conseco financial statements in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, as filed with the SEC. For information on the valuation assumptions with respect to grants made prior to 2008, refer to the note on stockholders equity and stock-related information to the Conseco financial statements in the Form 10-K for the respective year-end. See the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table for information on options granted in 2008. The amounts in this column reflect the Company s accounting expense for these awards, and do not necessarily correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the named executive officers.

(4) This column represents the dollar amount of payments to be made in April 2009 to the named executive officers based on 2008 performance with respect to the targets established under the Company s 2005 Pay for Performance (P4P) Incentive Plan. Mr. Prieur requested of the Compensation Committee that he receive no payment under the P4P Plan for 2008. Based on his targets for 2008 and the Company s performance, Mr. Prieur s incentive payment for 2008 was calculated at \$633,800.

(5) For 2008, the amounts reported in this column represent the amounts paid for: (i) group life insurance premiums, (ii) Company contributions to the 401(k) Plan, (iii) spousal travel benefits, and (iv) amounts paid as reimbursement for taxes paid on taxable income associated with spousal travel.

The table below shows such amounts for each named executive officer:

Name] Ins	roup Life urance miums	(k) Plan ributions	-	pousal `ravel	Reim	Tax bursement
James Prieur Edward Bonach	\$	1,806 966	\$ 6,900 6,900	\$	2,490	\$	1,040
Eric Johnson Scott Perry		630 630	6,900		12,558		5,242
Steven Stecher		630	6,900 6,900		3,449		1,538

(6) Mr. Prieur became Chief Executive Officer on September 7, 2006.

(7) Mr. Bonach became Chief Financial Officer on May 11, 2007.

(8) Mr. Stecher became President of Conseco Insurance Group on July 31, 2008.

Employment Agreements

Chief Executive Officer. Effective September 7, 2006, we entered into an employment agreement with C. James Prieur, pursuant to which he would serve as our Chief Executive Officer for an initial term ending December 31, 2009. The agreement provides for an annual base salary of \$900,000, an annual performance-based bonus with a target of 125% of base salary and a maximum of 200% of his Target Bonus, and a minimum bonus for 2006 equal to a pro rata portion of his Target Bonus. Under the agreement, we provided Mr. Prieur with an initial equity award comprised of options to purchase 350,000 shares of common stock, with an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of grant, pursuant to the LTIP. The agreement also provided for an award of 50,000 performance shares, which were granted in March 2007. Mr. Prieur is subject to a non-solicitation and non-competition clause throughout the term of the agreement and for one year thereafter.

Chief Financial Officer. We entered into an employment agreement, effective April 23, 2007, with Edward J. Bonach pursuant to which he would serve as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for a term of three years. The agreement provides for an annual base salary of \$450,000 and an annual performance-based bonus with a target of 100% of base salary. Under the agreement, we provided Mr. Bonach with an initial equity award comprised of options to purchase 80,000 shares of common stock and 40,000 shares of restricted stock, pursuant to the LTIP. Mr. Bonach is subject to a non-solicitation and non-competition clause throughout the term of the agreement and for one year thereafter.

President, 40/86 Advisors, Inc. 40/86 Advisors, Inc., a wholly-owned investment management subsidiary of Conseco, Inc. that manages the investment portfolios of our insurance subsidiaries, entered into an amended employment agreement, effective September 10, 2008, with Eric R. Johnson pursuant to which he would continue to serve as

40/86 Advisors President for an additional term of one year. The agreement provides for an annual base salary of \$500,000 and an annual performance-based bonus with a target of 100% of base salary and a maximum of 200% of base salary. Mr. Johnson is subject to a non-solicitation and non-competition clause throughout the term of the agreement and for one year thereafter.

President, Bankers Life and Casualty Company. Effective October 1, 2004, Scott R. Perry entered into an employment agreement with Conseco Services, LLC to be Executive Vice President of Bankers Life for an initial term of four years and effective October 1, 2008 Mr. Perry entered into an amended and restated employment agreement that expires September 30, 2010. Mr. Perry s employment agreement provides for a minimum annual salary of \$441,000 and an annual performance-based bonus with a target of 100% of base salary and a maximum of 200% of base salary. Mr. Perry is subject to a non-solicitation and non-competition clause throughout the term of his agreement and for a period of up to two years thereafter.

Table of Contents

President, Conseco Insurance Group. Effective May 27, 2008, Steven M. Stecher entered into an amended employment agreement with our with our subsidiary, Conseco Services, LLC with a term that expires on May 27, 2010. In July 2008 Mr. Stecher was promoted to the position of President of Conseco Insurance Group. The amended employment agreement provided for an annual salary of \$412,000 and an annual performance-based bonus with a target of 100% of base salary and a minimum of 200% of base salary. Mr. Stecher is subject to a non-solicitation and non-competition clause throughout the term of the agreement and for one year thereafter.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2008

The following table shows certain information concerning grants of plan-based awards in 2008 to the named executive officers.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS IN 2008

	Estimat	ed Future Payo	outs Under	(in Share	ted Future s of Comm · Equity In	ion Stock)	All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares	All Other Option Awards: Number of Securities	Exercise or Base Price of
Grant	Non-Equit	ty Incentive Pla	n Awards(1)	Pl	an Awards	s(2)	of Stock	Underlying	Option
Date	Threshold	Target	Maximum	Threshold	Target	Maximum	or Units(3)	Options(4)	Awards(5)
	\$ 281,250	\$ 1,125,000	\$ 2,250,000						
4-1-08				69,000	N/A	138,000			
4-1-08				4,600	46,000	92,000			
4-1-08								470,000	\$ 10.55
	118,125	472,500	945,000						
4-1-08				10,500	N/A	21,000			
4-1-08				700	7,000	14,000			
4-1-08								100,000	10.55
	125,000	500,000	1,000,000						
4-1-08				10,500	N/A	21,000			
4-1-08				700	7,000	14,000		50.000	10.55
4-1-08	110 221	441 224	000 (40					50,000	10.55
4-1-08	110,331	441,324	882,648	10,500	N/A	21,000			
4-1-08 4-1-08				10,300 700	7,000	21,000 14,000			
4-1-08 4-1-08				700	7,000	14,000		80,000	10.55
4-1-00	103,000	412,000	824,000					80,000	10.55
4-1-08	105,000	712,000	024,000	6,000	N/A	12,000			
4-1-08				400	4,000	8,000			
4-1-08				100	1,000	0,000		60,000	10.55
8-18-08							5,000	20,000	- 0.00
5 10 00							2,000		

8-18-08

- (1) These amounts represent the threshold, target and maximum amounts that would have been payable for 2008 if the performance-based metrics under the Conseco Pay for Performance Incentive Plan had been achieved. The amounts paid for 2008 performance under the Pay for Performance Incentive Plan are listed in the summary compensation table on page 23 of this proxy statement under the column heading Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.
- (2) These amounts represent the threshold, target and maximum number of shares that the named executive officers can receive under the terms of the performance share awards made in 2008. For each officer, the first line of information in these three columns is for the performance share award that is tied to total shareholder return, and the second line of information is for the performance share award that is tied to operating return on equity. See also footnote (3) to the Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-end table below for additional information regarding the 2008 performance share awards.

- (3) The amounts in this column represent the number of shares of restricted stock that were awarded to the named executive officers during 2008 under the LTIP.
- (4) The amounts in this column represent the number of stock options granted to the named executive officers during 2008 under the LTIP.
- (5) The exercise price equals the closing sales price of Conseco common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant.
- (6) A description of the assumptions used in calculating these values may be found in Note 11 to our 2008 audited financial statements included in our 2008 Annual Report, which report accompanies this proxy statement.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth certain information concerning outstanding equity awards held by the named executive officers as of December 31, 2008.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2008 FISCAL YEAR-END

							STOCK	AWARDS	Equity Incentive Plan
								Equity	Awards:
								Incentive Plan	Market or
								Awards:	Payout
								Number	Value
							Market	of	of
			OPTION A	WARDS			Value of	Unearned	Unearned
		Number	Number			Number			
		of	of			of Shares	Shares or	Shares,	Shares,
		Securities	Securities			or	Units of	Units or Other	Units or Other
		Underlying				Units of Stock	Stock That	Rights That	Rights That
		Unexercised ¹	Unexercised	Option	Option	That Have	Have	Have	Have
	Award	Options	Options	Exercise	Expiration	Not	Not	Not	Not
lame	Date	ExercisableU	Unexercisable	Price	Date(1)	Vested	Vested(2)	Vested(3)	Vested(4)
ames Prieur	9-7-06(5)	150,000	150,000	\$ 20.91	9-7-16				
	9-7-06	50,000		20.91	9-7-16				
	3-26-07(6)		250,000	17.75	3-26-12			16,000	\$ 82,880
	4-1-08(7)		470,000	10.55	4-1-13			73,600	381,248
dward Bonach	5-11-07(8)		80,000	18.35	5-11-12				

5-11-07					40,000	\$ 207 200	11 200	58,016
		100.000	10.55	4-1-13	-10,000	\$ 207,200	,	58,016
6-1-04	150,000	,	21.00	6-1-14			;	
3-26-07(6)	·	88,000	17.75	3-26-12			12,320	63,818
4-1-08(7)		50,000	10.55	4-1-13			11,200	58,016
6-1-04	18,000		21.00	6-1-14				
6-27-05	25,000		21.67	6-27-15				
6-30-06(9)	22,500	22,500	23.10	6-30-16				
3-26-07(6)		80,000	17.75	3-26-12			11,200	58,016
4-1-08(7)		80,000	10.55	4-1-13			11,200	58,016
9-17-04	10,000		17.87	9-17-14				
6-27-05(10)	22,500	7,500	21.67	6-27-15				
6-30-06(9)	18,000	18,000	23.10	6-30-16				
3-26-07(6)		54,000	17.75	3-26-12			5,760	29,837
4-1-08(7)		60,000	10.55	4-1-13			6,400	33,152
8-18-08(11)		20,000	8.91	8-18-13			·	
8-18-08					5,000	25,900		
	$\begin{array}{c} 3-26-07(6) \\ 4-1-08(7) \\ 6-1-04 \\ 6-27-05 \\ 6-30-06(9) \\ 3-26-07(6) \\ 4-1-08(7) \\ 9-17-04 \\ 6-27-05(10) \\ 6-30-06(9) \\ 3-26-07(6) \\ 4-1-08(7) \\ 8-18-08(11) \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{cccc} 4-1-08(7) \\ 6-1-04 \\ 150,000 \\ 3-26-07(6) \\ 4-1-08(7) \\ 6-1-04 \\ 18,000 \\ 6-27-05 \\ 25,000 \\ 6-30-06(9) \\ 22,500 \\ 3-26-07(6) \\ 4-1-08(7) \\ 9-17-04 \\ 10,000 \\ 6-27-05(10) \\ 22,500 \\ 6-30-06(9) \\ 18,000 \\ 3-26-07(6) \\ 4-1-08(7) \\ 8-18-08(11) \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{ccccc} 4-1-08(7) & 100,000 \\ 6-1-04 & 150,000 \\ \hline 3-26-07(6) & 88,000 \\ 4-1-08(7) & 50,000 \\ 6-1-04 & 18,000 \\ 6-27-05 & 25,000 \\ 6-30-06(9) & 22,500 & 22,500 \\ 3-26-07(6) & 80,000 \\ 4-1-08(7) & 80,000 \\ 9-17-04 & 10,000 \\ 6-27-05(10) & 22,500 & 7,500 \\ 6-30-06(9) & 18,000 & 18,000 \\ 3-26-07(6) & 54,000 \\ 4-1-08(7) & 60,000 \\ 8-18-08(11) & 20,000 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{cccccccc} 4-1-08(7) & 100,000 & 10.55 \\ 6-1-04 & 150,000 & 21.00 \\ 3-26-07(6) & 88,000 & 17.75 \\ 4-1-08(7) & 50,000 & 10.55 \\ 6-1-04 & 18,000 & 21.00 \\ 6-27-05 & 25,000 & 21.67 \\ 6-30-06(9) & 22,500 & 22,500 & 23.10 \\ 3-26-07(6) & 80,000 & 17.75 \\ 4-1-08(7) & 80,000 & 10.55 \\ 9-17-04 & 10,000 & 17.87 \\ 6-27-05(10) & 22,500 & 7,500 & 21.67 \\ 6-30-06(9) & 18,000 & 18,000 & 23.10 \\ 3-26-07(6) & 54,000 & 17.75 \\ 4-1-08(7) & 60,000 & 10.55 \\ 8-18-08(11) & 20,000 & 8.91 \\ \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

(1) All options in this table that were granted in 2006 or prior years have a 10 year expiration date, while options granted beginning in 2007 have a five year expiration date. All options are subject to acceleration for certain events.

(2) Based on the closing sales price of Conseco common stock (\$5.18) on December 31, 2008.

- (3) In accordance with SEC rules, the amounts included in this column represent the number of shares of Conseco common stock to which the named executive officer will be entitled if the Company achieves the threshold performance level with respect to the performance share awards made in 2007 and 2008 and covering the years 2007 2009 and 2008 2010, respectively. Sixty percent (60%) of the 2007 and 2008 performance awards made to the named executive officers are tied to the cumulative return on the Company s common stock with dividends reinvested (total shareholder return or TSR) compared to the total shareholder return of a group of Conseco s peers (represented by the companies comprising the Standard & Poor s Life and Health Index and the Russell 3000 Health and Life Index) over the applicable three-year periods. If Conseco s performance is below the 50th percentile, then no portion of that award is earned. If Conseco s performance is at the 50th percentile, or threshold level, one-half of the total number of TSR performance shares will vest and the number of shares in this column includes that 50% amount. (The maximum TSR payout will occur if the Company s total shareholder return exceeds the 75th percentile.) The balance of the performance share awards are tied to Conseco s operating return on equity for the year ending December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010, respectively. For that portion of the award, no portion will be earned if the Company operating return on equity is less than 10%, and payouts begin with a 5% payout at the threshold level of 10.1%. Accordingly, the number of shares in this column includes 5% of the total number of ROE performance shares granted to the named executive officer.
 - (4) The dollar amounts in this column equal the number of threshold level performance shares, calculated as described in footnote (3) above, multiplied by the closing sales price of Conseco common stock on December 31, 2008 (\$5.18).
- (5) These options vest and become exercisable in four equal annual installments, commencing September 7, 2007.
- (6) One-half of these options vest on March 26, 2009 and the balance vests on March 26, 2010.
- (7) One-half of these options vest on April 1, 2010 and the balance vests on April 1, 2011.
- (8) One-half of these options vest on May 11, 2009 and the balance vests on May 11, 2010.
- (9) These options vest and become exercisable in four equal annual installments, commencing June 30, 2007.
- (10) These options vest and become exercisable in four equal annual installments, commencing June 27, 2006.
- (11) One-half of these options vest on August 18, 2010 and the balance vests on August 18, 2011.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2008

The following table provides information, for the named executive officers, concerning (i) stock option exercises during 2008 (of which there were none) and (ii) the number of shares acquired upon the vesting of restricted stock awards and the value realized (before payment of any applicable withholding tax).

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED IN 2008

OPTION	AWARDS	STOCK AWARDS				
Number		Number				
of		of				
Shares	Value	Shares	Value			

Name	Acquired On Exercise	Realized Upon Exercise	Acquired on Vesting	ealized on Vesting
James Prieur Edward Bonach Eric Johnson Scott Perry Steven Stecher			31,250 5,000	\$ 125,000 49,550
	27			

Non-qualified Deferred Compensation in 2008

The following table shows certain information concerning non-qualified deferred compensation activity in 2008 for our named executive officers.

NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION IN 2008

	Executive	Conseco	Aggregate Earnings	Aggregate	Aggregate
Name	Contributions in 2008(1)	Contributions in 2008	(Loss) in 2008(2)	Withdrawals/ Distributions	Balance at 12/31/08
James Prieur Edward Bonach Eric Johnson	\$ 1,192,500		\$ (171,340) (108,657)		\$ 1,687,327 151,353
Scott Perry Steven Stecher	13,155		(9,905)		25,267

- (1) Amounts in this column are included in the Salary, Bonus and/or Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column in the Summary Compensation Table.
- (2) Amounts in this column are not included in the Summary Compensation Table on page 23 of this Proxy Statement.

The 2008 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation table presents amounts deferred under our Deferred Compensation Plan. Participants may defer up to 100% of their base salary and annual incentive plan payments under the Deferred Compensation Plan. Deferred Amounts are credited with earnings or losses based on the return of mutual funds selected by the executive, which the executive may change at any time. We do not make contributions to participants accounts under the Deferred Compensation Plan. Distributions are made in either a lump sum or an annuity as chosen by the executive at the time of deferral.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Each of the named executive officers listed below has an employment agreement with the Company or one of its subsidiaries. Each such employment agreement provides for certain payments to be made upon termination of employment for various reasons. Those payments are to be made either as a lump sum or over a period not to exceed two years. The following table estimates the amounts that would have been payable to the named executive officers upon termination of employment under each of the identified circumstances as of December 31, 2008:

		Involuntary or Good Reason Termination
Voluntary		
or	Without	upon or within
For		
Cause	Cause/Good	2 years after

Name	Termination	Disability	Death	Reason	ange In Control
James Prieur		\$ 2,025,000	\$ 900,000	\$ 2,025,000	\$ 4,278,241
Edward Bonach		752,286	752,286	1,697,286	2,169,786
Eric Johnson		500,000	500,000	1,500,000	2,077,423
Scott Perry		441,324	441,324	1,323,972	1,617,220
Steven Stecher		412,000	412,000	1,236,000	1,506,614
		28			

PROPOSAL 2

APPROVAL OF SECTION 382 STOCKHOLDERS RIGHTS PLAN

On January 20, 2009, the Board of Directors adopted a Section 382 Stockholders Rights Plan (the Rights Plan). The Rights Plan approval proposal is an opportunity for stockholders to approve the decision by the Board of Directors to adopt the Rights Plan. If the shareholders do not approve the Rights Plan at the Annual Meeting, the Rights Plan will expire on that date.

Purpose of the Rights Plan

The Rights Plan is designed to prevent certain transfers of our common stock which could adversely affect our ability to use our tax net operating losses (NOLs). As of December 31, 2008, we had approximately \$4.8 billion of (pre-tax) NOLs, which we estimate could save us as much as \$1 billion in taxes over the next 20 years. Our NOLs expire over the period between 2009 and 2028. To the extent that we have future taxable income, the unexpired balance of our NOLs can be used to offset future tax on our income. Because the amount and timing of our future taxable income cannot be accurately predicted, we cannot predict the amount of NOLs that will ultimately be used to reduce the Company s income tax liability. Although we are unable to quantify an exact value, we believe that the NOLs are a valuable asset and the Board of Directors believes it is in the Company s best interests to attempt to prevent the imposition of limitations on their use by adopting the Rights Plan.

The benefit of the NOLs to the Company would be significantly reduced or eliminated if we were to experience an ownership change as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. An ownership change can occur through one or more acquisitions of our stock, whether occurring contemporaneously or pursuant to a single plan, by which our shareholders or groups of shareholders, each of whom owns or is deemed to own directly or indirectly at least 5% of our stock, increase their ownership of our stock by more than 50 percentage points over their lowest percentage ownership interest within a rolling three-year period. If that were to happen, we would only be allowed to use a limited amount of our NOLs and credits to offset our taxable income subsequent to an ownership change. The annual limit is obtained by multiplying (i) the aggregate value of our outstanding equity immediately prior to the ownership change (reduced by certain capital contributions made during the immediately preceding two years and certain other items) by (ii) the federal long-term tax-exempt interest rate in effect for the month of the ownership change. In calculating this annual limit, numerous special rules and limitations apply, including provisions dealing with built-in If we were to experience an ownership change at our current stock price levels, we believe that we gains and losses. would be subject to an annual NOL limitation which would result in a material amount of NOLs expiring unused, resulting in a significant impairment to the Company s NOL assets and likely causing a default under our senior secured credit facility.

Currently, we do not believe that we have experienced an ownership change since our recapitalization in 2004, but calculating whether an ownership change has occurred is subject to inherent uncertainty. This uncertainty results from the complexity and ambiguity of the Section 382 provisions, as well as limitations on the knowledge that any publicly traded company can have about the ownership of and transactions in its securities. We and our advisors have analyzed the information available, along with various scenarios of possible future changes of ownership. In light of this analysis, our current stock price and daily trading volume, we believed that if no action was taken it is possible that we would undergo a Section 382 ownership change.

The Rights Plan, as it may be amended and restated, is not designed to protect stockholders against the possibility of a hostile takeover. Instead, it is meant to protect stockholder value by attempting to preserve our ability to use the

NOLs. Because of the value of the NOLs to the Company, your Board of Directors believes it is in the best interest of us and our shareholders to approve the adoption of the Rights Plan. Your Board of Directors has unanimously approved the Rights Plan and is unanimously recommending that stockholders approve the plan at the Annual Meeting.

The following description of the Rights Plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the text of the Rights Plan, which is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A. You are urged to read carefully the Rights Plan in its entirety as the discussion below is only a summary.

Description of Rights Plan

The Rights Plan is intended to act as a deterrent to any person or group acquiring 5% or more of our outstanding Common Stock (an Acquiring Person) without the approval of your Board of Directors. Stockholders who own 5% or more of the Company s outstanding Common Stock as of the close of business on January 20, 2009 will not trigger the Rights Plan so long as they do not (i) acquire additional shares of Common Stock that equal more than 1% of the shares then outstanding or (ii) fall under 5% ownership of Common Stock and then re-acquire 5% or more of the Common Stock. Any rights held by an Acquiring Person are void and may not be exercised. Your Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, exempt any person or group from being deemed an Acquiring Person for purposes of the Rights Plan.

The Rights. Our Board of Directors authorized the issuance of one right per each outstanding share of Common Stock payable to our stockholders of record as of January 30, 2009. Subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of the Rights Plan, if the rights become exercisable, each right would initially represent the right to purchase from us one ten-thousandth of a share of our Series A Junior Preferred Stock for a purchase price of \$20.00 (the Purchase Price). If issued, each fractional share of preferred stock would give the stockholder approximately the same dividend, voting and liquidation rights as does one share of Common Stock. However, prior to exercise, a right does not give its holder any rights as a stockholder, including without limitation any dividend, voting or liquidation rights.

Exercisability. The rights will not be exercisable until the earlier of (i) 10 business days after a public announcement by us that a person or group has become an Acquiring Person and (ii) 10 business days after the commencement of a tender or exchange offer by a person or group for 5% of the Common Stock. We refer to the date that the rights become exercisable as the Distribution Date. Until the Distribution Date, Common Stock certificates will evidence the rights and may contain a notation to that effect. Any transfer of shares of Common Stock prior to the Distribution Date will constitute a transfer of the associated rights. After the Distribution Date, the rights may be transferred other than in connection with the transfer of the underlying shares of Common Stock.

After the Distribution Date, each holder of a right, other than rights beneficially owned by any Acquiring Person (which will thereupon become void), will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of a right and payment of the Purchase Price, that number of shares of Common Stock having a market value of two times the Purchase Price.

Exchange. After the Distribution Date, your Board of Directors may exchange the rights (other than rights owned by an Acquiring Person which will have become void), in whole or in part, at an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock or a fractional share of Series B Preferred Stock (or of a share of a similar class or series of our preferred stock having similar rights, preferences and privileges) of equivalent value, per right (subject to adjustment).

Expiration. The rights and the Rights Plan will expire on the earliest of (i) January 20, 2012, (ii) the time at which the rights are redeemed pursuant to the Rights Agreement (as described below), (iii) the time at which the rights are exchanged pursuant to the Rights Agreement, (iv) your Board of Directors determination that the Rights Plan is no longer necessary for the preservation of the NOLs because of the repeal of Section 382 or any successor statute, (v) the beginning of a taxable year of the Company to which your Board of Directors determines that no tax benefits may be carried forward and (vi) at the conclusion of the Annual Meeting if stockholder approval of the Rights Plan has not been obtained.

Redemption. At any time prior to the time an Acquiring Person becomes such, your Board of Directors may redeem the rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of \$0.01 per right (the Redemption Price). The redemption of the rights may be made effective at such time, on such basis and with such conditions as your Board of Directors in its sole discretion may establish. Immediately upon any redemption of the rights, the

right to exercise the rights will terminate and the only right of the holders of rights will be to receive the Redemption Price.

Anti-Dilution Provisions. The purchase price of the preferred shares, the number of preferred shares issuable and the number of outstanding rights are subject to adjustment to prevent dilution that may occur as a result of certain events, including among others, a stock dividend, a stock split or a reclassification of the preferred shares or Common Stock. No adjustments to the purchase price of less than 1% will be made.

Amendments. Before the Distribution Date, your Board of Directors may amend or supplement the Rights Plan without the consent of the holders of the rights. After the Distribution Date, your Board of Directors may amend or supplement the Rights Plan only to cure an ambiguity, to alter time period provisions, to correct inconsistent provisions, or to make any additional changes to the Rights Plan, but only to the extent that those changes do not impair or adversely affect any rights holder.

Vote Needed for Approval

Approval of the Rights Plan requires the affirmative vote of the majority in voting power of the shares of Common Stock present, or represented by proxy, and entitled to vote on the proposal at the Annual Meeting.

Recommendation of your Board of Directors

YOUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE RIGHTS PLAN.

PROPOSAL 3

APPROVAL OF AMENDED AND RESTATED LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

On March 31, 2009, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan (the Plan), to be effective upon the approval thereof by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual Meeting. The 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan was initially adopted and approved in connection with the Company s emergence from bankruptcy. Such plan was previously amended and restated on July 22, 2005 to provide for a broader range of awards and to reflect applicable regulatory developments.

This amendment and restatement of the Plan incorporates the provisions of the Plan as currently in effect and includes the following key modifications:

Increase in the Number of Authorized Shares. An increase in the number of shares authorized to be issued under the Plan by 15,846,268 shares, for a total number of authorized shares under the Plan of 25,846,268. As of December 31, 2008, 1,153,732 shares remained available for issuance under the Plan. Shareholder approval of the authorized share increase would bring the total amount of shares authorized and available to be issued under the Plan to 17,000,000. The Compensation Committee believes that this additional share reserve will allow the Company to provide the necessary incentives to employees for future years.

Limits on Full-Value Awards. In order to minimize shareholder dilution, a provision is included which provides that the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan will be reduced by 1.25 shares for each share of common stock subject to a full-value award (which is any award other than an option, stock appreciation right (SAR), or award required to be settled in cash).

Eliminating Liberal Share Counting Provisions. The Plan provides that only shares covering awards that are cancelled, expired, forfeited, settled in cash, or otherwise terminated without delivery of shares will again be available for issuance under the Plan. The following shares will not be added back to the aggregate plan limit: (i) shares not issued or delivered as a result of the net settlement of outstanding stock options or SARs; (ii) shares surrendered or withheld as payment of either the exercise price of an award and/or withholding taxes related to an outstanding award; and (iii) shares repurchased on the open market with the proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

Shareholders Re-Approval of Performance Goals. In addition to the foregoing, our shareholders are being asked to approve the performance goals under the Plan so that certain incentive awards granted under the Plan to executive officers of the Company may continue to qualify as exempt performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code, which otherwise generally disallows a corporate tax deduction for certain compensation paid in excess of \$1 million annually to each of the chief executive officer and certain other named executive officers (covered employees). We are asking our shareholders to re-approve the original performance goals as well as the addition of a Value of New Business (VNB) metric, which is an important measure for gauging the profitability of new business. Code Section 162(m) generally requires such performance goals to be approved by the Company s shareholders every five years.

Clarifying and Conforming Amendments. Last, the amendment and restatement of the Plan would adopt certain other minor clarifying and conforming amendments to the Plan to reflect recent developments in applicable law and equity compensation practices, including:

Adding provisions to give the Compensation Committee, at its discretion, the ability to delegate to one or more officers or employees of the Company the authority to make grants of awards to officers (other than any officer subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act) and employees (including any prospective officer or employee) subject to an annual limit as determined and approved at the Compensation Committee s discretion;

Removing any provisions that previously allowed for the use of any unused portion of a Participant s annual Award Limit in a prior year to be available for use in a future year;

Adding provisions to specifically prohibit the cancellation of underwater stock options or SARs in exchange for cash without shareholder approval;

Adding provisions to specifically prohibit the granting of dividend equivalents with respect to awards of stock options (including incentive stock options (ISOs)) and SARs; and

Adding provisions to specifically prohibit the payout of any dividends or dividend equivalents on unvested performance awards.

The Plan originally provided for an authorization of 10,000,000 shares, of which 1,976,437 restricted shares and stock options have vested and/or been exercised. As of December 31, 2008, the Company had total outstanding awards of 5,864,451 options with a weighed average exercise price of \$16.94 and weighted average remaining term of 4.82 years, as well as 1,005,380 restricted and performance shares. As of December 31, 2008, the Plan had 1,153,732 total shares of common stock remaining available for issuance out of the original authorization of 10,000,000 shares.

The limited number of shares remaining would preclude the company from continuing to award equity, an essential component of our pay-for-performance compensation philosophy. Provided that we continue with current granting practices, the remaining pool of shares available are insufficient to make a typical annual grant, and it is estimated that the pool would be fully depleted by May 2009. The Company is requesting an additional 15,846,268 shares, when combined with the 1,153,732 remaining shares, will provide 17,000,000 shares for equity awards in 2009 and subsequent years. This new share pool represents approximately 9.2% of the shares outstanding as of December 31, 2008. The shareholder approved equity is designed to help the Company:

Attract, retain, motivate, and reward officers, employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and consultants and advisors to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, participants);

Provide equitable and competitive compensation opportunities; and

Promote creation of long-term value for shareholders by closely aligning the interests of participants with the interests of shareholders.

The Board and the Compensation Committee believe that awards linked to common stock and awards with terms tied to Company performance can provide incentives for the achievement of important performance objectives and promote the long-term success of the Company. Therefore, they view the Plan as a key element of the Company s overall compensation program.

Reasons for Seeking Shareholder Approval

The Company seeks approval of the Plan by shareholders to meet requirements of the New York Stock Exchange and to satisfy requirements of tax law to help preserve the Company s ability to claim tax deductions for compensation to executive officers. In addition, the board regards shareholder approval of the Plan as desirable and consistent with corporate governance best practices.

Section 162(m) of the Code limits the deductions a publicly held company can claim for compensation in excess of \$1 million in a given year paid to the chief executive officer or any of its three other most highly compensated executive officers other than the chief financial officer serving on the last day of the fiscal year (generally referred to as the named executive officers). Performance-based compensation that meets certain requirements is not counted against the \$1 million deductibility cap, and therefore remains fully deductible. For purposes of Section 162(m), approval of the Plan will be deemed to include approval of the general business criteria upon which performance objectives for Restricted Awards are based, described below under the caption Performance-Based Awards and

Annual Incentive Awards. Shareholder approval of general business criteria, without specific targeted levels of performance, will permit qualification of incentive awards for full tax deductibility for a period of five years under Section 162(m). Shareholder approval of the performance goal inherent in stock options and SARs (increases in the market price of stock) is not subject to a time limit under Section 162(m).

The amendments to the Plan will not go into effect if shareholder approval is not obtained. If such approval is not obtained, the Company may continue to grant awards under the Plan in accordance with its terms and the current share reserve as they existed prior to the amendments.

The following is a summary of the Plan as amended and restated. It is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Plan, which is attached as Annex B to this proxy statement. Shareholders are encouraged to review the Plan carefully.

Summary Description of the Plan

Shares Available. The number of shares that may be issued under the Plan has been increased from 10,000,000 to 25,846,268 shares of common stock. This amount includes the 1,153,732 shares remaining available for grant under the Plan as of December 31, 2008, plus 15,846,268 new shares added to the share authorization and available for awards granted after the Annual Meeting, subject to adjustment in the event of a reorganization, stock split, merger or similar change in the corporate structure of the Company. Shares used for awards assumed in an acquisition do not count against the shares reserved under the Plan.

The issuance of shares pursuant to an award will reduce the total number of shares available under the Plan except that each full-value share awarded and distributed will reduce the total number of shares available under the Plan by 1.25 shares. Also, the full number of shares of common stock subject to an option or SAR will count against the number of shares remaining available for issuance pursuant to awards granted under the plan, even if fewer shares are actually delivered to a participant as a result of a net settlement. Further, any shares tendered or withheld to satisfy the exercise price or tax withholding obligations of an outstanding award shall no longer be available for issuance under the plan. Notwithstanding, shares will remain available for new awards if an award is cancelled, expired, forfeited,

settled in cash, or otherwise terminated without delivery of the shares. Shares delivered under the Plan may be either newly issued or treasury shares.

Per-Person Award Limitations. The Plan includes a limitation on the amount of awards that may be granted to any one participant in a given year in order to qualify awards as performance-based compensation not subject to the limitation on deductibility under Section 162(m) of the Code. Under this annual per-person limitation, no participant may in any year be granted share-denominated awards under the Plan relating to

more than his or her Annual Limit . The Annual Limit equals 1,000,000 shares, subject to adjustment for splits and other extraordinary corporate events. In the case of cash-denominated Awards, the Plan limits performance Awards that may be earned by a participant to the participant s defined Annual Limit, which for this purpose equals \$4 million. The per-person limit for cash-denominated performance Awards does not operate to limit the amount of share-based Awards, and vice versa. These limits apply only to awards under the Plan, and do not limit the Company s ability to enter into compensation arrangements outside of the Plan.

Adjustments. Adjustments to the number and kind of shares subject to the share limitations and specified in the share-based Annual Limit are authorized in the event of a large, special or non-recurring dividend or distribution, recapitalization, stock split, stock dividend, reorganization, business combination, or other similar corporate transaction or event affecting the common stock. The Company is also obligated to adjust outstanding awards upon the occurrence of these types of events to preserve, without enlarging, the rights of participants with respect to such awards. The Compensation Committee may adjust performance conditions and other terms of Awards in response to these kinds of events or to changes in applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles, except that adjustments to Awards intended to qualify as performance-based generally must conform to requirements imposed by Section 162(m).

Eligibility. Executive officers and other employees of the Company and its subsidiaries, and non-employee directors, consultants and others who provide substantial services to the Company and its subsidiaries, are eligible to be granted Awards under the Plan. In addition, any person who has been offered employment by the Company or a subsidiary may be granted Awards, but such prospective grantee may not receive any payment or exercise any right relating to the Award until he or she has commenced employment or the providing of services.

Administration. The Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee, except that the Board may itself act to administer the Plan. (References to the Compensation Committee here mean the Compensation Committee or the full Board exercising authority with respect to a given Award.) Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, the Compensation Committee is authorized to select participants, determine the type and number of Awards to be granted and the number of shares to which Awards will relate or the amount of a performance award, specify times at which Awards will be exercisable or settled, including performance conditions that may be required as a condition thereof, set other terms and conditions of such Awards, prescribe forms of Award agreements, interpret and specify rules and regulations relating to the Plan, and make all other determinations which may be necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. Nothing in the Plan precludes the Compensation Committee from authorizing payment of other compensation, including bonuses based upon performance, to officers and employees, including the executive officers, outside of the Plan. The Plan provides that members of the Compensation Committee and the Board shall not be personally liable, and shall be fully indemnified, in connection with any action, determination, or interpretation taken or made in good faith under the Plan.

Stock Options and SARs. The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant stock options, including both qualified ISOs, which can result in potentially favorable tax treatment to the participant, and non-qualified stock options. SARs may also be granted, entitling the participant to receive the excess of the fair market value of a share on the date of exercise over the SAR s designated base price. The exercise price of an option and the base price of an SAR are determined by the Compensation Committee, but generally may not be less than the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant (except as described below under Other Terms of Awards). The maximum term of each option or SAR will be ten years. Subject to this limit, the times at which each option or SAR will be exercise) at or following termination of employment or upon the occurrence of other events generally are fixed by the Compensation Committee due to the exercise price in cash, shares having a fair market value equal to the exercise price or surrender of outstanding awards or other property having a fair market value equal to the exercise price, as the Compensation Committee may determine. This may include withholding of option shares to pay

the exercise price if that would not result in additional accounting expense. The Compensation Committee also is permitted to establish procedures for broker-assisted cashless exercises. Methods of exercise and settlement and other terms of SARs will be determined by the Compensation Committee. SARs may be exercisable for

shares or for cash, as determined by the Compensation Committee. Options and SARs may be granted on terms that cause such awards not to be subject to Code Section 409A (Section 409A). Alternatively, such awards and cash SARs may have terms that cause those awards to be deemed deferral arrangements subject to Section 409A. The Compensation Committee can require that outstanding options be surrendered in exchange for a grant of SARs with economically matching terms.

Restricted and Deferred Stock/Restricted Stock Units. The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant restricted stock and deferred stock. Prior to the end of the restricted period, shares granted as restricted stock may not be sold, and will be forfeited in the event of termination of employment in specified circumstances. The Compensation Committee will establish the length of the restricted period for awards of restricted stock. Aside from the risk of forfeiture and non-transferability, an award of restricted stock entitles the participant to the rights of a shareholder of the Company, including the right to vote the shares and to receive dividends (which may be forfeitable or non-forfeitable), unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee.

Deferred stock gives a participant the right to receive shares at the end of a specified deferral period. Deferred stock subject to forfeiture conditions may be denominated as an award of restricted stock units. The Compensation Committee will establish any vesting requirements for deferred stock/restricted stock units granted for continuing services. One advantage of restricted stock units, as compared to restricted stock, is that the period during which the award is deferred as to settlement can be extended past the date the award becomes non-forfeitable, so the Compensation Committee can require or permit a participant to continue to hold an interest tied to common stock on a tax-deferred basis. Prior to settlement, deferred stock awards, including restricted stock units, carry no voting or dividend rights or other rights associated with stock ownership, but dividend equivalents (which may be forfeitable or non-forfeitable) will be paid or accrue if authorized by the Compensation Committee.

Other Stock-Based Awards, Stock Bonus Awards, and Awards in Lieu of Other Obligations. The Plan authorizes the Compensation Committee to grant awards that are denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to common stock. The Compensation Committee will determine the terms and conditions of such awards, including the consideration to be paid to exercise awards in the nature of purchase rights, the periods during which awards will be outstanding, and any forfeiture conditions and restrictions on awards. In addition, the Compensation Committee is authorized to grant shares as a bonus free of restrictions, or to grant shares or other awards in lieu of obligations under other plans or compensatory arrangements, subject to such terms as the Compensation Committee may specify.

Performance-Based Awards. The Compensation Committee may grant performance awards, which may be cash-denominated awards or share-based awards. Generally, performance awards require satisfaction of pre-established performance goals, consisting of one or more business criteria and a targeted performance level with respect to such criteria as a condition of awards being granted or becoming exercisable or settled, or as a condition to accelerating the timing of such events. Performance may be measured over a period of any length specified by the Compensation Committee. If so determined by the Compensation Committee, to avoid the limitations on tax deductibility under Section 162(m) of the Code, the business criteria used by the Compensation Committee in establishing performance goals applicable to performance awards to the named executive officers will be selected from among the following:

Gross or net revenue, premiums collected, new annualized premiums, and investment income;

Any earnings or net income measure, including earnings from operations, earnings before taxes, earnings before interest and/or taxes and/or depreciation, statutory earnings before realized gains (losses), or net income available to common shareholders;

Operating earnings per common share (either basic or diluted);

Return on assets, return on investment, return on capital, return on equity, or return on tangible equity;

Economic value created including the value of new business;

Operating margin or profit margin;

Net interest margin;

Asset quality;

Stock price or total stockholder return; and

Strategic business criteria, consisting of one or more objectives based on meeting specified market penetration, total market capitalization, business retention, new product generation, rate increase actions, geographic business expansion goals, cost targets (including cost of capital), investment portfolio yield, risk-based capital, statutory capital, Best Capital Adequacy Ratio, tax net operating loss utilization, customer satisfaction, employee satisfaction, agency ratings, management of employment practices and employee benefits, supervision of litigation and information technology, and goals relating to acquisitions or divestitures of subsidiaries, affiliates or joint ventures.

The Compensation Committee retains discretion to set the level of performance for a given business criteria that will result in the earning of a specified amount under a performance award. These goals may be set with fixed, quantitative targets, targets relative to past Company performance, or targets compared to the performance of other companies, such as a published or special index or a group of companies selected by the Compensation Committee for comparison. The Compensation Committee may specify that these performance measures will be determined before payment of bonuses, capital charges, non-recurring or extraordinary income or expense, or other financial and general and administrative expenses for the performance period, if so specified by the Compensation Committee.

Annual Incentive Awards. One type of performance award that may be granted under the Plan is annual incentive awards that may be settled in cash or in shares upon achievement of pre-established performance objectives achieved during a specified period of up to one year. The Compensation Committee generally must establish the terms of annual incentive awards, including the applicable performance goals and the corresponding amounts payable (subject to per-person limits), and other terms of settlement, and all other terms of these awards, not later than 90 days after the beginning of the fiscal year. As stated above, annual incentive awards granted to named executive officers are intended to constitute performance-based compensation not subject to the limitation on deductibility under Code Section 162(m). In order for such an annual incentive award to be earned, one or more of the performance objectives described in the preceding paragraph will have to be achieved. The Compensation Committee may specify additional requirements for the earning of such awards.

Other Terms of Awards. Awards may be settled in cash, shares, other awards or other property, in the discretion of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee may require or permit participants to defer the settlement of all or part of an award, including shares issued upon exercise of an option subject to compliance with Code Section 409A, in accordance with such terms and conditions as the Compensation Committee may establish, including payment or crediting of interest or dividend equivalents on any deferred amounts. The Plan allows vested but deferred awards to be paid out to the participant in the event of an unforeseeable emergency. The Compensation Committee is authorized to place cash, shares or other property in trusts or make other arrangements to provide for payment of taxes, and may provide for mandatory or elective withholding of a portion of the shares or other property to be distributed in order to satisfy tax obligations. Awards granted under the Plan generally may not be pledged or otherwise encumbered and are not transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, or to a designated beneficiary upon the participant s death, except that the Compensation Committee may permit transfers of awards other than incentive stock options on a case-by-case basis. This flexibility can allow for estate planning or other limited transfers consistent with the incentive purpose of the Plan.

The Compensation Committee is authorized to impose non-competition, non-solicitation, confidentiality, non-disparagement and other requirements as a condition on the participant s right to retain an award or gains realized by exercise or settlement of an award. Awards under the Plan may be granted without a requirement that the participant pay consideration in the form of cash or property for the grant (as distinguished from the exercise), except to the extent required by law. The Compensation Committee may, however, grant awards in substitution for, exchange for or as a buyout of other awards under the Plan, awards under other Company

plans, or other rights to payment from the Company, and may exchange or buy out outstanding awards for cash or other property. The Compensation Committee also may grant awards in addition to and in tandem with other awards or rights. In granting a new award, the Compensation Committee may determine that the in-the-money value or fair value of any surrendered award may be applied to reduce the exercise price of any option, base price of any SAR, or purchase price of any other award.

Dividend Equivalents. The Compensation Committee may grant dividend equivalents with respect to awards other than stock options (including ISOs) or SARs. These are rights to receive payments equal in value to the amount of dividends paid on a specified number of shares of common stock while an award is outstanding. These amounts may be in the form of cash or rights to receive additional Awards or additional shares of common stock having a value equal to the cash amount. The awards may be granted on a stand-alone basis or in conjunction with another award, and the Compensation Committee may specify whether the dividend equivalents will be forfeitable or non-forfeitable. However, the payout of dividends or dividend equivalents on unvested performance-based awards is prohibited. Typically, rights to dividend equivalents are granted in connection with restricted stock units or deferred stock, so that the participant can earn amounts equal to dividends paid on the number of shares covered by the award while the award is outstanding.

Vesting, Forfeitures, and Related Award Terms. The Compensation Committee may in its discretion determine the vesting schedule of options and other awards, the circumstances that will result in forfeiture of the awards, the post-termination exercise periods of options and similar awards, and the events that will result in acceleration of the ability to exercise and the lapse of restrictions, or the expiration of any deferral period, on any Award.

In addition, the Plan provides that following a Change in Control, the Compensation Committee may take any of the following actions with respect to an Award: provide for its full vesting, provide for its termination beyond the date of full vesting, deem performance goals to have been met, provide for the settlement of an award in cash or for termination of the Award or cause the Award to be assumed as part of the transaction. A Change in Control generally includes (A) a merger, reorganization, consolidation, or similar transaction in which the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to the transaction do not own more than 51% of the voting power of the surviving corporation, (B) any person becomes the owner, directly or indirectly of shares representing at least 51% of the Company s voting power, and (C) certain changes of more than half of the membership of the Board of Directors. Change-in-control provisions are limited, however, by applicable restrictions under Code Section 409A.

Amendment and Termination of the Plan. The Board may amend, suspend, discontinue, or terminate the Plan or the Compensation Committee s authority to grant awards hereunder without shareholder approval, except as required by law or regulation or under the New York Stock Exchange rules, which require shareholder approval of any material amendment to plans such as the Plan. Under these rules, however, shareholder approval will not necessarily be required for all amendments which might increase the cost of the Plan or broaden eligibility. Unless earlier terminated, the authority of the Compensation Committee to make grants under the Plan will terminate ten years after the latest shareholder approval of the Plan, and the Plan will terminate when no shares remain available and the Company has no further obligation with respect to any outstanding award.

Federal Income Tax Implications of the Plan

The Company believes that under current law the following federal income tax consequences generally would arise with respect to awards under the Plan.

Options and SARs that are not deemed to be deferral arrangements under Section 409A would have the following tax consequences: The grant of an option or an SAR will create no federal income tax consequences for the participant or the Company. A participant will not have taxable income upon exercising an option which is an ISO, except that the

alternative minimum tax may apply. Upon exercising an option which is not an ISO, the participant generally must recognize ordinary income equal to the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of the freely transferable and nonforfeitable shares acquired on the date of exercise. Upon exercising an SAR, the participant must generally recognize ordinary income equal to the cash

or the fair market value of the shares received. Upon a disposition of shares acquired upon exercise of an ISO before the end of the applicable ISO holding periods, the participant must generally recognize ordinary income equal to the lesser of: (i) the fair market value of the ISO shares at the date of exercise minus the exercise price, or (ii) the amount realized upon the disposition of the ISO shares minus the exercise price. Otherwise, a participant s sale of shares acquired by exercise of an option generally will result in short-term or long-term capital gain or loss measured by the difference between the sale price and the participant s tax basis in such shares. The tax basis normally is the exercise price plus any amount he or she recognized as ordinary income in connection with the option s exercise. A participant s sale of shares acquired by exercise of an SAR generally will result in short-term or long-term capital gain or loss measured by the difference between the sale price and the tax basis in the shares, which generally is the amount he or she recognized as ordinary income in connection with the SAR s exercise.

The Company normally can claim a tax deduction equal to the amount recognized as ordinary income by a participant in connection with an option or SAR, but no tax deduction relating to a participant s capital gains. Accordingly, the Company will not be entitled to any tax deduction with respect to an ISO if the participant holds the shares for the applicable ISO holding periods before selling the shares.

Some options and SARs, such as those with deferral features, and an SAR that is settled in cash, may be subject to Code Section 409A, which regulates deferral arrangements. In such case, the distribution to the participant of shares or cash relating to the award would have to meet certain restrictions in order for the participant not to be subject to tax and a tax penalty at the time of vesting. One significant restriction would be a requirement that the distribution not be controlled by the participant s discretionary exercise of the option or SAR (subject to limited exceptions). If the distribution and other award terms meet applicable requirements under Code Section 409A, the participant would realize ordinary income at the time of distribution rather than earlier, with the amount of ordinary income equal to the distribution date value of the shares less any exercise price actually paid. The Company would not be entitled to a tax deduction at the time of exercise, but would become entitled to a tax deduction at the time shares are delivered at the end of the deferral period.

Awards other than options and SARs that result in a transfer to the participant of cash or shares or other property generally will be structured under the Plan to meet applicable requirements under Code Section 409A. If no restriction on transferability or substantial risk of forfeiture applies to amounts distributed to a participant, the participant generally must recognize ordinary income equal to the cash or the fair market value of shares actually received. Thus, for example, if the Company grants an award of deferred stock that has vested or requires or permits deferral of receipt of cash or shares under a vested award, the participant should not become subject to income tax until the time at which shares are actually delivered, and the Company s right to claim a tax deduction will be deferred until that time. On the other hand, if a restriction on transferability and substantial risk of forfeiture applies to shares or other property actually distributed to a participant under an award (such as, for example, a grant of restricted stock), the participant generally must recognize ordinary income equal to the fair market value of the transferred amounts at the earliest time either the transferability restriction or risk of forfeiture lapses. In all cases, the Company can claim a tax deduction in an amount equal to the ordinary income recognized by the participant, except as discussed below. A participant may elect to be taxed at the time of grant of restricted stock or other property rather than upon lapse of restrictions on transferability or the risk of forfeiture, but if the participant subsequently forfeits such shares or property he or she would not be entitled to any tax deduction, including as a capital loss, for the value of the shares or property on which he or she previously paid tax.

Any award that is deemed to be a deferral arrangement (excluding certain exempted short-term deferrals) will be subject to Code Section 409A. Certain participant elections and the timing of distributions relating to such awards must meet requirements under Code Section 409A for income taxation to be deferred and tax penalties avoided by the participant upon vesting of the award.

As discussed above, compensation that qualifies as performance-based compensation is excluded from the \$1 million deductibility cap of Code Section 162(m), and therefore remains fully deductible by the company that pays it. Under the Plan, options and SARs granted with an exercise price or base price at least equal to 100% of fair market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant, annual incentive awards to

employees the Compensation Committee expects to be named executive officers at the time compensation is received, and certain other awards which are conditioned upon achievement of performance goals are intended to qualify as such performance-based compensation. A number of requirements must be met in order for particular compensation to so qualify, however, so there can be no assurance that such compensation under the Plan will be fully deductible under all circumstances. In addition, other awards under the Plan generally will not so qualify, so that compensation paid to named executive officers in connection with such awards may, to the extent it and other compensation subject to Code Section 162(m) s deductibility cap exceed \$1 million in a given year, not be deductible by the Company as a result of Code Section 162(m).

The foregoing provides only a general description of the application of federal income tax laws to certain awards under the Plan. This discussion is intended for the information of shareholders considering how to vote at the Annual Meeting and not as tax guidance to participants in the Plan, as the consequences may vary with the types of awards made, the identity of the recipients and the method of payment or settlement. Different tax rules may apply, including in the case of variations in transactions that are permitted under the Plan (such as payment of the exercise price of an option by surrender of previously acquired shares). The summary does not address the effects of other federal taxes (including possible golden parachute excise taxes) or taxes imposed under state, local, or foreign tax laws.

Vote Needed for Approval

Approval of the Plan will require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority in voting power of the shares of Common Stock that are present, or represented by proxy, and entitled to vote on the proposal at the Annual Meeting.

Recommendation of your Board of Directors

YOUR BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR APPROVAL OF THE AMENDED AND RESTATED LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN.

39

PROPOSAL 4

RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP served as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2008 and has been selected by the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2009. Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting, will have the opportunity to make a statement if they so desire, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions from the shareholders.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2009.

Fees Paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Aggregate fees billed to the Company in the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were as follows (dollars in millions):

	Decem	Year Ended December 31,	
	2008	2007	
Audit fees(a) Audit-related fees(b) Tax fees All other fees	\$ 5.3 .3	\$ 4.7 .2	
Total	\$ 5.6	\$ 4.9	

- (a) Audit fees were for professional services rendered for the audits of Conseco s consolidated financial statements, statutory and subsidiary audits, issuance of comfort letters, and assistance with review of documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
- (b) Audit-related fees primarily include services provided for employee benefit plan audits and other assurance-related services.

Pre-Approval Policy

The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee has adopted a policy requiring pre-approval of all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services.

In 2007 and 2008, all new engagements of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were pre-approved by the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee for all audit, audit-related, tax and other services.

Report of the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee

In accordance with its written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee provides assistance to the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities for oversight of the integrity of the financial statements, public disclosures and financial reporting practices of the Company. The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors meeting the requirements of applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York Stock Exchange.

In order to discharge its oversight function, the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee works closely with management and with Conseco s independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Company s financial statements and for maintaining effective internal controls. Management is also responsible for assessing and maintaining the effectiveness of internal controls over the financial reporting process in compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing the Company s annual financial statements and expressing an opinion as to whether the statements are fairly stated in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, the independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing the Company s internal controls over financial reporting and for expressing opinions on both the effectiveness of the controls and management s assertion as to this effectiveness.

The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee has implemented procedures to ensure that during the course of each fiscal year it devotes the attention that it deems necessary or appropriate to each of the matters assigned to it under the Committee s charter. To carry out its responsibilities, the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee met 18 times during 2008. Mr. Schneider, Mr. Roberts, Mr. Turner and Ms. Wright have served throughout 2008 and 2009.

In overseeing the preparation of the Company s financial statements, the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee has met with management and the Company s independent registered public accounting firm to review and discuss the consolidated financial statements prior to their issuance and to discuss significant accounting issues. The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee also discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm all communications required by generally accepted auditing standards, including those described in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, Communications with Audit Committees.

The Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee obtained from the independent registered public accounting firm a formal written statement consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees and has discussed with such firm their independence.

Based on the reviews and discussions referenced above, the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Company s audited financial statements be included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Submitted by the Audit and Enterprise Risk Committee:

Neal C. Schneider, Chair Philip R. Roberts John G. Turner Doreen A. Wright

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Conseco s directors and executive officers, and each person who is the beneficial owner of more than 10 percent of any class of Conseco s outstanding equity securities, to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock and other equity securities of Conseco. Specific due dates for these reports have been established by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and Conseco is required to disclose any failure by such persons to file such reports for fiscal year 2008 by the prescribed dates. Officers, directors and greater than 10 percent beneficial owners are required to furnish Conseco with copies of all reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 16(a). To Conseco s knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of the reports furnished to Conseco and written representations that no other reports were required, all filings required pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 applicable to Conseco s officers, directors and greater than 10 percent beneficial owners were timely made by each such person during the year ended December 31, 2008, with the exception of one report by Mr. Bostick (filed one day late relating to the purchase of 5,000 shares).

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2010 ANNUAL MEETING

Any proper proposal which a shareholder wishes to have included in the Board s proxy statement and form of proxy for the 2010 Annual Meeting must be received by Conseco by December 18, 2009. Such proposals must meet the requirements set forth in the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission in order to be eligible for inclusion in the proxy statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting. In addition to the Securities and Exchange Commission rules concerning shareholder proposals, the Company s Bylaws establish advance notice procedures with regard to certain matters, including shareholder nominations for directors, to be brought before a meeting of shareholders at which directors are to be elected. In the case of an annual meeting, notice must be received by the Secretary of the Company not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year s annual meeting. In the case of a special meeting of stockholders at which directors are to be elected, notice of a stockholder nomination must be received by the Secretary of the Company no later than the close of business on the 10th day following the earlier of the day on which notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or public disclosure of the meeting was made. A nomination will not be considered if it does not comply with these notice procedures and the additional requirements set forth in our Bylaws. Please note that these bylaw requirements are separate from the Securities and Exchange Commission s requirements to have a shareholder nomination or other proposal included in our proxy statement. Any shareholder who wishes to submit a proposal to be acted upon at the 2010 Annual Meeting or who wishes to nominate a candidate for election as director should obtain a copy of these bylaw provisions and may do so by written request addressed to the Secretary of Conseco at 11825 North Pennsylvania Street, Carmel, Indiana 46032.

ANNUAL REPORT

Conseco s Annual Report for 2008 (which includes its annual report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission) is being mailed with this proxy statement to all holders of common stock as of March 16, 2009. The Annual Report is not part of the proxy solicitation material. If you wish to receive an additional copy of the Annual Report for 2008 or the Form 10-K without charge, please contact Conseco Investor Relations, 11825 North Pennsylvania Street, Carmel, Indiana 46032; telephone (317) 817-2893 or email ir@conseco.com.

ADDITIONAL PARTICIPANT INFORMATION

Under applicable SEC rules, the members of the Conseco Board of Directors are considered participants in this proxy solicitation as is Edward J. Bonach, the Company s Chief Financial Officer, who may solicit proxies on behalf of the Company. The address for each of the directors and for Mr. Bonach is c/o Conseco, Inc., 11825 N. Pennsylvania St., Carmel, IN 46032.

Information regarding the Conseco securities owned by the members of the Board of Directors and by Mr. Bonach is set forth on pages 3-4 of this proxy statement. For information regarding purchases and sales of Conseco securities during the past two years by the members of the Board of Directors and by Mr. Bonach, see Schedule I of this proxy statement.

Except as set forth in this proxy statement (including the schedule hereto), (i) during the past 10 years, no participant in this solicitation has been convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors); (ii) no participant in this solicitation directly or indirectly beneficially owns any securities of the Company; (iii) no participant in this solicitation owns any securities of the Company which are owned of record but not beneficially; (iv) no participant in this solicitation has purchased or sold any securities of the Company during the past two years; (v) no part of the purchase price or market value of the securities of the Company owned by any participant in this solicitation is represented by funds borrowed or otherwise obtained for the purpose of acquiring or holding such securities; (vi) no participant in this solicitation is, or within the past year was, a party to any contract, arrangements or understandings with any person with respect to any securities of the Company, including, but not limited to, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements, puts or calls, guarantees against loss or guarantees of profit, division of losses or profits, or the giving or withholding of proxies; (vii) no associate of any participant in this solicitation owns beneficially, directly or indirectly, any securities of the Company; (viii) no participant in this solicitation owns beneficially, directly or indirectly, any securities of any parent or subsidiary of the Company; (ix) no participant in this solicitation or any of his or her associates was a party to any transaction, or series of similar transactions, since the beginning of the Company s last fiscal year, or is a party to any currently proposed transaction, or series of similar transactions, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was or is to be a party, in which the amount involved exceeds \$120,000; (x) no participant in this solicitation or any of his or her associates has any arrangement or understanding with any person with respect to any future employment by the Company or its affiliates, or with respect to any future transactions to which the Company or any of its affiliates will or may be a party; and (xi) no person, including the participants in this solicitation, has a substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise in any matter to be acted on at the Annual Meeting.

OTHER MATTERS

Management knows of no other matters which may be presented at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters should properly come before the meeting, the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy will vote in accordance with their best judgment on such matters.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Karl W. Kindig Secretary

April 22, 2009

SCHEDULE I

PURCHASES OF CONSECO, INC. SECURITIES DURING THE PAST TWO YEARS

Set forth below is information regarding purchases of Conseco, Inc. common stock during the past two years by the members of the Board of Directors and by Edward Bonach, the Company s Chief Financial Officer. There were no sales by such individuals of any Conseco, Inc. securities during the past two years and no purchases of any Conseco, Inc. securities other than common stock. Except as otherwise specified, all purchases were made in the open market.

		Number of	Per Share Purchase
Name	Date of Purchase	Shares	Price
Glenn Hilliard	September 18, 2008	59,500	\$ 4.70
	September 19, 2008	40,500	6.42
Donna James	August 9, 2007	1,000	14.93
	April 3, 2009	10,000	1.04
Debra Perry	August 9, 2007	5,000	14.79
James Prieur	March 13, 2007	100,000	16.66
	August 8, 2007	10,000	15.10
	August 27, 2007	10,000	14.14
	November 2, 2007	10,000	13.72
	September 18, 2008	200,000	4.63
	November 17, 2008	20,270	2.25
	November 18, 2008	19,730	2.48
	April 2, 2009	200,000	1.11
Philip Roberts	August 9, 2007	5,000	14.98
Neal Schneider	August 15, 2007	2,500	14.62
Michael Shannon	August 14, 2007	30,000	14.74
	August 15, 2007	37,000	14.78
John Turner	May 15, 2007	5,000	18.79
	August 7, 2007	2,000	16.99
Doreen Wright	August 9, 2007	2,500	14.77
Edward Bonach	August 8, 2007	7,500	15.69
	August 27, 2007	2,500	14.11
	November 2, 2007	1,000	13.76
	September 30, 2008	5,000	3.99
	November 20, 2008	1,000	2.00

I-1

ANNEX A

SECTION 382 RIGHTS AGREEMENT

CONSECO, INC. and AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY, LLC as Rights Agent

Dated as of January 20, 2009

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 2.Appointment of Right CertificatesA-3Section 3.Issuance of Right CertificatesA-3Section 4.Form of Right CertificatesA-5Section 5.Countersignature and RegistrationA-5Section 6.Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Exchange of Right Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right CertificatesA-5Section 7.Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of RightsA-6Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-17Section 15.Right Certificate HoldersA-18Section 16.Agreement of Right AgentA-18Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and Amendments <t< th=""><th>Section 1.</th><th>Certain Definitions</th><th>A-1</th></t<>	Section 1.	Certain Definitions	A-1
Section 4.Form of Right CertificatesA-5Section 5.Countersignature and RegistrationA-5Section 6.Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Exchange of Right Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right CertificatesA-5Section 7.Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of RightsA-6Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-14Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-17Section 15.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Cretain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights Agreement <td< td=""><td>Section 2.</td><td>Appointment of Rights Agent</td><td>A-3</td></td<>	Section 2.	Appointment of Rights Agent	A-3
Section 5.Countersignature and RegistrationA-5Section 6.Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Exchange of Right Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right CertificatesA-5Section 7.Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of RightsA-6Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Right of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-18Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-22Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 30.Determ	Section 3.	Issuance of Right Certificates	A-3
Section 6.Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Exchange of Right Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right CertificatesA-5Section 7.Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of RightsA-6Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-18Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-23Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Secti	Section 4.	Form of Right Certificates	A-5
Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right CertificatesA-5Section 7.Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of RightsA-6Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Right and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-20Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-21Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-23Section 23.RedemptionA-23Section 24.ExchangeA-24Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-24Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-2	Section 5.	Countersignature and Registration	A-5
Section 7.Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of RightsA-6Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-20Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-21Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-23Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.NoticesA-24Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Sectio	Section 6.	Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Exchange of Right Certificates; Mutilated,	
Section 8.Cancellation and Destruction of Right CertificatesA-7Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-18Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.NoticesA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-24		Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right Certificates	A-5
Section 9.Availability of Shares of Preferred StockA-7Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-22Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-24Section 33.CounterpartsA-24	Section 7.	Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of Rights	A-6
Section 10.Preferred Stock Record DateA-8Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Charge of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-22Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 24.SuccessorsA-24Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-24Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-	Section 8.	Cancellation and Destruction of Right Certificates	A-7
Section 11.Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of RightsA-8Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Charge of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuace of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-22Section 24.ExchargeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 9.	Availability of Shares of Preferred Stock	A-7
Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 15.Right of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-18Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 10.	Preferred Stock Record Date	A-8
Section 12.Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of SharesA-13Section 13.Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings PowerA-14Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notices of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 11.	Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of Rights	A-8
Section 14.Fractional Rights and Fractional SharesA-16Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 12.		A-13
Section 15.Rights of ActionA-17Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 13.	Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings Power	A-14
Section 16.Agreement of Right HoldersA-17Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-21Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-22Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 14.	Fractional Rights and Fractional Shares	A-16
Section 17.Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a StockholderA-18Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-24Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 15.	Rights of Action	A-17
Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-24	Section 16.	Agreement of Right Holders	A-17
Section 18.Concerning the Rights AgentA-18Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-19Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-20Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-23Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-24	Section 17.	Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder	A-18
Section 19.Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights AgentA-18Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 18.		A-18
Section 20.Duties of Rights AgentA-19Section 21.Change of Rights AgentA-20Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 19.		A-18
Section 22.Issuance of New Right CertificatesA-21Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 20.		A-19
Section 23.RedemptionA-21Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 21.	Change of Rights Agent	A-20
Section 24.ExchangeA-22Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 22.	Issuance of New Right Certificates	A-21
Section 25.Notice of Certain EventsA-23Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 23.	Redemption	A-21
Section 26.NoticesA-23Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 24.	Exchange	A-22
Section 27.Supplements and AmendmentsA-24Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 25.	Notice of Certain Events	A-23
Section 28.SuccessorsA-24Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 26.	Notices	A-23
Section 29.Benefits of this Rights AgreementA-24Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 27.	Supplements and Amendments	A-24
Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 28.	Successors	A-24
Section 30.Determinations and Actions by the Board of DirectorsA-24Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 29.	Benefits of this Rights Agreement	A-24
Section 31.SeverabilityA-24Section 32.Governing LawA-25Section 33.CounterpartsA-25	Section 30.		A-24
Section 33. Counterparts A-25	Section 31.	•	A-24
Section 33. Counterparts A-25	Section 32.		A-25
	Section 33.		A-25
	Section 34.	Descriptive Headings	A-25

A-i

INDEX OF DEFINED TERMS

	Page
5% Shareholder	1
Acquiring Person	1
Affiliate	1
Associate	1
Authorized Officer	19
Beneficial Owner	1
Beneficial Ownership	1
beneficially own	1
Book Entry	1
Business Day	2
close of business	
Code	2
Common Stock	2 2 2
Common Stock equivalents	9
Company	1
Current Value	9
Distribution Date	3
equivalent preferred shares	10
Exchange Act	2
Exchange Ratio	22
Exempted Entity	2
Expiration Date	6
Final Expiration Date	2
Grandfathered Person	2,39
invalidation time	9
NOLs	2
NYSE	
Percentage Stock Ownership	2 2 2 2
Person	2
Preferred Stock	2
Principal Party	15
Purchase Price	6
Record Date	1
Receive Date	6
Redemption Price	21
Right	1
Right Certificate	4
Rights Agent	1
Rights Agreement	1
Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date	9
Section 382	3
Securities Act	3
Security	11
Security	11

	Page
Spread	9
Stock Acquisition Date	3
Subsidiary	3
Substitution Period	10
Summary of Rights	4
Tax Benefits	3
Trading Day	11
Treasury Regulations	3
Trust	22
Trust Agreement	22

A-iii

Table of Contents

SECTION 382 RIGHTS AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, (a) the Company and certain of its Subsidiaries have generated net operating losses for United States federal income tax purposes (NOLs); (b) such NOLs may potentially provide valuable Tax Benefits (as defined below) to the Company; (c) the Company desires to avoid an ownership change within the meaning of Section 382 (as defined below), and thereby preserve the ability to utilize such NOLs; and (d) in furtherance of such objective, the Company desires to enter into this Rights Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company has on January 20, 2009 authorized and declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a <u>Right</u>) for each share of Common Stock (as defined below) of the Company outstanding as of the close of business (as defined below) on January 30, 2009 (the <u>Record Date</u>), each Right representing the right to purchase one one-thousandth (subject to adjustment) of a share of Preferred Stock (as defined below), upon the terms and subject to the conditions herein set forth, and the Board of Directors has further authorized and directed the issuance of one Right (subject to adjustment as provided herein) with respect to each share of Common Stock that shall become outstanding between the Record Date and the earlier of the Distribution Date and the Expiration Date (as such terms are hereinafter defined); <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that Rights may be issued with respect to shares of Common Stock that shall become outstanding after the Distribution Date and prior to the Expiration Date in accordance with <u>Section 22</u>.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual agreements herein set forth, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. <u>Certain Definitions</u>. For purposes of this Rights Agreement, the following terms have the meaning indicated:

(a) <u>5% Shareholder</u> shall mean a Person or group of Persons that is a 5-percent shareholder of the Corporation pursuant to Treasury Regulation 1.382-2T(g).

(b) <u>Acquiring Person</u> shall mean any Person (as defined below) who is or shall have become a 5% Shareholder, whether or not such Person continues to be a 5% Shareholder, but shall not include (i) an Exempted Entity (as defined below), or (ii) any Grandfathered Person (as defined below); <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that a Person will not be deemed to have become an Acquiring Person solely as a result of (x) a reduction in the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, (y) the exercise of any options, warrants, rights or similar interests (including restricted stock) granted by the Company to its directors, officers and employees, or (z) any unilateral grant of any security by the Company, unless and until such time as such Person thereafter acquires beneficial ownership of any additional shares of Common Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may, in its sole discretion, determine that any Person shall not be deemed to be an Acquiring Person for any purposes of this Agreement.

(c) <u>Affiliate</u> and <u>Associate</u> shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and to the extent not included within the foregoing clause of this <u>Section 1(c)</u>, shall also include, with respect to any Person, any other Person whose Common Stock would be deemed constructively owned by such first Person pursuant to the provisions of Section 382 and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that no Exempted Entity shall be deemed an Affiliate or an Associate.

(d) Except as may expressly be set forth elsewhere herein, a Person shall be deemed the <u>Beneficial Owner</u> of, shall be deemed to have <u>Beneficial Ownership</u> of and shall be deemed to <u>beneficially</u> own any securities which such Person directly owns, or would be deemed to constructively own, pursuant to Section 382 and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder.

(e) <u>Book Entry</u> shall mean an uncertificated book entry for the shares of Common Stock.

(f) <u>Business Day</u> shall mean any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, or a day on which banking institutions in the State of Indiana, or the State in which the principal office of the Rights Agent is located, are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

(g) <u>close of business</u> on any given date shall mean 5:00 P.M., New York, New York time, on such date; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that if such date is not a Business Day it shall mean 5:00 P.M., New York, New York time, on the next succeeding Business Day.

(h) <u>Code</u> shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(i) <u>*Common Stock*</u> when used with reference to the Company shall mean the common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Company. Common Stock when used with reference to any Person other than the Company shall mean the capital stock (or, in the case of an entity other than a corporation, the equivalent equity interest) with the greatest voting power of such other Person or, if such other Person is a subsidiary of another Person, the Person or Persons which ultimately control such first-mentioned Person.

(j) <u>Exchange Act</u> shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

(k) <u>Exempted Entity</u> shall mean (1) the Company, (2) any Subsidiary (as defined below) of the Company, (in the case of subclauses (1) and (2) including, without limitation, in its fiduciary capacity), (3) any employee benefit plan of the Company or of any Subsidiary of the Company (4) any entity or trustee holding Common Stock for or pursuant to the terms of any such plan or for the purpose of funding any such plan or funding other employee benefits for employees of the Company or of any Subsidiary of the Company or (5) any Person (together with its Affiliates and Associates) whose status as a 5% Shareholder will, in the sole judgment of the Board of Directors, not jeopardize or endanger the availability to the Company of its net operating loss carryforwards to be used to offset its taxable income in such year or future years (but in the case of any Person determined by the Board of Directors to be an Exempted Entity pursuant to this subparagraph (k)(5) only for so long as such Person s status as a 5% Shareholder continues not to jeopardize or endanger the availability of such net operating loss carryforwards, as determined by the Board of Directors in its good faith discretion).

(1) *Final Expiration Date* shall mean the earliest to occur of (i) the close of business on January 20, 2012, (ii) the first anniversary of adoption of this Rights Agreement if stockholder approval of this Rights Agreement has not been received by or on such date, (iii) the adjournment of the first annual meeting of the stockholders of the Company following the date hereof if stockholder approval of this Rights Agreement has not been received prior to such time, (iv) the repeal of Section 382 or any successor statute if the Board of Directors determines that this Rights Agreement is no longer necessary for the preservation of Tax Benefits or (v) the beginning of a taxable year of the Company to which the Board of Directors determines that no Tax Benefits may be carried forward.

(m) <u>Grandfathered Person</u> shall mean any Person who would otherwise qualify as an Acquiring Person as of the date of this Rights Agreement, unless and until such time as such Person after the date of this Rights Agreement acquires beneficial ownership of additional shares of Common Stock representing more than 1% of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding.

(n) <u>NOLs</u> shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals to this Rights Agreement.

(o) <u>NYSE</u> shall mean the New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

(p) <u>*Percentage Stock Ownership*</u> shall mean the percentage stock ownership interest as determined in accordance with Treasury Regulation § 1.382-2T(g), (h), (j) and (k).

Table of Contents

(q) <u>Person</u> shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, business trust, joint stock company, partnership, trust association, limited liability company, limited partnership, or other entity, or any group of Persons making a coordinated acquisition of shares or otherwise treated as an entity within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.382-3(a)(1), or otherwise and shall include any successor (by merger or otherwise) of any such entity.

(r) <u>Preferred Stock</u> shall mean the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Company having the rights and preferences set forth in the Form of Certificate of Designations attached to this Rights Agreement as <u>Exhibit A</u> and, to the extent that there is a not sufficient number of shares of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock authorized to permit the full exercise of the Rights, any other series of preferred stock of the Company designated for such purpose containing terms substantially similar to the terms of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

(s) <u>Section 382</u> shall mean Section 382 of the Code, or any comparable successor provision.

(t) <u>Securities Act</u> shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(u) <u>Stock Acquisition Date</u> shall mean the first date of public announcement (which for purposes of this definition shall include, without limitation, a report filed pursuant to Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) by the Company or an Acquiring Person that an Acquiring Person has become such or such earlier date as a majority of the Board of Directors shall become aware of the existence of an Acquiring Person.

(v) <u>Subsidiary</u> of any Person shall mean any corporation or other entity of which securities or other ownership interests having ordinary voting power sufficient to elect a majority of the board of directors or other persons performing similar functions are beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by such Person, and any corporation or other entity that is otherwise controlled by such Person.

(w) <u>*Tax Benefits*</u> shall mean the net operating loss carryovers, capital loss carryovers, general business credit carryovers, alternative minimum tax credit carryovers and foreign tax credit carryovers, as well as any loss or deduction attributable to a net unrealized built-in loss within the meaning of Section 382, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder, of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(x) <u>*Treasury Regulations*</u> shall mean any income tax regulations promulgated under the Code, including any amendments thereto.

Any determination required by the definitions in this Agreement shall be made by the Board of Directors in its good faith judgment, which determination shall be binding on the Rights Agent and the holders of Rights.

Section 2. <u>Appointment of Rights Agent</u>. The Company hereby appoints the Rights Agent to act as agent for the Company and the holders of the Rights (who, in accordance with <u>Section 3</u> hereof, shall prior to the Distribution Date also be the holders of Common Stock) in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof, and the Rights Agent hereby accepts such appointment. The Company may from time to time appoint such co-Rights Agents as it may deem necessary or desirable upon ten (10) days prior notice to the Rights Agent. The Rights Agent shall have no duty to supervise, and shall in no event be liable for the acts or omissions of any such co-Rights Agent.

Section 3. *Issuance of Right Certificates.* (a) Until the close of business on the earlier of (i) the tenth Business Day after the Stock Acquisition Date (or, if the Stock Acquisition Date occurs before the Record Date, the close of business on the Record Date) or (ii) the tenth Business Day (or such later date as may be determined by action of the Board of Directors prior to such time as any Person becomes an Acquiring Person) after the date of the commencement by any Person (other than an Exempted Entity) of, or of the first public announcement of the intention of such Person (other than an Exempted Entity) becoming an Acquiring Person (irrespective of whether any shares are actually purchased pursuant to any such offer) (including, in the case of both clause (i) and (ii), any such date which is after the date of this Rights Agreement and prior to the issuance of the Rights) (the earlier of such dates being herein referred to as the <u>Distribution Date</u>), (x) the Rights will be evidenced (subject to the provisions of

<u>Section 3(b)</u> hereof) by the certificates for Common Stock registered in the names of the holders thereof, and not by separate Right Certificates (as defined below), and (y) the Rights will be transferable only in connection with the transfer of Common Stock. As soon as practicable after the Distribution Date, the Company will prepare and execute, the

Rights Agent will countersign, and the Company will send or cause to be sent (and the Rights Agent will, if requested, send) by first-class, postage-prepaid mail, to each record holder of Common Stock as of the close of business on the Distribution Date (other than any Acquiring Person or any Associate or Affiliate of an Acquiring Person), at the address of such holder shown on the records of the Company, a Right Certificate, in substantially the form of Exhibit B hereto (a <u>Right Certificate</u>), evidencing one Right (subject to adjustment as provided herein) for each share of Common Stock so held. In the event that an adjustment in the number of Rights per share of Common Stock has been made pursuant to <u>Section 11</u> or <u>13</u> hereof, at the time of distribution of the Rights Certificates, the Company shall make the necessary and appropriate rounding adjustments (in accordance with <u>Section 14(a)</u> hereof), so that Rights Certificates representing only whole numbers of Rights are distributed and cash is paid in lieu of any fractional Rights. As of and after the Distribution Date, the Rights will be evidenced solely by such Right Certificates.

(b) As promptly as practicable following the Record Date, the Company will send a copy of a Summary of Rights to Purchase Shares of Preferred Stock, in substantially the form of <u>Exhibit C</u> hereto (the <u>Summary of Rights</u>), by first-class, postage-prepaid mail, to each record holder of Common Stock and holder of Book Entry shares as of the close of business on the Record Date, at the address of such holder shown on the records of the Company as the address at which such holder has consented to receive notice. With respect to shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the Record Date, until the Distribution Date, the Rights associated with such shares will be evidenced by the share certificate for such shares of Common Stock registered in the names of the holders thereof or the Book Entry shares, in each case together with the Summary of Rights. Until the Distribution Date (or, if earlier, the Expiration Date), the surrender for transfer of any certificate for Common Stock or Book Entry shares outstanding on the Record Date, with or without a copy of the Summary of Rights, shall also constitute the transfer of the Rights associated with the shares of Common Stock represented by such certificate or Book Entry shares.

(c) Rights shall be issued in respect of all shares of Common Stock issued or disposed of (including, without limitation, upon disposition of Common Stock out of treasury stock or issuance or reissuance of Common Stock out of authorized but unissued shares) after the Record Date but prior to the earlier of the Distribution Date and the Expiration Date, or in certain circumstances provided in <u>Section 22</u> hereof, after the Distribution Date. Certificates issued for Common Stock (including, without limitation, upon transfer of outstanding Common Stock, disposition of Common Stock out of treasury stock or issuance or reissuance of Common Stock out of authorized but unissued shares) after the Record Date but prior to the earlier of the Distribution Date and the issued for Common Stock out of treasury stock or issuance or reissuance of Common Stock out of authorized but unissued shares) after the Record Date but prior to the earlier of the Distribution Date and the Expiration Date shall have impressed on, printed on, written on or otherwise affixed to them the following legend:

With respect to any Book Entry shares of Common Stock, such legend shall be included in a notice to the registered holder of such shares in accordance with applicable law. With respect to such certificates containing the foregoing legend, or any notice of the foregoing legend delivered to holders of Book Entry shares, until the Distribution Date, the Rights associated with the Common Stock represented by such certificates or Book Entry shares shall be evidenced by such certificates or Book Entry shares alone, and the surrender for transfer of any such certificate or Book Entry share, except as otherwise provided herein, shall also constitute the transfer of the Rights associated with

the Common Stock represented thereby. In the event that the Company purchases or otherwise acquires any Common Stock after the Record Date but prior to the

Distribution Date, any Rights associated with such Common Stock shall be deemed cancelled and retired so that the Company shall not be entitled to exercise any Rights associated with the shares of Common Stock which are no longer outstanding.

Notwithstanding this paragraph (c), neither the omission of a legend nor the failure to deliver the notice of such legend required hereby shall affect the enforceability of any part of this Rights Agreement or the rights of any holder of the Rights.

Section 4. *Form of Right Certificates*. The Right Certificates (and the forms of election to purchase shares and of assignment to be printed on the reverse thereof) shall be substantially in the form set forth in <u>Exhibit B</u> hereto and may have such marks of identification or designation and such legends, summaries or endorsements printed thereon as the Company may deem appropriate and as are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Rights Agreement, or as may be required to comply with any applicable law or with any rule or regulation made pursuant thereto or with any rule or regulation of the NYSE or of any other stock exchange or automated quotation system on which the Rights may from time to time be listed, or to conform to usage. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Right Certificates shall entitle the holders thereof to purchase such number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock as shall be set forth therein at the Purchase Price (as determined pursuant to <u>Section 7</u>), but the amount and type of securities purchasable upon the exercise of each Right and the Purchase Price thereof shall be subject to adjustment as provided herein.

Section 5. <u>Countersignature and Registration</u>. (a) The Right Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the Company by the Chief Executive Officer, the President, any of the Vice Presidents or the Treasurer of the Company, either manually or by facsimile signature, shall have affixed thereto the Company s seal or a facsimile thereof and shall be attested by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company, either manually or by facsimile signature. The Right Certificates shall be countersigned by the Rights Agent, either manually or by facsimile signature, and shall not be valid for any purpose unless countersigned. In case any officer of the Company who shall have signed any of the Right Certificates shall cease to be such officer of the Company before countersignature by the Rights Agent and issuance and delivered by the Company with the same force and effect as though the Person who signed such Right Certificates had not ceased to be such officer of the Company; and any Right Certificate may be signed on behalf of the Company by any Person who, at the actual date of the execution of such Right Certificate, shall be a proper officer of the Company to sign such Right Certificate, although at the date of the execution of this Rights Agreement any such Person was not such an officer.

(a) Following the Distribution Date, the Rights Agent will keep or cause to be kept, at an office or agency designated for such purpose, books for registration and transfer of the Right Certificates issued hereunder. Such books shall show the names and addresses of the respective holders of the Right Certificates, the number of Rights evidenced on its face by each of the Right Certificates and the date of each of the Right Certificates.

Section 6. *Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Exchange of Right Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Right Certificates.* (a) Subject to the provisions of this Rights Agreement, at any time after the close of business on the Distribution Date, and prior to the close of business on the Expiration Date, any Right Certificate or Right Certificates may be transferred, split up, combined or exchanged for another Right Certificate or Right Certificates, entitling the registered holder to purchase a like number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock (or, following such time, other securities, cash or assets as the case may be) as the Right Certificate or Right Certificates surrendered then entitled such holder to purchase. Any registered holder desiring to transfer, split up, combine or exchange any Right Certificate or Right Certificates shall make such request in writing delivered to the Rights Agent, and shall surrender the Right Certificate or Right Certificates to be transferred, split up, combined or exchanged at the office or agency of the Rights Agent designated for such purpose. Thereupon the Rights Agent, subject to the

provisions of this Rights Agreement, shall countersign and deliver to the Person entitled thereto a Right Certificate or Right Certificates, as the case may be, as so requested. The Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax

or governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any transfer, split up, combination or exchange of Right Certificates.

(b) Subject to the provisions of this Rights Agreement, at any time after the Distribution Date and prior to the Expiration Date, upon receipt by the Company and the Rights Agent of evidence reasonably satisfactory to them of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of a Right Certificate, and, in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to them, and, at the Company s request, reimbursement to the Company and the Rights Agent of all reasonable expenses incidental thereto, and upon surrender to the Rights Agent and cancellation of the Right Certificate if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Right Certificate of like tenor to the Rights Agent for delivery to the registered holder in lieu of the Right Certificate so lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated.

Section 7. *Exercise of Rights, Purchase Price; Expiration Date of Rights.* (a) Except as otherwise provided herein, the Rights shall become exercisable on the Distribution Date, and thereafter the registered holder of any Right Certificate may, subject to Section 11(a)(ii) hereof and except as otherwise provided herein, exercise the Rights evidenced thereby in whole or in part upon surrender of the Right Certificate, with the form of election to purchase on the reverse side thereof duly executed, to the Rights Agent at the office or agency of the Rights Agent designated for such purpose, together with payment of the Purchase Price for each one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock (or other securities, cash or assets, as the case may be) as to which the Rights are exercised, at any time which is both after the Distribution Date and prior to the time (the <u>Expiration Date</u>) that is the earliest of (i) the Final Expiration Date, (ii) the time at which the Rights are redeemed as provided in Section 23 hereof (the <u>Redemption Date</u>) or (iii) the time at which such Rights are exchanged as provided in Section 24 hereof.

(b) The purchase price (the <u>Purchase Price</u>) shall be initially \$20.00 for each one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock purchasable upon the exercise of a Right. The Purchase Price and the number of shares of Preferred Stock or other securities or property to be acquired upon exercise of a Right shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in <u>Sections 11</u> and <u>13</u> hereof and shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America in accordance with <u>paragraph (c)</u> of this <u>Section 7</u>.

(c) Except as otherwise provided herein, upon receipt of a Right Certificate representing exercisable Rights, with the form of election to purchase duly executed, accompanied by payment of the aggregate Purchase Price for the number of shares of Preferred Stock to be purchased and an amount equal to any applicable transfer tax required to be paid by the holder of such Right Certificate in accordance with Section 6 hereof, in cash or by certified check, cashier s check or money order payable to the order of the Company, the Rights Agent shall thereupon promptly (i) (A) requisition from any transfer agent of the Preferred Stock, or make available if the Rights Agent is the transfer agent for the Preferred Stock, certificates for the number of shares of Preferred Stock to be purchased (and the Company hereby irrevocably authorizes its transfer agent to comply with all such requests), or (B) requisition from the depositary agent appointed by the Company depositary receipts representing interests in such number of shares of Preferred Stock as are to be purchased, in which case certificates for the Preferred Stock represented by such receipts shall be deposited by the transfer agent with the depositary agent (and the Company hereby directs the depositary agent to comply with such request), (ii) when appropriate, requisition from the Company the amount of cash to be paid in lieu of issuance of fractional shares in accordance with <u>Section 14</u> hereof, (iii) promptly after receipt of such certificates or depositary receipts, cause the same to be delivered to or upon the order of the registered holder of such Right Certificate, registered in such name or names as may be designated by such holder and (iv) when appropriate, after receipt of the cash requisitioned from the Company, promptly deliver such cash to or upon the order of the registered holder of such Right Certificate.

(d) Except as otherwise provided herein, in case the registered holder of any Right Certificate shall exercise less than all the Rights evidenced thereby, a new Right Certificate evidencing Rights equivalent to the exercisable Rights remaining unexercised shall be issued by the Rights Agent to the registered holder of such Right Certificate or to his

duly authorized assigns, subject to the provisions of <u>Section 14</u> hereof.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in this Rights Agreement to the contrary, neither the Rights Agent nor the Company shall be obligated to undertake any action with respect to a registered holder of Rights upon the

occurrence of any purported transfer or exercise of Rights pursuant to <u>Section 6</u> hereof or this <u>Section 7</u> unless such registered holder shall have (i) completed and signed the certificate contained in the form of assignment or election to purchase set forth on the reverse side of the Right Certificate surrendered for such transfer or exercise and (ii) provided such additional evidence of the identity of the Beneficial Owner (for the purposes of this Section 7(e), as such term is defined in Rule 13d-3 or 13d-5 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, former Beneficial Owner and/or Affiliates or Associates thereof as the Company shall reasonably request.

Section 8. <u>Cancellation and Destruction of Right Certificates</u>. All Right Certificates surrendered for the purpose of exercise, transfer, split up, combination or exchange shall, if surrendered to the Company or to any of its agents, be delivered to the Rights Agent for cancellation or in cancelled form, or, if surrendered to the Rights Agent, shall be cancelled by it, and no Right Certificates shall be issued in lieu thereof except as expressly permitted by any of the provisions of this Rights Agreement. The Company shall deliver to the Rights Agent for cancellation and retirement, and the Rights Agent shall so cancel and retire, any other Right Certificate purchased or acquired by the Company otherwise than upon the exercise thereof. The Rights Agent shall deliver all cancelled Right Certificates to the Company, or shall, at the written request of the Company, destroy or cause to be destroyed such cancelled Right Certificates, and in such case shall deliver a certificate of destruction thereof to the Company.

Section 9. <u>Availability of Shares of Preferred Stock</u>. (a) The Company covenants and agrees that it will cause to be reserved and kept available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Preferred Stock or any shares of Preferred Stock held in its treasury, the number of shares of Preferred Stock that will be sufficient to permit the exercise in full of all outstanding Rights.

(b) So long as the shares of Preferred Stock (and, following the time that a Person becomes an Acquiring Person, shares of Common Stock and other securities) issuable upon the exercise of Rights may be listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE or listed on any other national securities exchange or quotation system, the Company shall use its best efforts to cause, from and after such time as the Rights become exercisable, all shares reserved for such issuance to be listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE or listed on any other national securities exchange or quotation system upon official notice of issuance upon such exercise.

(c) From and after such time as the Rights become exercisable, the Company shall use its best efforts, if then necessary to permit the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock (and following the time that a Person first becomes an Acquiring Person, shares of Common Stock and other securities) upon the exercise of Rights, to register and qualify such shares of Preferred Stock (and following the time that a Person first becomes an Acquiring Person, shares of Common Stock and other securities) under the Securities Act and any applicable state securities or Blue Sky laws (to the extent exemptions therefrom are not available), cause such registration statement and qualifications to become effective as soon as possible after such filing and keep such registration and qualifications effective until the earlier of (x) the date as of which the Rights are no longer exercisable for such securities and (y) the Expiration Date. The Company may temporarily suspend, for a period of time not to exceed ninety (90) days, the exercisability of the Rights in order to prepare and file a registration statement under the Securities Act and permit it to become effective. Upon any such suspension, the Company shall issue a public announcement stating that the exercisability of the Rights has been temporarily suspended, as well as a public announcement at such time as the suspension is no longer in effect. Notwithstanding any provision of this Rights Agreement to the contrary, the Rights shall not be exercisable in any jurisdiction unless the requisite qualification or exemption in such jurisdiction shall have been obtained and until a registration statement under the Securities Act (if required) shall have been declared effective.

(d) The Company covenants and agrees that it will take all such action as may be necessary to ensure that all shares of Preferred Stock (and, following the time that a Person becomes an Acquiring Person, shares of Common Stock and other securities) delivered upon exercise of Rights shall, at the time of delivery of the certificates therefor (subject to payment of the Purchase Price), be duly and validly authorized and issued and fully paid and nonassessable shares.

(e) The Company further covenants and agrees that it will pay when due and payable any and all federal and state transfer taxes and charges which may be payable in respect of the issuance or delivery of the Right

Certificates or of any shares of Preferred Stock (or shares of Common Stock or other securities) upon the exercise of Rights. The Company shall not, however, be required to pay any transfer tax or charge which may be payable in respect of any transfer or delivery of Right Certificates to a Person other than, or the issuance or delivery of certificates or depositary receipts for the Preferred Stock (or shares of Common Stock or other securities) in a name other than that of, the registered holder of the Right Certificate evidencing Rights surrendered for exercise or to issue or deliver any certificates or depositary receipts for Preferred Stock (or shares of Common Stock or other securities) upon the exercise of any Rights until any such tax or charge shall have been paid (any such tax or charge being payable by that holder of such Right Certificate at the time of surrender) or until it has been established to the Company s reasonable satisfaction that no such tax or charge is due.

Section 10. <u>Preferred Stock Record Date</u>. Each Person in whose name any certificate for Preferred Stock is issued upon the exercise of Rights shall for all purposes be deemed to have become the holder of record of the shares of Preferred Stock represented thereby on, and such certificate shall be dated, the date upon which the Right Certificate evidencing such Rights was duly surrendered and payment of the Purchase Price (and any applicable transfer taxes or charges) was made; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that if the date of such surrender and payment is a date upon which the Preferred Stock transfer books of the Company are closed, such Person shall be deemed to have become the record holder of such shares on, and such certificate shall be dated, the next succeeding Business Day on which such transfer books are open. Prior to the exercise of the Rights evidenced thereby, the holder of a Right Certificate shall not be entitled to any rights of a holder of Preferred Stock for which the Rights shall be exercisable, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends or other distributions, and shall not be entitled to receive any notice of any proceedings of the Company, except as provided herein.

Section 11. <u>Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares and Number of Rights.</u> The Purchase Price, the number of shares of Preferred Stock or other securities or property purchasable upon exercise of each Right and the number of Rights outstanding are subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in this <u>Section 11</u>.

(a) (i) In the event the Company shall at any time after the date of this Agreement (A) declare a dividend on the Preferred Stock payable in shares of Preferred Stock, (B) subdivide the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, (C) combine the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock into a smaller number of shares of Preferred Stock or (D) issue any shares of its capital stock in a reclassification of the shares of Preferred Stock (including any such reclassification in connection with a consolidation or merger in which the Company is the continuing or surviving corporation), except as otherwise provided in this <u>Section 11(a)</u>, the Purchase Price in effect at the time of the record date for such dividend or of the effective date of such subdivision, combination or reclassification, as the case may be, and the number and kind of shares of capital stock issuable on such date, shall be proportionately adjusted so that the holder of any Right exercised after such time shall be entitled to receive the aggregate number and kind of shares of capital stock transfer books of the Company were open, the holder would have owned upon such exercise and been entitled to receive by virtue of such dividend, subdivision, combination or reclassification; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that in no event shall the consideration to be paid upon the exercise of one Right be less than the aggregate par value of the shares of capital stock of the Company issuable upon exercise of one Right.

(ii) Subject to Section 24 of this Rights Agreement and except as otherwise provided in this Section 11(a)(ii) and Section 11(a)(iii), in the event that any Person becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise thereof at a price equal to the then-current Purchase Price, in accordance with the terms of this Rights Agreement and in lieu of shares of Preferred Stock, such number of shares of Common Stock (or at the option of the Company, such number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock) as shall equal the result obtained by (x) multiplying the then-current Purchase Price by the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right is then exercisable and dividing that product by (y) 50% of the then-current per share market price of the Company s Common Stock (determined pursuant to Section 11(d) hereof) on the date of the

occurrence of such event; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the Purchase Price (as so adjusted) and the number of shares of Common Stock so

receivable upon exercise of a Right shall thereafter be subject to further adjustment as appropriate in accordance with this Section 11. Notwithstanding anything in this Rights Agreement to the contrary, however, from and after the time (the <u>Invalidation Time</u>) when any Person first becomes an Acquiring Person, any Rights that are beneficially owned by (x) any Acquiring Person (or any Affiliate or Associate of any Acquiring Person), (y) a transferee of any Acquiring Person (or any such Affiliate or Associate) who becomes a transferee after the Invalidation Time or (z) a transferee of any Acquiring Person (or any such Affiliate or Associate) who became a transferee prior to or concurrently with the Invalidation Time pursuant to either (I) a transfer from the Acquiring Person to holders of its equity securities or to any Person with whom it has any continuing agreement, arrangement or understanding, written or otherwise, regarding the transferred Rights or (II) a transfer that the Board of Directors has determined is part of a plan, arrangement or understanding, written or otherwise, which has the purpose or effect of avoiding the provisions of this paragraph, and subsequent transferees of such Persons, shall be void without any further action and any holder of such Rights shall thereafter have no rights whatsoever with respect to such Rights under any provision of this Rights Agreement. The Company shall use all reasonable efforts to ensure that the provisions of this Section 11(a)(ii) are complied with, but shall have no liability to any holder of Right Certificates or other Person as a result of its failure to make any determinations with respect to an Acquiring Person or its Affiliates, Associates or transferees hereunder. From and after the Invalidation Time, no Right Certificate shall be issued pursuant to Section 3 or Section 6 hereof that represents Rights that are or have become void pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph, and any Right Certificate delivered to the Rights Agent that represents Rights that are or have become void pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall be cancelled. From and after the occurrence of an event specified in Section 13(a) hereof, any Rights that theretofore have not been exercised pursuant to this Section 11(a)(ii) shall thereafter be exercisable only in accordance with Section 13 and not pursuant to this Section 11(a)(ii).

(iii) The Company may at its option substitute for a share of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Rights in accordance with the foregoing subparagraph (ii) such number or fractions of shares of Preferred Stock having an aggregate current market value equal to the current per share market price of a share of Common Stock. In the event that there shall be an insufficient number of shares of Common Stock authorized but unissued (and unreserved) to permit the exercise in full of the Rights in accordance with the foregoing subparagraph (ii), the Board of Directors shall, with respect to such deficiency, to the extent permitted by applicable law and any material agreements then in effect to which the Company is a party (A) determine the excess of (x) the value of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of a Right in accordance with the foregoing subparagraph (ii) (the <u>Current Value</u>) over (y) the then-current Purchase Price multiplied by the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was exercisable immediately prior to the time that the Acquiring Person became such (such excess, the Spread), and (B) with respect to each Right (other than Rights which have become void pursuant to Section 11(a)(ii)), make adequate provision to substitute for the shares of Common Stock issuable in accordance with subparagraph (ii) upon exercise of the Right and payment of the applicable Purchase Price, (1) cash, (2) a reduction in such Purchase Price, (3) shares of Preferred Stock or other equity securities of the Company (including, without limitation, shares or fractions of shares of preferred stock which, by virtue of having dividend, voting and liquidation rights substantially comparable to those of the shares of Common Stock, are deemed in good faith by the Board of Directors to have substantially the same value as the shares of Common Stock (such shares of preferred stock and shares or fractions of shares of preferred stock are hereinafter referred to as <u>Common Stock equivalents</u>)), (4) debt securities of the Company, (5) other assets or (6) any combination of the foregoing, having a value which, when added to the value of the shares of Common Stock actually issued upon exercise of such Right, shall have an aggregate value equal to the Current Value (less the amount of any reduction in such Purchase Price), where such aggregate value has been determined by the Board of Directors upon the advice of a nationally recognized investment banking firm selected in good faith by the Board of Directors; provided, however, if the Company shall not make adequate provision to deliver value pursuant to clause (B) above within thirty (30) days following the date that the Acquiring Person became such (the <u>Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date</u>), then the Company shall be obligated to deliver, to the extent permitted by applicable law and any material agreements then in effect to which the Company is a party, upon the surrender for exercise of a Right and without requiring payment of the Purchase Price, shares of Common Stock (to the extent

available),

and then, if necessary, such number or fractions of shares of Preferred Stock (to the extent available) and then, if necessary, cash, which shares and/or cash have an aggregate value equal to the Spread. If within the thirty (30) day period referred to above the Board of Directors shall determine in good faith that it is likely that sufficient additional shares of Common Stock could be authorized for issuance upon exercise in full of the Rights, then, if the Board of Directors so elects, such thirty (30) day period may be extended to the extent necessary, but not more than ninety (90) days after the Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date, in order that the Company may seek stockholder approval for the authorization of such additional shares (such thirty (30) day period, as it may be extended, is hereinafter called the Substitution Period). To the extent that the Company determines that some action need be taken pursuant to the second and/or third sentence of this Section 11(a)(iii), the Company (x) shall provide, subject to Section 11(a)(ii) hereof and the last sentence of this Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, that such action shall apply uniformly to all outstanding Rights and (y) may suspend the exercisability of the Rights until the expiration of the Substitution Period in order to seek any authorization of additional shares and/or to decide the appropriate form of distribution to be made pursuant to such second sentence and to determine the value thereof. In the event of any such suspension, the Company shall issue a public announcement stating that the exercisability of the Rights has been temporarily suspended, as well as a public announcement at such time as the suspension is no longer in effect. For purposes of this Section 11(a)(iii), the value of the shares of Common Stock shall be the current per share market price (as determined pursuant to Section 11(d)(i)) on the Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date and the per share or fractional value of any Common Stock equivalent shall be deemed to equal the current per share market price of the Common Stock on such date. The Board of Directors of the Company may, but shall not be required to, establish procedures to allocate the right to receive shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of the Rights among holders of Rights pursuant to this Section 11(a)(iii).

(b) In case the Company shall fix a record date for the issuance of rights, options or warrants to all holders of Preferred Stock entitling them (for a period expiring within 45 calendar days after such record date) to subscribe for or purchase Preferred Stock (or shares having similar rights, privileges and preferences as the Preferred Stock (<u>equivalent</u> preferred shares)) or securities convertible into Preferred Stock or equivalent preferred shares at a price per share of Preferred Stock or equivalent preferred shares (or having a conversion price per share, if a security convertible into shares of Preferred Stock or equivalent preferred shares) less than the then-current per share market price of the Preferred Stock (determined pursuant to Section 11(d) hereof) on such record date, the Purchase Price to be in effect after such record date shall be determined by multiplying the Purchase Price in effect immediately prior to such record date by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Preferred Stock and equivalent preferred shares outstanding on such record date plus the number of shares of Preferred Stock and equivalent preferred shares which the aggregate offering price of the total number of such shares so to be offered (and/or the aggregate initial conversion price of the convertible securities so to be offered) would purchase at such current market price, and the denominator of which shall be the number of shares of Preferred Stock and equivalent preferred shares outstanding on such record date plus the number of additional shares of Preferred Stock and/or equivalent preferred shares to be offered for subscription or purchase (or into which the convertible securities so to be offered are initially convertible); provided, however, that in no event shall the consideration to be paid upon the exercise of one Right be less than the aggregate par value of the shares of capital stock of the Company issuable upon exercise of one Right. In case such subscription price may be paid in a consideration part or all of which shall be in a form other than cash, the value of such consideration shall be as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company, whose determination shall be described in a statement filed with the Rights Agent and which shall be binding on the Rights Agent. Shares of Preferred Stock and equivalent preferred shares owned by or held for the account of the Company shall not be deemed outstanding for the purpose of any such computation. Such adjustment shall be made successively whenever such a record date is fixed; and in the event that such rights, options or warrants are not so issued, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted to be the Purchase Price which would then be in effect if such record date had not been fixed.

(c) In case the Company shall fix a record date for the making of a distribution to all holders of the Preferred Stock (including any such distribution made in connection with a consolidation or merger in which the Company is the

continuing or surviving corporation) of evidences of indebtedness or assets (other than a regular quarterly cash dividend or a dividend payable in Preferred Stock) or subscription rights or warrants

(excluding those referred to in <u>Section 11(b)</u> hereof), the Purchase Price to be in effect after such record date shall be determined by multiplying the Purchase Price in effect immediately prior to such record date by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the then-current per share market price of the Preferred Stock (determined pursuant to <u>Section 11(d)</u> hereof) on such record date, less the fair market value (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company whose determination shall be described in a statement filed with the Rights Agent and shall be binding on the Rights Agent) of the portion of such assets or evidences of indebtedness so to be distributed or of such subscription rights or warrants applicable to one share of Preferred Stock, and the denominator of which shall be such current per share market price of the Preferred Stock; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that in no event shall the consideration to be paid upon the exercise of one Right be less than the aggregate par value of the shares of capital stock of the Company to be issued upon exercise of one Right. Such adjustments shall be made successively whenever such a record date is fixed; and in the event that such distribution is not so made, the Purchase Price shall again be adjusted to be the Purchase Price that would then be in effect if such record date had not been fixed.

(d) (i) Except as otherwise provided herein, for the purpose of any computation hereunder, the current per share market price of any security (a Security for the purpose of this Section 11(d)(i)) on any date shall be deemed to be the average of the daily closing prices per share of such Security for the 30 consecutive Trading Days (as such term is hereinafter defined) immediately prior to such date; provided, however, that in the event that the current per share market price of the Security is determined during a period following the announcement by the issuer of such Security of (A) a dividend or distribution on such Security payable in shares of such Security or securities convertible into such shares, or (B) any subdivision, combination or reclassification of such Security, and prior to the expiration of 30 Trading Days after the ex-dividend date for such dividend or distribution, or the record date for such subdivision, combination or reclassification, then, and in each such case, the current per share market price shall be appropriately adjusted to reflect the current market price per share equivalent of such Security. The closing price for each day shall be the last sale price, regular way, or, in case no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and asked prices, regular way, in either case as reported by (w) the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE or, (x) if the Security is not listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE, as reported in the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed on the principal national securities exchange on which the Security is listed or admitted to trading or, (y) if the Security is not listed or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, the last quoted price or, if not so quoted, the average of the high bid and low asked prices in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the system then in use, or, (z) if on any such date the Security is not so quoted or reported, the average of the closing bid and asked prices as furnished by a professional market maker making a market in the Security selected by the Board of Directors of the Company. The term <u>Trading Day</u> shall mean a day on which the principal national securities exchange on which the Security is listed or admitted to trading is open for the transaction of business or, if the Security is not listed or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, a Business Day.

(ii) For the purpose of any computation hereunder, if the Preferred Stock is publicly traded, the current per share market price of the Preferred Stock shall be determined in accordance with the method set forth in Section 11(d)(i). If the Preferred Stock is not publicly traded but the Common Stock is publicly traded, the current per share market price of the Preferred Stock shall be conclusively deemed to be the current per share market price of the Common Stock, as determined pursuant to Section 11(d)(i), multiplied by one thousand (appropriately adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend or similar transaction occurring after the date hereof). If neither the Common Stock nor the Preferred Stock is publicly traded, current per share market price shall mean the fair value per share as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company, whose determination shall be described in a statement filed with the Rights Agent and shall be binding on the Rights Agent.

(e) No adjustment in the Purchase Price shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least 1% in the Purchase Price; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that any adjustments not required to be made by reason of this <u>Section 11(e)</u> shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment. All

calculations under this Section 11 shall be made to the nearest cent or to the nearest one ten-

thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock or share of Common Stock or other share or security as the case may be. Notwithstanding the first sentence of this <u>Section 11(e)</u>, any adjustment required by this <u>Section 11</u> shall be made no later than the earlier of (i) three years from the date of the transaction which requires such adjustment or (ii) the Expiration Date. If as a result of an adjustment made pursuant to <u>Section 11(a)</u> hereof, the holder of any Right thereafter exercised shall become entitled to receive any shares of capital stock of the Company other than the Preferred Stock, thereafter the Purchase Price and the number of such other shares so receivable upon exercise of a Right shall be subject to adjustment from time to time in a manner and on terms as nearly equivalent as practicable to the provisions with respect to the Preferred Stock contained in <u>Sections 11(a)</u>, <u>11(b)</u>, <u>11(c)</u>, <u>11(e)</u>, <u>11(h)</u>, <u>11(i)</u> and <u>11(m)</u> and the provisions of <u>Sections 7, 9, 10, 13</u> and <u>14</u> hereof with respect to the Preferred Stock shall apply on like terms to any such other shares.

(f) All Rights originally issued by the Company subsequent to any adjustment made to the Purchase Price hereunder shall evidence the right to purchase, at the adjusted Purchase Price, the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock purchasable from time to time hereunder upon exercise of the Rights, all subject to further adjustment as provided herein.

(g) Unless the Company shall have exercised its election as provided in <u>Section 11(i)</u>, upon each adjustment of the Purchase Price as a result of the calculations made in <u>Section 11(b)</u> and <u>(c)</u>, each Right outstanding immediately prior to the making of such adjustment shall thereafter evidence the right to purchase, at the adjusted Purchase Price, that number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock (calculated to the nearest ten-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock) obtained by (i) multiplying (x) the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock purchasable upon the exercise of a Right immediately prior to such adjustment by (y) the Purchase Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment of the Purchase Price and (ii) dividing the product so obtained by the Purchase Price in effect immediately after such adjustment of the Purchase Price.

(h) The Company may elect on or after the date of any adjustment of the Purchase Price or any adjustment to the number of shares of Preferred Stock for which a Right may be exercised made pursuant to Section 11(a)(i), 11(b) or 11(c) hereof to adjust the number of Rights, in substitution for any adjustment in the number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock purchasable upon the exercise of a Right. Each of the Rights outstanding after such adjustment of the number of Rights shall be exercisable for the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was exercisable immediately prior to such adjustment. Each Right held of record prior to such adjustment of the number of Rights shall become that number of Rights (calculated to the nearest ten-thousandth) obtained by dividing the Purchase Price in effect immediately prior to adjustment of the Purchase Price by the Purchase Price in effect immediately after adjustment of the Purchase Price. The Company shall make a public announcement of its election to adjust the number of Rights, indicating the record date for the adjustment, and, if known at the time, the amount of the adjustment to be made. This record date may be the date on which the Purchase Price is adjusted or any day thereafter, but, if the Right Certificates have been issued, shall be at least 10 days later than the date of the public announcement. If Right Certificates have been issued, upon each adjustment of the number of Rights pursuant to this Section 11(i), the Company may, as promptly as practicable, cause to be distributed to holders of record of Right Certificates on such record date Right Certificates evidencing, subject to Section 14 hereof, the additional Rights to which such holders shall be entitled as a result of such adjustment, or, at the option of the Company, shall cause to be distributed to such holders of record in substitution and replacement for the Right Certificates held by such holders prior to the date of adjustment, and upon surrender thereof, if required by the Company, new Right Certificates evidencing all the Rights to which such holders shall be entitled as a result of such adjustment. Right Certificates so to be distributed shall be issued, executed and countersigned in the manner provided for herein and shall be registered in the names of the holders of record of Right Certificates on the record date specified in the public announcement.

(i) Irrespective of any adjustment or change in the Purchase Price or the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock issuable upon the exercise of the Rights, the Right Certificates theretofore and thereafter issued may continue to express the Purchase Price and the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock which were expressed in the initial Right Certificates issued hereunder.

(j) Before taking any action that would cause an adjustment reducing the Purchase Price below the then par value, if any, of the shares of Preferred Stock or other shares of capital stock issuable upon exercise of the Rights, the Company shall take any corporate action which may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Preferred Stock or other such shares at such adjusted Purchase Price.

(k) In any case in which this <u>Section 11</u> shall require that an adjustment in the Purchase Price be made effective as of a record date for a specified event, the Company may elect to defer until the occurrence of such event the issuing to the holder of any Right exercised after such record date the Preferred Stock, Common Stock or other capital stock or securities of the Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise over and above the Preferred Stock, Common Stock or other capital stock or securities of the Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise on the basis of the Purchase Price in effect prior to such adjustment; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the Company shall deliver to such holder a due bill or other appropriate instrument evidencing such holder s right to receive such additional shares upon the occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment.

(1) Notwithstanding anything in this <u>Section 11</u> to the contrary, the Company shall be entitled to make such adjustments in the Purchase Price, in addition to those adjustments expressly required by this <u>Section 11</u>, as and to the extent that the Board of Directors in its sole discretion shall determine to be advisable in order that any consolidation or subdivision of the Preferred Stock, issuance (wholly for cash) of any shares of Preferred Stock at less than the current market price, issuance (wholly for cash) of Preferred Stock or securities which by their terms are convertible into or exchangeable for Preferred Stock, dividends on Preferred Stock payable in shares of Preferred Stock or issuance of rights, options or warrants referred to hereinabove in <u>Section 11(b)</u>, hereafter made by the Company to holders of its Preferred Stock shall not be taxable to such stockholders.

(m) Notwithstanding anything in this Rights Agreement to the contrary, in the event that at any time after the date of this Rights Agreement and prior to the Distribution Date, the Company shall (i) declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in Common Stock or (ii) effect a subdivision, combination or consolidation of the Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend payable in Common Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in any such case, the number of Rights associated with each share of Common Stock then outstanding, or issued or delivered thereafter, shall be proportionately adjusted so that the number of Rights thereafter associated with each share of Common Stock following any such event shall equal the result obtained by multiplying the number of Rights associated with each share of Common Stock immediately prior to such event by a fraction the numerator of which shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately following the occurrence of such event.

(n) The Company agrees that, after the earlier of the Distribution Date or the Stock Acquisition Date, it will not, except as permitted by <u>Section 23, 24</u> or <u>27</u> hereof, take (or permit any Subsidiary to take) any action if at the time such action is taken it is reasonably foreseeable that such action will diminish substantially or eliminate the benefits intended to be afforded by the Rights.

Section 12. <u>Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of Shares</u>. Whenever an adjustment is made as provided in <u>Section 11</u> or <u>13</u> hereof, the Company shall promptly (a) prepare a certificate setting forth such adjustment, and a brief statement of the facts accounting for such adjustment, (b) file with the Rights Agent and with each transfer agent for the Common Stock or the Preferred Stock a copy of such certificate and (c) mail a brief summary thereof to each holder of a Right Certificate (or if prior to the Distribution Date, to each holder of a certificate representing shares of Common Stock) in accordance with <u>Section 26</u> hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the failure of the Company to give such notice shall not affect the validity of or the force or effect of or the requirement for such adjustment. The Rights Agent shall be fully protected in relying on any such certificate

and on any adjustment therein contained and shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any such adjustment unless and until it shall have received such certificate. Any adjustment to be made pursuant to <u>Section 11</u> or <u>13</u> hereof shall be effective as of the date of the event giving rise to such adjustment.

Table of Contents

Section 13. <u>Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets or Earnings Power</u>. (a) In the event, directly or indirectly, at any time after any Person has become an Acquiring Person, (i) the Company shall merge with and into any other Person (other than one or more of its wholly-owned Subsidiaries), (ii) any Person (other than one or more of its wholly-owned Subsidiaries) of the Company shall be the continuing or surviving corporation of such merger and, in connection with such merger, all or part of the Company) or cash or any other property, or (iii) the Company shall sell or other securities of any other Person (or of the Company) or cash or any other property, or (iii) the Company shall sell or otherwise transfer (or one or more of its Subsidiaries shall sell or otherwise transfer), in one or more transactions, assets or earning power aggregating to 50% or more of the assets or earning power of the Company and its Subsidiaries), then, and in each such case, proper provision shall be made so that:

(A) each holder of record of a Right (other than Rights which have become void pursuant to Section 11(a)(ii)) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon the exercise thereof at a price equal to the then-current Purchase Price multiplied by the number of one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was exercisable (whether or not such Right was then exercisable) immediately prior to the time that any Person first became an Acquiring Person (each as subsequently adjusted thereafter pursuant to Sections 11(a)(i), 11(b), 11(c), 11(f), 11(h), 11(i) and 11(m)), in accordance with the terms of this Rights Agreement and in lieu of Preferred Stock, such number of validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and freely tradeable shares of Common Stock of the Principal Party (as defined below) not subject to any liens, encumbrances, rights of first refusal or other adverse claims, as shall be equal to the result obtained by (1) multiplying the then-current Purchase Price by the number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was exercisable immediately prior to the time that any Person first became an Acquiring Person (as subsequently adjusted thereafter pursuant to Sections 11(a)(i), 11(b), 11(c), 11(f), 11(h), 11(i) and 11(m)) and (2) dividing that product by 50% of the then-current per share market price of the Common Stock of such Principal Party (determined pursuant to Section 11(d)(i) hereof) on the date of consummation of such consolidation, merger, sale or transfer; provided, that the Purchase Price and the number of shares of Common Stock of such Principal Party issuable upon exercise of each Right shall be further adjusted as provided in Section 11(f) of this Rights Agreement to reflect any events occurring in respect of such Principal Party after the date of such consolidation, merger, sale or transfer;

(B) such Principal Party shall thereafter be liable for, and shall assume, by virtue of such consolidation, merger, sale or transfer, all the obligations and duties of the Company pursuant to this Rights Agreement;

(C) the term Company as used herein shall thereafter be deemed to refer to such Principal Party; and

(D) such Principal Party shall take such steps (including, but not limited to, the reservation of a sufficient number of its shares of its Common Stock) in connection with such consummation of any such transaction as may be necessary to assure that the provisions hereof shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as reasonably may be, in relation to the shares of its Common Stock thereafter deliverable upon the exercise of the Rights; provided, that upon the subsequent occurrence of any consolidation, merger, sale or transfer of assets or other extraordinary transaction in respect of such Principal Party, each holder of a Right shall thereupon be entitled to receive, upon exercise of a Right and payment of the Purchase Price as provided in this Section 13(a), such cash, shares, rights, warrants and other property which such holder would have been entitled to receive had such holder, at the time of such transaction, owned the Common Stock of the Principal Party receivable upon the exercise of a Right pursuant to this Section 13(a), and such Principal Party shall take such steps (including, but not limited to, reservation of shares of stock) as may be necessary to permit the subsequent exercise of the Rights in accordance with the terms hereof for such cash, shares, rights, warrants and other property.

(b) *<u>Principal Party</u>* shall mean:

(i) in the case of any transaction described in clauses (i) or (ii) of the first sentence of Section 13(a) hereof: (A) the Person that is the issuer of the securities into which the shares of Common Stock are converted in such merger or consolidation, or, if there is more than one such issuer, the issuer of the shares of Common Stock of which have the greatest aggregate market value of shares outstanding, or (B) if no securities are so issued, (x) the Person that is the other party to the merger, if such Person survives said merger, or, if there is more than one such Person the shares of Common Stock of which have the greatest aggregate market value of shares outstanding, or (B) if no securities are so issued, (x) the Person that is the other party to the merger, if such Person survives said merger, or, if there is more than one such Person, the Person the shares of Common Stock of which have the greatest aggregate market value of shares outstanding or (y) if the Person that is the other party to the merger does not survive the merger, the Person that does survive the merger (including the Company if it survives) or (z) the Person resulting from the consolidation; and

(ii) in the case of any transaction described in clause (iii) of the first sentence in <u>Section 13(a)</u> hereof, the Person that is the party receiving the greatest portion of the assets or earning power transferred pursuant to such transaction or transactions, or, if each Person that is a party to such transaction or transactions receives the same portion of the assets or earning power so transferred or if the Person receiving the greatest portion of the assets or earning power so transferred or if the Person receiving the greatest portion of the assets or earning power so transferred or if the Person receiving the greatest portion of the assets or earning power cannot be determined, whichever of such Persons is the issuer of Common Stock having the greatest aggregate market value of shares outstanding;

provided, however, that in any such case described in the foregoing clause (b)(i) or (b)(ii), if the Common Stock of such Person is not at such time or has not been continuously over the preceding 12-month period registered under <u>Section 12</u> of the Exchange Act, then (1) if such Person is a direct or indirect Subsidiary of another Person the Common Stock of which is and has been so registered, the term Principal Party shall refer to such other Person, or (2) if such Person is a Subsidiary, directly or indirectly, of more than one Person, and the Common Stock of all of such persons have been so registered, the term Principal Party shall refer to such Other Person is a such zero of Common Stock having the greatest aggregate market value of shares outstanding, or (3) if such Person is owned, directly or indirectly, by a joint venture formed by two or more Persons that are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the same Person, the rules set forth in clauses (1) and (2) above shall apply to each of the owners having an interest in the venture as if the Person owned by the joint venture was a Subsidiary of both or all of such joint venturers, and the Principal Party in each such case shall bear the obligations set forth in this <u>Section 13</u> in the same ratio as its interest in such Person bears to the total of such interests.

(c) The Company shall not consummate any consolidation, merger, sale or transfer referred to in <u>Section 13(a)</u> hereof unless prior thereto the Company and the Principal Party involved therein shall have executed and delivered to the Rights Agent an agreement confirming that the requirements of <u>Sections 13(a)</u> and (b) hereof shall promptly be performed in accordance with their terms and that such consolidation, merger, sale or transfer of assets shall not result in a default by the Principal Party under this Rights Agreement as the same shall have been assumed by the Principal Party pursuant to <u>Sections 13(a)</u> and (b) hereof and providing that, as soon as practicable after executing such agreement pursuant to this <u>Section 13</u>, the Principal Party will:

(i) prepare and file a registration statement under the Securities Act, if necessary, with respect to the Rights and the securities purchasable upon exercise of the Rights on an appropriate form, use its best efforts to cause such registration statement to become effective as soon as practicable after such filing and use its best efforts to cause such registration statement to remain effective (with a prospectus at all times meeting the requirements of the Securities Act) until the Expiration Date, and similarly comply with applicable state securities laws;

(ii) use its best efforts, if the Common Stock of the Principal Party shall be listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE or on another national securities exchange, to list or admit to trading (or continue the listing of) the Rights and the securities purchasable upon exercise of the Rights on the NYSE or such securities exchange, or, if the Common Stock of the Principal Party shall not be listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE or a national securities exchange, to cause

the Rights and the securities receivable upon exercise of the Rights to be reported by such other system then in use;

(iii) deliver to holders of the Rights historical financial statements for the Principal Party which comply in all respects with the requirements for registration on Form 10 (or any successor form) under the Exchange Act; and

(iv) obtain waivers of any rights of first refusal or preemptive rights in respect of the Common Stock of the Principal Party subject to purchase upon exercise of outstanding Rights.

In the event that any of the transactions described in <u>Section 13(a)</u> hereof shall occur at any time after the occurrence of a transaction described in <u>Section 11(a)(ii)</u> hereof, the Rights which have not theretofore been exercised shall thereafter be exercisable in the manner described in <u>Section 13(a)</u>.

(d) In case the Principal Party has a provision in any of its authorized securities or in its certificate of incorporation or by-laws or other instrument governing its affairs, which provision would have the effect of (i) causing such Principal Party to issue (other than to holders of Rights pursuant to this <u>Section 13</u>), in connection with, or as a consequence of, the consummation of a transaction referred to in this <u>Section 13</u>, shares of Common Stock or Common Stock equivalents of such Principal Party at less than the then-current market price per share thereof (determined pursuant to <u>Section 11(d)</u> hereof) or securities exercisable for, or convertible into, Common Stock or Common Stock equivalents of such Principal Party at less than such then-current market price, or (ii) providing for any special payment, tax or similar provision in connection with the issuance of the Common Stock of such Principal Party pursuant to the provisions of <u>Section 13</u>, then, in such event, the Company hereby agrees with each holder of Rights that it shall not consummate any such transaction unless prior thereto the Company and such Principal Party shall have executed and delivered to the Rights Agent a supplemental agreement providing that the provision in question of such Principal Party shall have been canceled, waived or amended, or that the authorized securities shall be redeemed, so that the applicable provision will have no effect in connection with, or as a consequence of, the consummation of the proposed transaction.

(e) The Company covenants and agrees that it shall not, at any time after a Person first becomes an Acquiring Person, enter into any transaction of the type contemplated by Sections 13(a)(i)-(iii) hereof if (x) at the time of or immediately after such consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or other transaction there are any rights, warrants or other instruments or securities outstanding or agreements in effect which would substantially diminish or otherwise eliminate the benefits intended to be afforded by the Rights, (y) prior to, simultaneously with or immediately after such consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or other transaction, the stockholders of the Person who constitutes, or would constitute, the Principal Party for purposes of Section 13(b) hereof shall have received a distribution of Rights previously owned by such Person or any of its Affiliates or Associates or (z) the form or nature of organization of the Principal Party would preclude or limit the exercisability of the Rights.

Section 14. *Fractional Rights and Fractional Shares.* (a) The Company shall not be required to issue fractions of Rights (except prior to the Distribution Date in accordance with <u>Section 11(n)</u> hereof) or to distribute Right Certificates which evidence fractional Rights. In lieu of such fractional Rights, there shall be paid to the registered holders of the Right Certificates with regard to which such fractional Rights would otherwise be issuable, an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the current market value of a whole Right. For the purposes of this <u>Section 14(a)</u>, the current market value of a whole Right shall be the closing price of the Rights for the Trading Day immediately prior to the date on which such fractional Rights would have been otherwise issuable. The closing price for any day shall be the last sale price, regular way, or, in case no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and asked prices, regular way, in either case as reported by (w) the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed or admitted to trading on the NYSE or, (x) if the Rights are not listed or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, the last quoted price or, if not so quoted, the average of the high bid and low asked prices in the over-the-counter market, as reported by such system

then in use or, (z) if on any such date the Rights are not so quoted or reported, the average of the closing bid and asked prices as furnished by a professional market maker making a market in the Rights

selected by the Board of Directors of the Company. If on any such date no such market maker is making a market in the Rights, the fair value of the Rights on such date as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company shall be used.

(b) The Company shall not be required to issue fractions of shares of Preferred Stock (other than fractions which are integral multiples of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock) upon exercise of the Rights or to distribute certificates which evidence fractional shares of Preferred Stock (other than fractions which are integral multiples of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock). Interests in fractions of Preferred Stock in integral multiples of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock may, at the election of the Company, be evidenced by depositary receipts, pursuant to an appropriate agreement between the Company and a depositary selected by it; provided, that such agreement shall provide that the holders of such depositary receipts shall have all the rights, privileges and preferences to which they are entitled as beneficial owners(for the purposes of this Section 14(b), as such term is defined in Rule 13d-3 or 13d-5 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act) of the Preferred Stock represented by such depositary receipts. In lieu of fractional shares of Preferred Stock that are not integral multiples of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock, the Company shall pay to the registered holders of Right Certificates at the time such Rights are exercised for shares of Preferred Stock as herein provided an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the current market value of one share of Preferred Stock. For the purposes of this Section 14(b), the current market value of a share of Preferred Stock shall be the closing price of a share of Preferred Stock (as determined pursuant to Section 11(d)(ii) hereof) for the Trading Day immediately prior to the date of such exercise.

(c) The Company shall not be required to issue fractions of shares of Common Stock or to distribute certificates which evidence fractional shares of Common Stock upon the exercise or exchange of Rights. In lieu of such fractional shares of Common Stock, the Company shall pay to the registered holders of the Right Certificates at the time such Rights are exercised or exchanged for shares of Common Stock as herein provided an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the current market value of a whole share of Common Stock (as determined in accordance with Section 11(d)(i) hereof) for the Trading Day immediately prior to the date of such exercise or exchange.

(d) The holder of a Right by the acceptance of the Right expressly waives the right to receive any fractional Rights or any fractional shares upon exercise or exchange of a Right (except as provided above).

Section 15. *Rights of Action*. All rights of action in respect of this Rights Agreement, excepting the rights of action given to the Rights Agent under <u>Section 18</u> hereof, are vested in the respective registered holders of the Right Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Date, the registered holders of the Common Stock); and any registered holder of any Right Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, of the Common Stock), without the consent of the Rights Agent or of the holder of any other Right Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, or prior to the Distribution Date, of the Common Stock), on such holder s own behalf and for such holder s own benefit, may enforce, and may institute and maintain any suit, action or proceeding against the Company to enforce, or otherwise act in respect of, such holder s right to exercise the Rights evidenced by such Right Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, such Common Stock) in the manner provided in such Right Certificate and in this Rights Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing or any remedies available to the holders of Rights, it is specifically acknowledged that the holders of Rights would not have an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this Rights Agreement and will be entitled to specific performance of the obligations under, and injunctive relief against actual or threatened violations of the obligations of any Person subject to, this Rights Agreement.

Section 16. <u>Agreement of Right Holders</u>. Every holder of a Right, by accepting the same, consents and agrees with the Company and the Rights Agent and with every other holder of a Right that:

(i) prior to the Distribution Date, the Rights will not be evidenced by a Right Certificate and will be transferable only in connection with the transfer of the Common Stock;

(ii) after the Distribution Date, the Right Certificates are transferable only on the registry books of the Rights Agent if surrendered at the office or agency of the Rights Agent designated for such purpose, duly endorsed or accompanied by a proper instrument of transfer;

(iii) the Company and the Rights Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name the Right Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, the Common Stock (or Book Entry shares of Common Stock)) is registered as the absolute owner thereof and of the Rights evidenced thereby (notwithstanding any notations of ownership or writing on the Right Certificates or the Common Stock certificate (or notices provided to holders of Book Entry shares of Common Stock) made by anyone other than the Company or the Rights Agent) for all purposes whatsoever, and neither the Company nor the Rights Agent, subject to <u>Section 7(e)</u> hereof, shall be affected by any notice to the contrary; and

(iv) notwithstanding anything in this Rights Agreement to the contrary, neither the Company nor the Rights Agent shall have any liability to any holder of a Right or other Person as a result of its inability to perform any of its obligations under this Rights Agreement by reason of any preliminary or permanent injunction or other order, judgment, decree or ruling (whether interlocutory or final) issued by a court or by a governmental, regulatory, self-regulatory or administrative agency or commission, or any statute, rule, regulation or executive order promulgated or enacted by any governmental authority, prohibiting or otherwise restraining performance of such obligation; provided, however, that the Company must use its reasonable best efforts to have any such injunction, order, judgment, decree or ruling lifted or otherwise overturned as soon as possible.

Section 17. <u>*Right Certificate Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder.*</u> No holder, as such, of any Right Certificate shall be entitled to vote, receive dividends or be deemed for any purpose the holder of the Preferred Stock or any other securities of the Company which may at any time be issuable on the exercise or exchange of the Rights represented thereby, nor shall anything contained herein or in any Right Certificate be construed to confer upon the holder of any Right Certificate, as such, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote for the election of directors or upon any matter submitted to stockholders at any meeting thereof, or to give or withhold consent to any corporate action, or to receive notice of meetings or other actions affecting stockholders (except as provided in this Rights Agreement), or to receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, until the Rights evidenced by such Right Certificate shall have been exercised or exchanged in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Section 18. <u>Concerning the Rights Agent</u>. (a) The Company agrees to pay to the Rights Agent reasonable compensation for all services rendered by it hereunder and, from time to time, on demand of the Rights Agent, its reasonable expenses and counsel fees and other disbursements incurred in the administration and execution of this Rights Agreement and the exercise and performance of its duties hereunder. The Company also agrees to indemnify the Rights Agent for, and to hold it harmless against, any loss, liability or expense, incurred without gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct on the part of the Rights Agent, for anything done or omitted by the Rights Agent in connection with the acceptance and administration of this Rights Agreement, including the costs and expenses of defending against any claim of liability arising therefrom, directly or indirectly.

(b) The Rights Agent shall be protected and shall incur no liability for, or in respect of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it in connection with, its administration of this Rights Agreement in reliance upon any Right Certificate or certificate for the Preferred Stock or Common Stock or for other securities of the Company, instrument of assignment or transfer, power of attorney, endorsement, affidavit, letter, notice, direction, consent, certificate, statement, or other paper or document reasonably believed by it to be genuine and to be signed, executed and, where necessary, verified or acknowledged, by the proper Person or Persons, or otherwise upon the advice of counsel as set forth in <u>Section 20</u> hereof.

Section 19. <u>Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights Agent</u>. (a) Any corporation or entity into which the Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent may be merged or with which it may be consolidated, or any

Table of Contents

corporation or entity resulting from any merger or consolidation to which the Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent shall be a party, or any corporation or entity succeeding to the stock transfer or corporate trust powers of the Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent, shall be the successor to

the Rights Agent under this Rights Agreement without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto; <u>provided</u>, that such corporation or entity would be eligible for appointment as a successor Rights Agent under the provisions of <u>Section 21</u> hereof. In case at the time such successor Rights Agent shall succeed to the agency created by this Rights Agreement, any of the Right Certificates shall have been countersigned but not delivered, such successor Rights Agent may adopt the countersignature of the predecessor Rights Agent and deliver such Right Certificates so countersigned; and in case at that time any of the Right Certificates either in the name of the predecessor Rights Agent or in the name of such successor Rights Agent; and in all such cases such Right Certificates shall have the full force provided in the Right Certificates and in this Rights Agreement.

(b) In case at any time the name of the Rights Agent shall be changed and at such time any of the Right Certificates shall have been countersigned but not delivered the Rights Agent may adopt the countersignature under its prior name and deliver Right Certificates so countersigned; and in case at that time any of the Right Certificates shall not have been countersigned, the Rights Agent may countersign such Right Certificates either in its prior name or in its changed name and in all such cases such Right Certificates shall have the full force provided in the Right Certificates and in this Rights Agreement.

Section 20. *Duties of Rights Agent*. The Rights Agent undertakes the duties and obligations imposed by this Rights Agreement upon the following terms and conditions, by all of which the Company and the holders of Right Certificates, by their acceptance thereof, shall be bound:

(a) The Rights Agent may consult with legal counsel (who may be legal counsel for the Company), and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection to the Rights Agent as to any action taken or omitted by it in good faith and in accordance with such opinion.

(b) Whenever in the performance of its duties under this Rights Agreement the Rights Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that any fact or matter be proved or established by the Company prior to taking or suffering any action hereunder, such fact or matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a certificate signed by any one of the Chief Executive Officer, President, any Vice President, the Treasurer or the Secretary of the Company (each, an <u>Authorized Officer</u>) and delivered to the Rights Agent; and such certificate shall be full authorization to the Rights Agent for any action taken or suffered in good faith by it under the provisions of this Rights Agreement in reliance upon such certificate.

(c) The Rights Agent shall be liable hereunder to the Company and any other Person only for its own gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct.

(d) The Rights Agent shall not be liable for or by reason of any of the statements of fact or recitals contained in this Rights Agreement or in the Right Certificates (except its countersignature thereof) or be required to verify the same, but all such statements and recitals are and shall be deemed to have been made by the Company only.

(e) The Rights Agent shall not be under any responsibility in respect of the validity of this Rights Agreement or the execution and delivery hereof (except the due execution hereof by the Rights Agent) or in respect of the validity or execution of any Right Certificate (except its countersignature thereof); nor shall it be responsible for any breach by the Company of any covenant or condition contained in this Rights Agreement or in any Right Certificate; nor shall it be responsible for any change in the exercisability of the Rights (including the Rights becoming void pursuant to Section 11(a)(ii) hereof) or any adjustment in the terms of the Rights (including the manner, method or amount thereof) provided for in Sections 3, 11, 13, 23 and 24, or the ascertaining of the existence of facts that would require any such change or adjustment (except with respect to the exercise of Rights evidenced by Right Certificates after receipt of a certificate furnished pursuant to Section 12, describing such change or adjustment); nor shall it by any act

hereunder be deemed to make any representation or warranty as to the authorization or reservation of any shares of Preferred Stock or other securities to be issued pursuant to this Rights

Agreement or any Right Certificate or as to whether any shares of Preferred Stock or other securities will, when issued, be validly authorized and issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

(f) The Company agrees that it will perform, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be performed, executed, acknowledged and delivered all such further and other acts, instruments and assurances as may reasonably be required by the Rights Agent for the carrying out or performing by the Rights Agent of the provisions of this Rights Agreement.

(g) The Rights Agent is hereby authorized and directed to accept instructions with respect to the performance of its duties hereunder from any person reasonably believed by the Rights Agent to be one of the Authorized Officers, and to apply to such Authorized Officers for advice or instructions in connection with its duties, and it shall not be liable for any action taken or suffered by it in good faith in accordance with instructions of any such Authorized Officer or for any delay in acting while waiting for those instructions. Any application by the Rights Agent for written instructions from the Company may, at the option of the Rights Agent, set forth in writing any action proposed to be taken or such omission shall be effective. The Rights Agent shall not be liable for any action taken by, or omission of, the Rights Agent in accordance with a proposal included in any such application on or after the date specified in such application (which date shall not be less than five Business Days after the date any Authorized Officer of the Company actually receives such application, unless any such Authorized Officer shall have consented in writing to an earlier date) unless, prior to taking any such action (or the effective date in the case of an omission), the Rights Agent shall have received written instructions in response to such application specifying the action to be taken or omitted.

(h) The Rights Agent and any stockholder, director, officer or employee of the Rights Agent may buy, sell or deal in any of the Rights or other securities of the Company or become pecuniarily interested in any transaction in which the Company may be interested, or contract with or lend money to the Company or otherwise act as fully and freely as though it were not Rights Agent under this Rights Agreement. Nothing herein shall preclude the Rights Agent from acting in any other capacity for the Company or for any other legal entity.

(i) The Rights Agent may execute and exercise any of the rights or powers hereby vested in it or perform any duty hereunder either itself or by or through its attorneys or agents, and the Rights Agent shall not be answerable or accountable for any act, default, neglect or misconduct of any such attorneys or agents or for any loss to the Company resulting from any such act, default, neglect or misconduct, <u>provided</u>, that reasonable care was exercised in the selection and continued employment thereof.

(j) If, with respect to any Right Certificate surrendered to the Rights Agent for exercise or transfer, the certificate contained in the form of assignment or the form of election to purchase set forth on the reverse thereof, as the case may be, has not been completed to certify the holder is not an Acquiring Person (or an Affiliate or Associate thereof) or a transferee thereof, the Rights Agent shall not take any further action with respect to such requested exercise or transfer without first consulting with the Company.

Section 21. <u>Change of Rights Agent</u>. The Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent may resign and be discharged from its duties under this Rights Agreement upon 30 days notice in writing mailed to the Company and to each transfer agent of the Common Stock or Preferred Stock by registered or certified mail, and, following the Distribution Date, to the holders of the Right Certificates by first-class mail. The Company may remove the Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent upon 30 days notice in writing, mailed to the Rights Agent or successor Rights Agent, as the case may be, and to each transfer agent of the Common Stock or Preferred Stock or Preferred Stock by registered or certified mail, and, following the Distribution Date, to the holders of the Right Certificates by first-class by first-class mail. If the Rights Agent shall resign or be removed or shall otherwise become incapable of acting, the Company shall appoint a successor to the Rights Agent. If the Company shall fail to make such appointment within a period of 30 days after giving notice of

such removal or after it has been notified in writing of such resignation or incapacity by the resigning or incapacitated Rights Agent or by the holder of a Right Certificate (who shall, with such notice, submit his Right Certificate for inspection by the

Company), then the registered holder of any Right Certificate may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a new Rights Agent. Any successor Rights Agent, whether appointed by the Company or by such a court, shall be (A) a corporation or other entity organized and doing business under the laws of the United States or any State thereof, which is authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust or stock transfer powers and is subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority and which has at the time of its appointment as Rights Agent a combined capital and surplus of at least \$50 million or (B) an affiliate of a corporation or entity described in clause (A) of this sentence. After appointment, the successor Rights Agent shall be vested with the same powers, rights, duties and responsibilities as if it had been originally named as Rights Agent any property at the time held by it hereunder, and execute and deliver any further assurance, conveyance, act or deed necessary for the purpose. Not later than the effective date of any such appointment the Company shall file notice thereof in writing with the predecessor Rights Agent and each transfer agent of the Common Stock or Preferred Stock, and, following the Distribution Date, mail a notice thereof in writing to the registered holders of the Right Certificates. Failure to give any notice provided for in this <u>Section 21</u>, however, or any defect therein, shall not affect the legality or validity of the resignation or removal of the Rights Agent or the appointment of the successor Rights Agent, as the case may be.

Section 22. *Issuance of New Right Certificates.* Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Rights Agreement or of the Rights to the contrary, the Company may, at its option, issue new Right Certificates evidencing Rights in such forms as may be approved by its Board of Directors to reflect any adjustment or change in the Purchase Price and the number or kind or class of shares or other securities or property purchasable under the Right Certificates made in accordance with the provisions of this Rights Agreement. In addition, in connection with the issuance or sale of Common Stock following the Distribution Date and prior to the Expiration Date, the Company may with respect to shares of Common Stock so issued or sold pursuant to (i) the exercise of stock options, (ii) under any employee plan or arrangement, (iii) the exercise, conversion or exchange of securities, notes or debentures issued by the Company or (iv) a contractual obligation of the Company, in each case existing prior to the Distribution Date, issue Right Certificates representing the appropriate number of Rights in connection with such issuance or sale.

Section 23. <u>Redemption</u>. (a) The Board of Directors of the Company may, at any time prior to such time as any Person first becomes an Acquiring Person, redeem all but not less than all the then-outstanding Rights at a redemption price of \$0.01 per Right, appropriately adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend or similar transaction occurring after the date hereof (the <u>Redemption Price</u>). The redemption of the Rights may be made effective at such time, on such basis and with such conditions as the Board of Directors in its sole discretion may establish. The Company may, at its option, pay the Redemption Price in cash, shares of Common Stock (based on the current market price of the Common Stock at the time of redemption as determined pursuant to <u>Section 11(d)(i)</u> hereof) or any other form of consideration deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

(b) Immediately upon the action of the Board of Directors ordering the redemption of the Rights pursuant to paragraph (a) of this <u>Section 23</u> (or at such later time as the Board of Directors may establish for the effectiveness of such redemption), and without any further action and without any notice, the right to exercise the Rights will terminate and the only right thereafter of the holders of Rights shall be to receive the Redemption Price. The Company shall promptly give public notice of any such redemption; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the failure to give, or any defect in, any such notice shall not affect the validity of such redemption. Within 10 days after such action of the Board of Directors ordering the redemption), the Company shall mail a notice of redemption to all the holders of the then-outstanding Rights at their last addresses as they appear upon the registry books of the Rights Agent or, prior to the Distribution Date, on the registry books of the transfer agent for the Common Stock. Any notice which is mailed in the manner herein provided shall be deemed given, whether or not the holder receives the notice. Each such notice of redemption shall state the method by which the payment of the Redemption Price will be made. The failure to give notice

A-21

required by this <u>Section 23(b)</u> or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the action taken by the Company.

(c) In the case of a redemption under <u>Section 23(a)</u> hereof, the Company may, at its option, discharge all of its obligations with respect to the Rights by (i) issuing a press release announcing the manner of redemption of the Rights and (ii) mailing payment of the Redemption Price to the registered holders of the Rights at their last addresses as they appear on the registry books of the Rights Agent or, prior to the Distribution Date, on the registry books of the transfer agent of the Common Stock, and upon such action, all outstanding Right Certificates shall be void without any further action by the Company.

Section 24. Exchange. (a) The Board of Directors of the Company may, at its option, at any time after any Person first becomes an Acquiring Person, exchange all or part of the then-outstanding Rights (which shall not include Rights that have not become effective or that have become void pursuant to the provisions of <u>Section 11(a)(ii)</u> hereof) for shares of Common Stock at an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock (or one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock) per Right, appropriately adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend or similar transaction occurring after the date hereof (such amount per Right being hereinafter referred to as the <u>Exchange Ratio</u>). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors shall not be empowered to effect such exchange at any time after an Acquiring Person becomes the Beneficial Owner of shares of Common Stock aggregating 50% or more of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding. From and after the occurrence of an event specified in Section 13(a) hereof, any Rights that theretofore have not been exchanged pursuant to this <u>Section 24(a)</u> shall thereafter be exercisable only in accordance with Section 13 and may not be exchanged pursuant to this Section 24(a). The exchange of the Rights by the Board of Directors may be made effective at such time, on such basis and with such conditions as the Board of Directors in its sole discretion may establish. Prior to effecting an exchange pursuant to this Section 24, the Board of Directors may direct the Company to enter into a Trust Agreement in such form and with such terms as the Board of Directors shall then approve (the <u>Trust Agreement</u>). If the Board of Directors so directs, the Company shall enter into the Trust Agreement and shall issue to the trust created by such agreement (the <u>Trust</u>) all of the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the exchange, and all stockholders entitled to receive shares pursuant to the exchange shall be entitled to receive such shares (and any dividends or distributions made thereon after the date on which such shares are deposited in the Trust) only from the Trust and solely upon compliance with the relevant terms and provisions of the Trust Agreement.

(b) Immediately upon the effectiveness of the action of the Board of Directors of the Company ordering the exchange of any Rights pursuant to paragraph (a) of this <u>Section 24</u> and without any further action and without any notice, the right to exercise such Rights shall terminate and the only right thereafter of a holder of such Rights shall be to receive that number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of such Rights held by such holder multiplied by the Exchange Ratio. The Company shall promptly give public notice of any such exchange and shall promptly mail a notice of any such exchange to all of the holders of the Rights so exchanged at their last addresses as they appear upon the registry books of the Rights Agent; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the failure to give, or any defect in, such notice shall not affect the validity of such exchange. Any notice which is mailed in the manner herein provided shall be deemed given, whether or not the holder receives the notice. Each such notice of exchange will state the method by which the exchange of the shares of Common Stock for Rights will be effected and, in the event of any partial exchange, the number of Rights which will be exchanged. Any partial exchange shall be effected pro rata based on the number of Rights (other than Rights which have become void pursuant to the provisions of <u>Section 11(a)(ii)</u> hereof) held by each holder of Rights.

(c) The Company may at its option substitute and, in the event that there shall not be sufficient shares of Common Stock issued but not outstanding or authorized but unissued (and unreserved) to permit an exchange of Rights as contemplated in accordance with this <u>Section 24</u>, the Company shall substitute to the extent of such insufficiency, for each share of Common Stock that would otherwise be issuable upon exchange of a Right, a number of shares of Preferred Stock or fractions thereof (or equivalent preferred shares as such term is defined in <u>Section 11(b)</u>) such that

the current per share market price (determined pursuant to <u>Section 11(d)</u> hereof) of one share of Preferred Stock (or equivalent preferred share) multiplied by such number or fraction

is equal to the current per share market price of one share of Common Stock (determined pursuant to <u>Section 11(d)</u> hereof) as of the date of such exchange.

Section 25. *Notice of Certain Events*. (a) In case the Company shall at any time after the earlier of the Distribution Date or the Stock Acquisition Date propose (i) to pay any dividend payable in stock of any class to the holders of its Preferred Stock or to make any other distribution to the holders of its Preferred Stock (other than a regular quarterly cash dividend), (ii) to offer to the holders of its Preferred Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or to purchase any additional shares of Preferred Stock or shares of stock of any class or any other securities, rights or options, (iii) to effect any reclassification of its Preferred Stock (other than a reclassification involving only the subdivision or combination of outstanding Preferred Stock), (iv) to effect the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, or (v) to declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in Common Stock or to effect a subdivision, combination or consolidation of the Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of dividends in Common Stock), then, in each such case, the Company shall give to each holder of a Right Certificate, in accordance with <u>Section 26</u> hereof, a notice of such proposed action, which shall specify the record date for the purposes of such stock dividend, or distribution or offering of rights or warrants, or the date on which such liquidation, dissolution, reclassification, subdivision, combination, consolidation or winding up is to take place and the date of participation therein by the holders of the Common Stock and/or Preferred Stock, if any such date is to be fixed, and such notice shall be so given in the case of any action covered by clause (i) or (ii) above at least 10 days prior to the record date for determining holders of the Preferred Stock for purposes of such action, and in the case of any such other action, at least 10 days prior to the date of the taking of such proposed action or the date of participation therein by the holders of the Common Stock and/or Preferred Stock, whichever shall be the earlier.

(b) In case any event described in Section 11(a)(ii) or Section 13 shall occur then the Company shall as soon as practicable thereafter give to each holder of a Right Certificate (or if occurring prior to the Distribution Date, the holders of the Common Stock) in accordance with Section 26 hereof, a notice of the occurrence of such event, which notice shall describe such event and the consequences of such event to holders of Rights under Section 11(a)(ii) and Section 13 hereof.

(c) The failure to give notice required by this <u>Section 25</u> or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of the action taken by the Company or the vote upon any such action.

Section 26. *Notices*. Notices or demands authorized by this Rights Agreement to be given or made by the Rights Agent or by the holder of any Right Certificate to or on the Company shall be sufficiently given or made if sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is filed in writing with the Rights Agent) as follows:

Conseco, Inc. 11825 North Pennsylvania Street Carmel, Indiana 46032 Attn: Chief Financial Officer

Subject to the provisions of <u>Section 21</u> hereof, any notice or demand authorized by this Rights Agreement to be given or made by the Company or by the holder of any Right Certificate to or on the Rights Agent shall be sufficiently given or made if sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is filed in writing with the Company) as follows:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038 Attn: Corporate Trust Department

Table of Contents

Notices or demands authorized by this Rights Agreement to be given or made by the Company or the Rights Agent to the holder of any Right Certificate shall be sufficiently given or made if sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such holder at the address of such holder as shown on the registry books of the Company.

Table of Contents

Section 27. Supplements and Amendments. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 27, for so long as the Rights are then redeemable, the Company may in its sole and absolute discretion, and the Rights Agent shall if the Company so directs, supplement or amend any provision of this Rights Agreement in any respect without the approval of any holders of the Rights. At any time when the Rights are no longer redeemable, except as otherwise provided in this Section 27, the Company may, and the Rights Agent shall, if the Company so directs, supplement or amend this Rights Agreement without the approval of any holders of Rights in order to (i) cure any ambiguity, (ii) correct or supplement any provision contained herein which may be defective or inconsistent with any other provisions herein, (iii) shorten or lengthen any time period hereunder, or (iv) change or supplement the provisions hereunder in any manner which the Company may deem necessary or desirable; provided, however, that no such supplement or amendment shall adversely affect the interests of the holders of Rights as such (other than an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person), and no such amendment may cause the Rights again to become redeemable or cause this Rights Agreement again to become amendable other than in accordance with this sentence. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Rights Agreement to the contrary, no supplement or amendment shall be made which decreases the Redemption Price. Upon the delivery of a certificate from an appropriate officer of the Company which states that the supplement or amendment is in compliance with the terms of this Section 27, the Rights Agent shall execute such supplement or amendment; provided, that any supplement or amendment that does not amend Section 18, 19, 20 or 21 hereof in a manner adverse to the Rights Agent shall become effective immediately upon execution by the Company, whether or not also executed by the Rights Agent.

Section 28. *Successors*. All the covenants and provisions of this Rights Agreement by or for the benefit of the Company or the Rights Agent shall bind and inure to the benefit of their respective successors and assigns hereunder.

Section 29. <u>Benefits of this Rights Agreement</u>. Nothing in this Rights Agreement shall be construed to give to any Person other than the Company, the Rights Agent and the registered holders of the Right Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Date, the Common Stock) any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Rights Agreement; but this Rights Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Company, the Rights Agent and the registered holders of the Right Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Date, the Company, the Rights Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Date, the Company, the Rights Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Date, the Common Stock).

Section 30. *Determinations and Actions by the Board of Directors*. The Board of Directors of the Company shall have the exclusive power and authority to administer this Rights Agreement and to exercise the rights and powers specifically granted to the Board of Directors of the Company or to the Company, or as may be necessary or advisable in the administration of this Rights Agreement, including, without limitation, the right and power to (i) interpret the provisions of this Rights Agreement and (ii) make all determinations deemed necessary or advisable for the administration of this Rights Agreement (including, without limitation, a determination to redeem or not redeem the Rights or to amend this Rights Agreement). All such actions, calculations, interpretations and determinations that are done or made by the Board of Directors of the Company in good faith, shall be final, conclusive and binding on the Company, the Rights Agrent, the holders of the Rights, as such, and all other parties.

Section 31. <u>Severability</u>. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Rights Agreement or applicable to this Rights Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction or other authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions of this Rights Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if any such term, provision, covenant or restriction is held by such court or authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable and the Board determines in its good faith judgment that severing the invalid language from this Agreement would adversely affect the purpose or effect of this Agreement, the right of redemption set forth in <u>Section 23</u> hereof shall be reinstated (with prompt notice to the Rights Agent) and shall not expire until the close of business on the tenth Business Day following the date of such determination by the Board. Without limiting the foregoing, if any provision requiring a specific group of Directors of the Company to act is held by any court of

competent jurisdiction or other authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable, such determination shall then be

Table of Contents

made by the Board in accordance with applicable law and the Company s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws.

Section 32. <u>Governing Law</u>. This Rights Agreement and each Right Certificate issued hereunder shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the State of Delaware and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of such State applicable to contracts to be made and performed entirely within such State.

Section 33. *Counterparts*. This Rights Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 34. *Descriptive Headings*. Descriptive headings of the several sections of this Rights Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof.

A-25

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Rights Agreement to be duly executed and attested, all as of the day and year first above written.

			CONSECO, INC.
Attest:	/s/ Karl W. Kindig		By: /s/ Thomas D. Barta
	Secretary		Name:Thomas D. BartaTitle:Senior Vice President
			AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY, LLC
Attest:	/s/ Susan Silber		By: /s/ Herbert J. Lemmer
	Assistant Secretary		Name:Herbert J. LemmerTitle:Vice President
	A	A-26	

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS OF SERIES A JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK OF CONSECO, INC. (Pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware)

Conseco, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the <u>Company</u>), hereby certifies that the following resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter being referred to as the <u>Board of Directors</u> or the <u>Board</u>) as required by Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware on January 20, 2009:

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, (hereinafter being referred to as the <u>Certificate of Incorporation</u>), the Board of Directors hereby creates a series of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Company, to be designated the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and hereby adopts the resolution establishing the designations, number of shares, preferences, voting powers and other rights, and the restrictions and limitations thereof, of the shares of such series as set forth below:

Section 1. <u>Designation and Amount</u>. The shares of such series shall be designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (the <u>Series A Preferred Stock</u>) and the number of shares constituting the Series A Preferred Stock shall be 1,000,000. Such number of shares may be increased or decreased by resolution of the Board of Directors; <u>provided</u>, that no decrease shall reduce the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock to a number less than the number of shares then outstanding plus the number of shares reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding options, rights or warrants or upon the conversion of any outstanding securities issued by the Company convertible into Series A Preferred Stock.

Section 2. Dividends and Distributions

(A) Subject to the rights of the holders of any shares of any series of Preferred Stock of the Company (the <u>Preferred</u> <u>Stock</u>) (or any similar stock) ranking prior and superior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock, in preference to the holders of Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Company (the <u>Common Stock</u>) and of any other stock of the Company ranking junior to the Series A Preferred Stock, shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available for the purpose, quarterly dividends payable in cash on the last day of January, April, July, and October in each year (each such date being referred to herein as a <u>Dividend Payment Date</u>), commencing on the first Dividend Payment Date after the first issuance of a share or fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock (the <u>Issue Date</u>), in an amount per share (rounded to the nearest cent) equal to the greater of (a) \$1 or (b) subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth, 1,000 times the aggregate per share amount of all cash dividends, and 1,000 times the

aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all non-cash dividends or other distributions other than a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock, declared on the Common Stock since the immediately preceding Dividend Payment Date or, with respect to the first Dividend Payment Date, since the first issuance of any share or fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock. In the event the Company shall at any time after the Issue Date declare and pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, or effect a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the amount to which holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event under clause (b) of the preceding sentence shall be

A-27

adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

(B) The Company shall declare a dividend or distribution on the Series A Preferred Stock as provided in paragraph (A) of this Section immediately after it declares a dividend or distribution on the Common Stock (other than a dividend payable in shares of Common Stock); <u>provided</u> that, in the event no dividend or distribution shall have been declared on the Common Stock during the period between any Dividend Payment Date and the next subsequent Dividend Payment Date, a dividend of \$1 per share on the Series A Preferred Stock shall nevertheless be payable, when, as and if declared, on such subsequent Dividend Payment Date.

(C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative, whether or not earned or declared, on outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock from the Dividend Payment Date next preceding the date of issue of such shares, unless the date of issue of such shares is prior to the record date for the first Dividend Payment Date, in which case dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue from the date of issue of such shares, or unless the date of issue is a Dividend Payment Date or is a date after the record date for the determination of holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock entitled to receive a quarterly dividend and before such Dividend Payment Date, in either of which events such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from such Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear interest. Dividends paid on the shares of Series A Preferred Stock in an amount less than the total amount of such dividends at the time accrued and payable on such shares shall be allocated pro rata on a share-by-share basis among all such shares at the time outstanding. The Board of Directors may fix a record date for the determination of holders of shares of series A Preferred Stock entitled to receive payment of a dividend or distribution declared thereon, which record date shall be not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for the payment thereof.

Section 3. *Voting Rights.* The holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall have the following voting rights:

(A) Subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth and except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation or required by law, each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder thereof to 1,000 votes on all matters upon which the holders of the Common Stock of the Company are entitled to vote. In the event the Company shall at any time after the Issue Date declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, or effect a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the number of votes per share to which holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event shall be adjusted by multiplying such number by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

(B) Except as otherwise provided herein, in the Certificate of Incorporation or in any other Certificate of Designations creating a series of Preferred Stock or any similar stock, and except as otherwise required by law, the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock and the holders of shares of Common Stock and any other capital stock of the Company having general voting rights shall vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders of the Company.

(C) Except as set forth herein, or as otherwise provided by law, holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall have no special voting rights and their consent shall not be required (except to the extent they are entitled to vote with holders of Common Stock as set forth herein) for taking any corporate action.

(D) If, at the time of any annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, the equivalent of six quarterly dividends (whether or not consecutive) payable on any share or shares of Series A Preferred Stock are in default, the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors of the Company shall be increased by two. In addition to voting together with the holders of Common Stock for the election of other directors of the Company, the holders of record of the Series A Preferred Stock,

voting separately as a class to the exclusion of the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled at said meeting of stockholders (and at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders), unless all dividends in arrears on the Series A Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and set apart for payment prior thereto, to vote for the election of two directors of the Company, the holders of any Series A Preferred Stock being entitled to cast a number of votes per share of Series A Preferred Stock as is specified in paragraph (A) of this Section 3. Each such additional director shall serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, or until his successor shall be elected and shall qualify, or until his right to hold such office terminates pursuant to the provisions of this Section 3(D). Until the default in payments of all dividends which permitted the election of said directors shall cease to exist, any director who shall have been so elected pursuant to the provisions of this Section 3(D) may be removed at any time, without cause, only by the affirmative vote of the holders of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock at the time entitled to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast for the election of any such director at a special meeting of such holders called for that purpose, and any vacancy thereby created may be filled by the vote of such holders. If and when such default shall cease to exist, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be divested of the foregoing special voting rights, subject to revesting in the event of each and every subsequent like default in payments of dividends. Upon the termination of the foregoing special voting rights, the terms of office of all persons who may have been elected directors pursuant to said special voting rights shall forthwith terminate, and the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall be reduced by two. The voting rights granted by this Section 3(D) shall be in addition to any other voting rights granted to the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock in this Section 3.

Section 4. Certain Restrictions.

(A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other dividends or distributions payable on the Series A Preferred Stock as provided in Section 2 are in arrears, thereafter and until all accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions, whether or not earned or declared, on shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding shall have been paid in full, the Company shall not:

(i) declare or pay dividends, or make any other distributions, on any shares of stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series A Preferred Stock;

(ii) declare or pay dividends, or make any other distributions, on any shares of stock ranking on a parity (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with the Series A Preferred Stock, except dividends paid ratably on the Series A Preferred Stock and all such parity stock on which dividends are payable or in arrears in proportion to the total amounts to which the holders of all such shares are then entitled;

(iii) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration shares of any stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series A Preferred Stock, provided that the Company may at any time redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares of any such junior stock in exchange for shares of any stock of the Company ranking junior (as to dividends and upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up) to the Series A Preferred Stock or rights, warrants or options to acquire such junior stock; or

(iv) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of Series A Preferred Stock, or any shares of stock ranking on a parity (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with the Series A Preferred Stock, except in accordance with a purchase offer made in writing or by publication (as determined by the Board of Directors) to all holders of such shares upon such terms as the Board of Directors, after consideration of the respective annual dividend rates and other relative rights and preferences of the respective series and classes, shall determine in good faith will result in fair and equitable treatment among the respective series or classes.

(B) The Company shall not permit any subsidiary of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock of the Company unless the Company could, under paragraph (A) of this Section 4, purchase or

otherwise acquire such shares at such time and in such manner.

Section 5. <u>Reacquired Shares</u>. Any shares of Series A Preferred Stock purchased or otherwise acquired by the Company in any manner whatsoever shall be retired and cancelled promptly after the acquisition thereof. All such shares shall upon their retirement become authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred Stock to be created by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject to any conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth herein.

Section 6. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, no distribution shall be made (A) to the holders of the Common Stock or of shares of any other stock of the Company ranking junior, upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, to the Series A Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall have received \$1,000 per share, plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions thereon, whether or not earned or declared, to the date of such payment, provided that the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive an aggregate amount per share, subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth, equal to 1,000 times the aggregate amount to be distributed per share to holders of shares of Common Stock, or (B) to the holders of shares of stock ranking on a parity upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up with the Series A Preferred Stock, except distributions made ratably on the Series A Preferred Stock and all such parity stock in proportion to the total amounts to which the holders of all such shares are entitled upon such liquidation, dissolution or winding up. In the event, however, that there are not sufficient assets available to permit payment in full of the Series A liquidation preference and the liquidation preferences of all other classes and series of stock of the Company, if any, that rank on a parity with the Series A Preferred Stock in respect thereof, then the assets available for such distribution shall be distributed ratably to the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and the holders of such parity shares in the proportion to their respective liquidation preferences. In the event the Company shall at any time after the Issue Date declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, or effect a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the aggregate amount to which holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event under the proviso in clause (A) of the preceding sentence shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

Neither the merger or consolidation of the Company into or with another entity nor the merger or consolidation of any other entity into or with the Company (nor the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company) shall be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company within the meaning of this Section 6.

Section 7. <u>Consolidation, Merger, etc</u>. In case the Company shall enter into any consolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which the shares of Common Stock are converted into, exchanged for or changed into other stock or securities, cash and/or any other property, then in any such case each share of Series A Preferred Stock shall at the same time be similarly converted into, exchanged for or changed into an amount per share (subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth) equal to 1,000 times the aggregate amount of stock, securities, cash and/or any other property (payable in kind), as the case may be, into which or for which each share of Common Stock is converted, exchanged or converted. In the event the Company shall at any time after the Issue Date declare or pay any dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, or effect a subdivision or combination or consolidation of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (by reclassification or otherwise than by payment of a dividend in shares of Common Stock) into a greater or lesser number of shares of Common Stock, then in each such case the amount set forth in the preceding sentence with respect to the conversion, exchange or change of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall be adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

Section 8. <u>No Redemption</u>. The shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable from any holder.

Section 9. <u>*Rank.*</u> The Series A Preferred Stock shall rank, with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, junior to all other series of Preferred Stock and senior to the Common Stock.

Section 10. <u>Amendment</u>. If any proposed amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (including this Certificate of Designations) would alter, change or repeal any of the preferences, powers or special rights given to the Series A Preferred Stock so as to affect the Series A Preferred Stock adversely, then the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote separately as a class upon such amendment, and the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class, shall be necessary for the adoption thereof, in addition to such other vote as may be required by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

Section 11. *Fractional Shares.* Series A Preferred Stock may be issued in fractions of a share that shall entitle the holder, in proportion to such holder s fractional shares, to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, participate in distributions and to have the benefit of all other rights of holders of Series A Preferred Stock.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate of Designations is executed on behalf of the Company by its and attested by its Secretary this 20th day of January, 2009.

Name:	Title:
Attest:	
Secretary	

EXHIBIT B

FORM OF RIGHT CERTIFICATE

Rights Certificate No. R-

NOT EXERCISABLE AFTER JANUARY 20, 20012, OR SUCH EARLIER DATE AS PROVIDED BY THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT OR IF REDEMPTION OR EXCHANGE OCCURS. THE RIGHTS ARE SUBJECT TO REDEMPTION AT \$0.01 PER RIGHT AND TO EXCHANGE ON THE TERMS SET FORTH IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT. UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, AS SET FORTH IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT, RIGHTS OWNED BY OR TRANSFERRED TO ANY PERSON WHO IS OR BECOMES AN ACQUIRING PERSON (AS DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT) AND CERTAIN TRANSFEREES THEREOF WILL BECOME NULL AND VOID AND WILL NO LONGER BE TRANSFERABLE.

Right Certificate

CONSECO, INC.

] or registered assigns, is the registered owner of the number of Rights set forth above, each This certifies that [of which entitles the owner thereof, subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of the Section 382 Rights Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2009, as the same may be amended from time to time (the <u>Rights Agreement</u>), between Conseco, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the <u>Company</u>), and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC (the <u>Rights Agent</u>), to purchase from the Company at any time after the Distribution Date (as such term is defined in the Rights Agreement) and prior to 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on January 20, 2012, or such earlier date as provided by the Rights Agreement at the office or agency of the Rights Agent designated for such purpose, or of its successor as Rights Agent, one-thousandth of a fully paid non-assessable share of Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value \$0.01 per share (the <u>Preferred Stock</u>), of the Company, at a purchase price of \$20.00 per one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock (the <u>Purchase Price</u>), upon presentation and surrender of this Right Certificate with the Form of Election to Purchase duly executed. The number of Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate (and the number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock which may be purchased upon exercise hereof) set forth above, and the Purchase Price set forth above, are the number and Purchase Price as of January 30, 2009, based on the Preferred Stock as constituted at such date. As provided in the Rights Agreement, the Purchase Price, the number of one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock (or other securities or property) which may be purchased upon the exercise of the Rights and the number of Rights evidenced by this Right Certificate are subject to modification and adjustment upon the happening of certain events.

This Right Certificate is subject to all of the terms, provisions and conditions of the Rights Agreement, which terms, provisions and conditions are hereby incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof and to which Rights Agreement reference is hereby made for a full description of the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties and immunities hereunder of the Rights Agent, the Company and the holders of the Right Certificates. Copies of the Rights Agreement are on file at the principal executive offices of the Company. The Company will mail to the holder of this Right Certificate a copy of the Rights Agreement without charge after receipt of a written request therefor.

This Right Certificate, with or without other Right Certificates, upon surrender at the office or agency of the Rights Agent designated for such purpose, may be exchanged for another Right Certificate or Right Certificates of like tenor and date evidencing Rights entitling the holder to purchase a like aggregate number of shares of Preferred Stock as the Rights evidenced by the Right Certificate or Right Certificates surrendered shall have entitled such holder to purchase. If this Right Certificate shall be exercised in part, the holder shall be entitled to receive upon surrender hereof another Right Certificate or Right Certificates for the number of whole Rights not exercised.

Subject to the provisions of the Rights Agreement, the Rights evidenced by this Certificate (i) may be redeemed by the Company at a redemption price of \$0.01 per Right or (ii) may be exchanged in whole or in part for shares of Preferred Stock or shares of the Company s Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share.

No fractional shares of Preferred Stock or Common Stock will be issued upon the exercise or exchange of any Right or Rights evidenced hereby (other than fractions of Preferred Stock which are integral multiples of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock, which may, at the election of the Company, be evidenced by depositary receipts), but in lieu thereof a cash payment will be made, as provided in the Rights Agreement.

No holder of this Right Certificate, as such, shall be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed for any purpose the holder of the Preferred Stock or of any other securities of the Company which may at any time be issuable on the exercise or exchange hereof, nor shall anything contained in the Rights Agreement or herein be construed to confer upon the holder hereof, as such, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote for the election of directors or upon any matter submitted to stockholders at any meeting thereof, or to give or withhold consent to any corporate action, or to receive notice of meetings or other actions affecting stockholders (except as provided in the Rights Agreement) or to receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, until the Right or Rights evidenced by this Right certificate shall have been exercised or exchanged as provided in the Rights Agreement.

This Right Certificate shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until it shall have been countersigned by the Rights Agent.

WITNESS the facsimile signature of the proper officers of the Company and its corporate seal. Dated as of______.

ATTEST: CONSECO, INC. By: ___ By: ___ Countersigned: ___, as Rights Agent

By: <u>– –</u> Authorized Signatory

Table of Contents

Form of Reverse Side of Right Certificate

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

(To be executed by the registered holder if such holder desires to transfer the Right Certificate)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED - - hereby sells, assigns and transfer unto --

(Please print name and address of transferee)

Rights represented by this Right Certificate, together with all right, title and interest therein, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint______ Attorney, to transfer said Rights on the books of the within-named Company, with full power of substitution.

Dated: _____,___

Signature

Signature Guaranteed:

Signatures must be guaranteed by a bank, trust company, broker, dealer or other eligible institution participating in a recognized signature guarantee medallion program.

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Rights evidenced by this Right Certificate are not beneficially owned by, were not acquired by the undersigned from, and are not being sold, assigned or transferred to, an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate thereof (as defined in the Rights Agreement).

Signature

Table of Contents

Form of Reverse Side of Right Certificate continued

FORM OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE

(To be executed if holder desires to exercise Rights represented by the Rights Certificate)

To the Rights Agent:

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise_____ Rights represented by this Right Certificate to purchase the shares of Preferred Stock (or other securities or property) issuable upon the exercise of such Rights and requests that certificates for such shares of Preferred Stock (or such other securities) be issued in the name of:

(Please print name and address)

If such number of Rights shall not be all the Rights evidenced by this Right Certificate, a new Right Certificate for the balance remaining of such Rights shall be registered in the name of and delivered to:

Please insert social security or other identifying number: <u>–</u>

(Please print name and address)

Dated: _____,

Signature (Signature must conform to holder specified on Right Certificate)

Signature Guaranteed:

Signatures must be guaranteed by a bank, trust company, broker, dealer or other eligible institution participating in a recognized signature guarantee medallion program.

The undersigned hereby certifies that the Rights evidenced by this Right Certificate are not beneficially owned by, were not acquired by the undersigned from, and are not being sold, assigned or transferred to, an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate thereof (as defined in the Rights Agreement).

Signature

Form of Reverse Side of Right Certificate continued

NOTICE

The signature in the Form of Assignment or Form of Election to Purchase, as the case may be, must conform to the name as written upon the face of this Right Certificate in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.

In the event the certification set forth above in the Form of Assignment or the Form of Election to Purchase, as the case may be, is not completed, such Assignment or Election to Purchase will not be honored.

EXHIBIT C

UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, AS SET FORTH IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT, RIGHTS OWNED BY OR TRANSFERRED TO ANY PERSON WHO IS OR BECOMES AN ACQUIRING PERSON (AS DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT) AND CERTAIN TRANSFEREES THEREOF WILL BECOME NULL AND VOID AND WILL NO LONGER BE TRANSFERABLE.

SUMMARY OF RIGHTS TO PURCHASE Shares of Preferred Stock

On January 20, 2009 the Board of Directors of Conseco, Inc. (the <u>Company</u>) declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a <u>Right</u>) for each outstanding share of Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Company (the <u>Common Stock</u>). The dividend is payable on January 30, 2009 (the <u>Record Date</u>) to the stockholders of record as of the close of business on that date. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value \$0.01 per share (the <u>Preferred Stock</u>) of the Company at a price of \$20.00 per one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock (as the same may be adjusted, the <u>Purchase Price</u>). The description and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Section 382 Rights Agreement dated as of January 20, 2009 (as the same may be amended from time to time, the <u>Rights</u> Agreent), between the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as Rights Agrent (the <u>Rights Agreent</u>).

The Rights Agreement is intended to help protect the Company s tax net operating loss carryforwards. The Board of Directors may redeem the Rights, as discussed more fully below. The Rights Agreement is intended to act as a deterrent to any person (other than an Exempted Entity (as defined below) or any person who has the status of a 5% Shareholder (as defined below) on the date of the Rights Agreement so long as such person does not increase its ownership above an additional 1% of Common Stock then outstanding) from becoming or obtaining the right to become, a 5-percent shareholder (as such term is used in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the <u>Code</u>), and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder) (a 5% Shareholder), without the approval of the Board of Directors.

Until the close of business on the earlier of (i) the tenth business day after the first date of a public announcement that a person (other than an Exempted Entity (as defined below) or Grandfathered Persons (as defined below)) or group of affiliated or associated persons (an <u>Acquiring Person</u>) has become a 5% Shareholder or (ii) the tenth business day (or such later date as may be determined by action of the Board of Directors prior to such time as any person or group of affiliated persons becomes an Acquiring Person) after the date of commencement of, or the first public announcement of an intention to commence, a tender offer or exchange offer, the consummation of which would result in any Person (other than an Exempted Entity) becoming an Acquiring Person (the earlier of such dates being herein referred to as the <u>Distribution Date</u>), the Rights will be evidenced by the shares of Common Stock represented by the certificates for Common Stock or uncertificated book entry shares outstanding as of the Record Date, together with a copy of the summary of rights disseminated in connection with the original dividend of Rights.

<u>Exempted Entity</u> shall mean (1) the Company, (2) any Subsidiary (as defined below) of the Company, (in the case of subclauses (1) and (2) including, without limitation, in its fiduciary capacity), (3) any employee benefit plan of the Company or of any Subsidiary of the Company, (4) any entity or trustee holding Common Stock for or pursuant to the terms of any such plan or for the purpose of funding any such plan or funding other employee benefits for employees of the Company or of any Subsidiary of the Company or (5) any Person (together with its Affiliates and Associates) whose status as a 5% Shareholder will, in the sole judgment of the Board of Directors, not jeopardize or endanger the availability to the Company of its net operating loss carryforwards to be used to offset its taxable income in such year

or future years (but in the case of any Person determined by the Board of Directors to be an Exempted Entity pursuant to this subparagraph (5) only for so long as such Person s status as a 5% Shareholder continues not to jeopardize or endanger the availability of such net operating loss carryforwards, as determined by the Board of Directors in its good faith discretion).

<u>Grandfathered Person</u> shall mean any Person who would otherwise qualify as an Acquiring Person as of the date of this Rights Agreement, unless and until such time as such Person after the date of this Rights Agreement acquires beneficial ownership of additional shares of Common Stock representing more than 1% of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding.

The Rights Agreement provides that, until the Distribution Date (or earlier expiration of the Rights), new Common Stock certificates issued after the Record Date will contain a notation incorporating the Rights Agreement by reference and, with respect to any uncertificated book entry shares issued after the Record Date, proper notice will be provided that incorporates the Rights Agreement by reference. Until the Distribution Date (or earlier redemption or expiration of the Rights), the Rights will be transferable only in connection with the transfer of Common Stock. Until the Distribution Date (or earlier redemption or expiration of the Rights), the Rights will be transferable only in connection with the transfer of any certificates for shares of Common Stock (or uncertificated book entry shares) outstanding as of the Record Date, even without a notation incorporating the Rights Agreement by reference (or such notice, in the case of uncertificated book entry shares) or a copy of this Summary of Rights, will also constitute the transfer of the Rights associated with the shares of Common Stock represented by such certificate or uncertificates book entry shares, as the case may be. As soon as practicable following the Distribution Date, separate certificates evidencing the Rights (<u>_Right Certificates</u>) will be mailed to holders of record of the Common Stock as of the close of business on the Distribution Date and such separate Right Certificates alone will evidence the Rights.

The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date and will expire at the earlier of (i) the close of business on January 20, 2012, (ii) the first anniversary of adoption of the Rights Agreement if shareholder approval of the Rights Agreement has not been received by or on such date, (iii) at the adjournment of the first annual meeting of the stockholders of the Company following the date hereof if stockholder approval of the Rights Agreement has not been received prior to such time, (iv) the repeal of Section 382 or any successor statute if the Board determines that the Rights Agreement is no longer necessary for the preservation of tax benefits or (v) the beginning of a taxable year of the Company to which the Board determines that no tax benefits may be carried forward (the <u>Final Expiration Date</u>), subject to (x) the extension of Rights Agreement by the Board of Directors by the amendment of the Rights Agreement or (y) the redemption or exchange of the Rights by the Company, as described below.

The Purchase Price payable, and the number of shares of Preferred Stock or other securities or property issuable, upon exercise of the Rights are subject to adjustment from time to time to prevent dilution (i) in the event of a stock dividend on, or a subdivision, combination or reclassification of, the Preferred Stock, (ii) upon the grant to holders of the Preferred Stock of certain rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase Preferred Stock at a price, or securities convertible into Preferred Stock with a conversion price, less than the then-current market price of the Preferred Stock or (iii) upon the distribution to holders of the Preferred Stock of evidences of indebtedness or assets (excluding regular periodic cash dividends or dividends payable in Preferred Stock) or of subscription rights or warrants (other than those referred to above).

The Rights are also subject to adjustment in the event of a stock dividend on the Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock or subdivisions, consolidations or combinations of the Common Stock occurring, in any such case, prior to the Distribution Date.

Shares of Preferred Stock purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Each share of Preferred Stock will be entitled, when, as and if declared, to a minimum preferential quarterly dividend payment of the greater of (a) \$1 per share and (b) an amount equal to 1,000 times the dividend declared per share of Common Stock. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Preferred Stock will be entitled to a minimum preferential liquidation payment of \$1,000 per share (plus any accrued but unpaid dividends) but will be entitled to an aggregate 1,000 times the payment made per share of Common Stock. Each share of Preferred Stock will have 1,000 votes, voting together with the Common Stock. Finally, in the event of any merger, consolidation or

other transaction in which shares of Common Stock are converted or exchanged, each share of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive 1,000 times the amount received per share of Common Stock. These rights are protected by customary antidilution provisions.

Because of the nature of the Preferred Stock s dividend, liquidation and voting rights, the value of the one one-thousandth interest in a share of Preferred Stock purchasable upon exercise of each Right should approximate the value of one share of Common Stock.

In the event that any person or group of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person, each holder of a Right, other than Rights beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person (which will thereupon become void), will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of a Right and payment of the Purchase Price, that number of shares of Common Stock having a market value of two times the Purchase Price.

In the event that, after a person or group has become an Acquiring Person, the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction or 50% or more of its consolidated assets or earning power are sold, proper provision will be made so that each holder of a Right (other than Rights beneficially owned by an Acquiring Person which will have become void) will thereafter have the right to receive, upon the exercise thereof at the then-current exercise price of the Right, that number of shares of common stock of the person with whom the Company has engaged in the foregoing transaction (or its parent), which number of shares at the time of such transaction will have a market value of two times the Purchase Price.

At any time after any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person and prior to the acquisition by such person or group of 50% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or the occurrence of an event described in the prior paragraph, the Board of Directors of the Company may exchange the Rights (other than Rights owned by such person or group which will have become void), in whole or in part, at an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock, or a fractional share of Preferred Stock (or of a share of a similar class or series of the Company s preferred stock having similar rights, preferences and privileges) of equivalent value, per Right (subject to adjustment).

With certain exceptions, no adjustment in the Purchase Price will be required until cumulative adjustments require an adjustment of at least 1% in such Purchase Price. No fractional shares of Preferred Stock will be issued (other than fractions which are integral multiples of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock, which may, at the election of the Company, be evidenced by depositary receipts) and in lieu thereof, an adjustment in cash will be made based on the market price of the Preferred Stock on the last trading day prior to the date of exercise.

At any time prior to the time an Acquiring Person becomes such, the Board of Directors of the Company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of \$0.01 per Right, appropriately adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend or similar transaction occurring after the date of adoption of the Rights Agreement (the <u>Redemption Price</u>). The redemption of the Rights may be made effective at such time, on such basis and with such conditions as the Board of Directors in its sole discretion may establish. Immediately upon any redemption of the Rights, the right to exercise the Rights will terminate and the only right of the holders of Rights will be to receive the Redemption Price.

For so long as the Rights are then redeemable, the Company may, except with respect to the Redemption Price, amend the Rights Agreement in any manner. After the Rights are no longer redeemable, the Company may, except with respect to the Redemption Price, amend the Rights Agreement in any manner that does not adversely affect the interests of holders of the Rights.

Until a Right is exercised or exchanged, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a stockholder of the Company, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends.

A copy of the Rights Agreement has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an Exhibit to a Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated January 20, 2009. A copy of the Rights Agreement is available free of charge from the Company. This summary description of the Rights does not purport to be complete and is qualified in

its entirety by reference to the Rights Agreement, as the same may be amended from time to time, which is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Annex B

CONSECO, INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (as Amended and Restated Effective March 31, 2009)

CONSECO, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

1.	Purpose	B-1
2.	Definitions	B-1
3.	Administration	B-2

Page